» o

Vs

| 8
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Notice of a public meeting of

Planning Committee

To: Councillors Fisher (Chair), Ayre, Barker, D'Agorne,
Daubeney, Doughty, Douglas, Fenton, Hollyer, Looker,
Lomas, Melly, Pavlovic (Vice-Chair), Warters and
Waudby

Date: Thursday, 2 December 2021

Time: 4.30 pm

Venue: The George Hudson Board Room - 1st Floor West
Offices (F045)

AGENDA
1. Declarations of Interest

At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare:
e any personal interests not included on the Register of Interests
e any prejudicial interests or
e any disclosable pecuniary interests

which they may have in respect of business on this agenda.

Minutes (Pages 3 - 30)

To approve and sign the minutes of the last meeting of the Planning
Committee held on 7 October and 4 November 2021.

Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have registered to
speak can do so. Members of the public may speak on agenda items or on
matters within the remit of the committee.

Please note that our registration deadlines have changed to 2
working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the
management of public participation at remote meetings. The deadline
for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Tuesday 30 November 2021.

www.york.gov.uk



b)

To register to speak please visit www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings

to fill in an online registration form. If you have any questions about the
registration form or the meeting, please contact Democratic Services.
Contact details can be found at the foot of this agenda.

Webcasting of Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will be
webcast, including any registered public speakers who have given their
permission. The meeting can be viewed live and on demand at
www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

During coronavirus, we've made some changes to how we're running
council meetings. See our coronavirus updates
(www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemaocracy) for more information on meetings
and decisions.

Plans List

This item invites Members to determine the following planning
applications:

Land At Cocoa West, Wigginton Road, York [21/01371/FULM]
(Pages 31 - 124)

Demolition of gatehouse and erection of up to 302 dwellings (Use Class
C3), creche (Use Class E) and associated access, car parking, public
open space, landscaping, associated infrastructure and drainage, and
other associated works [Guildhall Ward]

Mecca Bingo, 68 Fishergate, York YO10 4AR [21/01605/FULM]
(Pages 125 - 180)

Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of the site to form
276n0. room purpose built student accommodation with associated car
parking, landscaping and facilities [Fishergate Ward]

The Minster School, Deangate, York YO1 7JA [21/01535/FUL]
(Pages 181 - 242)

Change of use of former school to York Minster refectory (use class E) to
include new restaurant, kitchen and plant, creation of level access,
installation of platform lift, new service doors, re-roofing, integration of
solar PV panels and external repairs; and creation of a new Public Open
Space, including external landscape improvements, gazebo, parasol
bases, ice cream hut, railing relocation, cycle parking and cycle service
hub [Guildhall Ward]


http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy

d)

The Minster School Deangate York YO1 7JA [21/01536/LBC]
(Pages 243 - 264)

Change of use of former school, to the York Minster Refectory (use class
E), to include new restaurant, kitchen and plant, creation of level access,
installation of platform lift, internal alterations, new service doors, re-
roofing, integration of solar PV panels and external repairs; and creation of
a new Public Open Space, including external landscape improvements,
gazebo, parasol bases, ice cream hut, railing relocation, cycle parking and
cycle service hub [Guildhall Ward]

College Green, Minster Yard, York [21/01980/FUL] (Pages 265 - 290)
Landscaping works including provision of seating and stepping stones
[Guildhall Ward]

Urgent Business

Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the Local
Government Act 1972.

Democracy Officer

Angela Bielby
Contact details:

Telephone: 01904 552599
Email: a.bielby@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please
contact the Democratic Services Officer responsible for
servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.




This information can be provided in your own language.
HEMBATMIESIREEREIER (cantonese)
\2 B2 AT NS S (R (TS AN | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (Palish)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
G e U G < T (Ura)
T (01904) 551550




Page 1 Agenda Annex

Coronavirus protocols for attending Committee Meetings at West Offices

If you are attending a meeting in West Offices, you must observe the following protocols.

Good ventilation is a key control point, therefore, all windows must remain open within the meeting
room.

If you’re displaying possible coronavirus symptoms (or anyone in your household is displaying symptoms),
you should follow government guidance. You are advised not to attend your meeting at West Offices.

Testing

The Council encourages regular testing of all Officers and Members and also any members of the public in
attendance at a Committee Meeting. Any members of the public attending a meeting are advised to take a
test within 24 hours of attending a meeting, the result of the test should be negative, in order to attend.
Test kits can be obtained by clicking on either link: Find where to get rapid lateral flow tests - NHS (test-
and-trace.nhs.uk), or, Order coronavirus (COVID-19) rapid lateral flow tests - GOV.UK (www.goV.uk).
Alternatively, if you call 119 between the hours of 7am and 11pm, you can order a testing kit over the
telephone.

Guidelines for attending Meetings at West Offices

Please do not arrive more than 10 minutes before the meeting is due to start.

You may wish to wear a face covering to help protect those also attending.

You should wear a face covering when entering West Offices.

Visitors to enter West Offices by the customer entrance and Officers/Councillors to enter using the

staff entrance only.

Ensure your ID / visitors pass is clearly visible at all time.

¢ Regular handwashing is recommended.

e Use the touchless hand sanitiser units on entry and exit to the building and hand sanitiser within the
Meeting room.

e Bring your own drink if required.

e Only use the designated toilets next to the Meeting room.

Developing symptoms whilst in West Offices
If you develop coronavirus symptoms during a Meeting, you should:

e Make your way home immediately
e Avoid the use of public transport where possible
¢ Follow government guidance in relation to self-isolation.

You should also:

o Advise the Meeting organiser so they can arrange to assess and carry out additional cleaning
e Do not remain in the building any longer than necessary
o Do not visit any other areas of the building before you leave

If you receive a positive test result, or if you develop any symptoms before the meeting is due to take place,
you should not attend the meeting.

EJAV312.08.21

Page 1of1


https://maps.test-and-trace.nhs.uk/
https://maps.test-and-trace.nhs.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/order-coronavirus-rapid-lateral-flow-tests

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 3 Agenda Item 2

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Planning Committee
Date 7 October 2021

Present Councillors Fisher (Chair), Ayre, Barker,

D'Agorne, Daubeney, Doughty, Douglas,
Hollyer, Looker, Melly, Warters, Waudby,
Cuthbertson (Substitute) and Crawshaw
(Substitute)

Apologies Councillors Fenton and Lomas

45.

46.

Declarations of Interest

Members were asked to declare, at this point in the meeting,
any personal interests, not included on the Register of Interests,
or any prejudicial or discloseabale pecuniary interests they may
have in respect of business on the agenda.

ClIr Crawshaw acknowledged that he had spoken in objection to
item 4b. as a ward councillor when it was first presented to the
committee, however it had been agreed that the application
presented to the committee in this meeting was fundamentally
different and thus Cllr Crawshaw was not predetermined.

Cllr Daubeney declared a personal interest in item 4b., in that
he had received treatment for a brain injury and did not feel that
he could be impartial. He therefore stated that he would
withdraw from the meeting when that item was to be discussed.

Cllr Doughty declared a personal non-prejudicial interest in that
his partner had previously been a director at The Retreat. He
stated that this did not predetermine him and that he would
participate in discussion of the item.

Minutes

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 1 July 2021
and 5 August 2021 be approved and signed by the
Chair as a correct record.



47.

48.

49.

Page 4

Public Participation

It was reported that there had been one registration to speak at
the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on
general matters within the remit of the Planning Committee.

Johnny Hayes spoke on general planning matters, but
specifically about the Committee returning to in person site
meetings for more contentious and complex applications where
he felt an in person site visit would be beneficial. Mr Hayes felt
such visits increased public confidence in the deliberations of
the Planning Committee and gave members the chance to
better understand the site. He also stated that it was a good
opportunity for the public to question members and officers on
planning applications.

The Chair stated that he would discuss with potentially returning
to in person site visits with the Chair of the Area-Planning Sub-
Committee, Head of Planning and Development Services and
committee members.

Plans List

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Assistant
Director, Planning and Public Protection, relating to the following
planning applications, outlining the proposals and relevant
policy considerations and setting out the views of consultees
and officers.

Os Field 2800, Eastfield Lane, Dunnington, York
[20/01626/FULM]

Members considered a major full application from Mr Tate for
the erection of 83 dwellings, landscaping, public open space
and associated infrastructure at OS Field 2800, Eastfield Lane,
Dunnington, York. The Head of Planning and Development
Services gave a presentation on the application.

In response to questions from members, officers noted that:
e The acceptable number of dwellings per hectare was
determined on case specific basis.
¢ Allocations within in the Local Plan for number of houses
in an area that could be developed were indicative, not
definitive.



Page 5

e The reasons they determined the application was not
premature were detailed in the report.

e Proposed road improvements included in the development
were to continue the 30mph section of road across the
site’s frontage while adding access points and pathways.

e The emergency services were consulted during the
application process, and did not raise any concerns
around emergency access.

e The Council’s landscape architect had not raised objection
to the removal of hedgerows on the application, but had
merely commented on it.

e There had been an identified need for smaller one or two
bedroom affordable housing provision through the
Strategic Housing Market Assessment, which was why
they had been prioritised in this application.

e The first 3 stages of archaeology work on the site were for
creating a methodology, carrying out field work and then a
report back to the archaeologist. If these findings justify
further archaeological work, then there was a possibility
for two more stages

¢ When the report noted a ‘high level of local need’ for
housing, this was referring to the local area of Dunnington
as determined by the Strategic Housing Land Availability
Assessment.

e |t was not considered necessary or reasonable to close
Eastfield Lane as part of the development. However, it
had been agreed with the applicant to impose a no-right
turn from the development down Eastfield Lane. The
junction was not considered dangerous by officers.

e Education officers had not raised concerns around that
there was no physical additional space to teach more
pupils at Dunnington School.

¢ |t was not considered reasonable for the Construction
Environment Management Plan for the development to be
brought to the ward councillors and local parish council for
consultation before approval since the decision was solely
to local planning authority’s to make, although they could
be consulted.

[Clir Barker joined the meeting at 17:29]

Public Participation

Peter Moorhouse spoke in objection to the application. He
stated that he was opposed to building on the green belt, he felt



Page 6

there were inadequate plans for the drainage of surface water
and sewage, and he felt the site was poorly laid-out and
constituted overdevelopment. He spoke on housing density, and
he felt that the proposed development was too high for the
surrounding area and would create precedent. Mr Moorhouse
also referred to the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF), and stated that he believed the application to be
premature and not in compliance with policy.

In response to questions from members Mr Moorhouse stated
that he felt the net area should be used to calculate housing
density, not the total area.

Clir Rowley, Ward Councillor spoke in objection to the
application. He stated the although the Local Plan sought to
change the designation of the land the application proposed to
develop, it had not yet been approved and was still green belt
land, which the NPPF sought to preserve. Cllir Rowley did not
believe that there were exceptional circumstances to justify the
application and he also felt that there were several brownfield
sites in the city which would be better locations for development.

In response to questions from members, Clir Rowley stated:
e He was not party to discussions of the local plan by the
previous administrations.
e He believed that there were adequate greenfield sited
within the A64, and that if the green belt had to be built on,
he would prefer it was done within that boundary.

Cllr Andrew Dykes, on behalf of Dunnington Parish Council
spoke in objection to the application. He stated that he felt the
application was premature, and that since the local and
neighbourhood plans had not been finalised the land should be
regarded as fully part of the green belt. Clir Dykes also raised
concerns around the sustainability of the new development, and
highlighted its distance from village transport links to the city
centre, which he described as already inadequate. Finally, he
expressed the long-standing opposition of the local parish
council to building on this site.

Stuart Natkus, agent for the applicant, spoke in support of the
application. He stated that housing density was a statistic which
was easily manipulated, and suggested the members judge the
application by examining the plans. He explained that the land
in question was within the general area of the green belt, but



Page 7

had never been specifically examined until the emerging local
plan determined that it ought not to be in the green belt.
Furthermore, he stated that the development would not
negatively impact any of the five stated purposes of green belt
land stated within the NPPF. Finally, he stated that brownfield
sites did not exist in numbers large enough to meet York’s need
for housing.

In response to questions from members, Mr Natkus stated:

e The applicants had been promoting the development of
the land in question for at least 5 years.

e The applicants did not wait to submit the application under
after the local plan was adopted because he believed it
unlikely that it would be fully confirmed for at least two
years.

e That he would be willing to discuss the creation of a
Construction Environment Management Plan.

e That demand for affordable housing was 30% higher in
York than the average, and there was also a high demand
for smaller one or two bedroom properties, which
necessitated the increased housing density.

e He could not comment on the specific amounts of services
charge which might be imposed for public open spaces.

e That the houses were likely to be heated with gas.

[Break between 18:10 and 18:20]

In response to further questions from members, officers noted:

e That they had yet to receive notification from planning
inspectors about the timeframe of the local plan, but that
Issues relating to the principle and boundaries of the
green belt were due to be discussed.

e That they considered the housing density of the proposed
to development to be acceptable and not vastly out of
character with its surroundings.

e They felt that the special circumstances of the proposed
application outweighed any potential harm it may cause.

During debate, it was moved by ClIr Waters, and seconded by
Clir Doughty to defer the application until the objections made
against it could be resolved in discussion of the local plan. A
vote was taken, with two members in favour and eleven against.
The motion was defeated.



50.

Page 8

Following further debate, it was moved by Clir Pavlovic and
seconded by Clir Melly to approve the application subject to the
conditions set out below. A vote was taken, with nine members
in favour, three against and one abstention.

After members voted, the Chair commented that he abstained
because he would never vote for development on green belt
land, which some other members considered to pre-determine
him for future applications.

The motion carried and it was therefore:

Resolved:

I That the application be approved subject to the
conditions in the report with below amendments and
completion of a Section 106 Agreement.

ii.  That amendments to conditions 11, 12 and 19 be made
as outlined in the additional information, condition 9 be
amended to remove referral to two storey extension,
that the Traffic Regulation Order be amended to ensure
that there is no right turn out of the site and that the
landscaping condition be amended to ensure that
landscaping in public areas be maintained for the
lifetime of the development.

lii.  That the Section 106 Agreement and final wording of
the conditions be delegated to the Head of Planning
and Development Services and Chair and Vice Chair of
the Planning Committee.

[Cllr Daubeney left the meeting at 19:05]

[Break between 19:05 and 19:10]

Land South Of The Residence, Bishopthorpe Road, York
[21/01758/FULM]

Members considered an application for the erection in
Micklegate Ward of a single and two storey residential
healthcare building (use class C2), to include 40 bed spaces,
associated treatment rooms, car parking, servicing areas and
landscaping. The Head of Planning and Development Services
gave a presentation on the application.

[ClIr Cuthbertson joined the meeting at 19:10]



Page 9

In response to questions from members, officers stated that:

e That it was difficult to attempt to exactly match the brick
colour of surrounding historical buildings, therefore it was
thought safer to choose contrasting colours.

e The roads in the development will be primarily paved with
tarmac.

e They did not consider access to the proposed
development to be an issue, and that the Highways
department had not raised any objections to the
application.

Public Participation

Johnny Hayes spoke in objection to the application. He spoke
on the historical significance of the site in question and stated
that although he had initially supported the proposal, he now felt
that the design was not of high quality and did not respect its
historical surroundings. He felt that the site was too small for a
development of this nature and urged members to discuss
deferring the application until physical site visits could be begun
again.

Mary Urmston spoke in objection to the application. She stated
that although the proposal was lower in height than previous
applications for this site had been, she believed its negative
impact on the area would be great. Ms Urmston felt that Historic
England had not been consulted until very late into the
application process and that symmetry in the design should
have be insisted upon, as with previous applications. She raised
concerns about the amount of open space that the development
would build on and stated that the site was too small for
proposals. Finally, she felt the design was inappropriate and
expressed the need for conditions around lighting.

Celia Smith stated that she was not speaking in objection to the
application, but raising concerns about aspects of it. She felt
that the application contained a number of flaws, raising
concerns about a lack of amenities, its large footprint, and she
felt it was not in keeping with the character of the local area. Ms
Smith believed that the roadway would not be appropriate for
the development and had concerns about drainage, flooding
and noise pollution. She asked that if the application were
approved that the advice from Historic England around
landscaping and green space be adopted.



Page 10

Keeley Mitchell spoke in support of the application support on
behalf of The Disabilities Trust, the proposed occupier. She
stated that residential care at The Retreat, which housed 40
vulnerable patients and employed 145 staff was closing, and
they had been searching for alternative facilities for years. Ms
Mitchell stated that if approval was not granted, the patients
would have to be moved out of York and all staff would lose
their jobs. She emphasised the need for a female-only ward in
York with rising demand, and explained that patients were no
threat to the public, but needed extensive support from health
professionals.

In response to questions from members, Ms Mitchell stated that:

e There had been 36 patient rooms at The Retreat, while
the proposed development had 40.

e While many residents were from York and surrounding
areas, there was no formal catchment area they were
drawn from. It was explained that patients brought in from
other areas were funded by their original local authority.

e There were large communal spaces for residents, as well
as specialist rooms for those at high risk, e.g. of suicide.

e The female-only ward was one of only a few in the UK.

e A built for purpose development better served the needs
of residents and staff than a historic building such as The
Retreat, especially in facilities such as the gym and
sensory garden.

e The shift pattern operated was a day and night shift of 12
hours each, with fewer staff on duty at night than in the
day. Some staff such as administrators, speech therapists
and psychologists worked Monday to Friday, 9-5.

e Staff were encouraged to walk or cycle to work for their
own health and wellbeing, and the proposed provision of
parking spaces had been made clear to them.

e The frequency of visits to residents varied greatly, but they
were organised to not overlap as much as possible. Video
conferencing technology was also being encouraged as
an alternative to in person visits.

Carys Swanick support spoke in support of the application on
behalf of the Residence (York) Management Company Ltd. She
stated that the proposed development would bring benefits to all
residents, and she supported it in principle, but she raised
concerns around the submitted plans, which she stated were
inaccurate with regards to the number and position of trees on
the site. Ms Swanick requested that members add an



Page 11

informative note to the applicant requesting a collaborative
approach to create a tree screen boundary for the site. She also
requested reconsideration of the road surface, as she believed
the planned black tarmac was not in keeping with the local
surroundings. Ms Swanick also requested a condition on
requiring a full noise survey report.

In response to questions from members, Ms Swanick stated that
she recognised that cost was a factor in determining the road
surface, but felt that preserving the character of the
conservation area was more important.

Officers noted that the tree boundary mentioned by Ms Swanick
was not related to the application, but was a previous issue
related to the developer of The Residence and was not within
the boundary of the land in question.

Joanna Gabrilatsou, Agent for the Applicant, spoke in support of
the application. She stated that the site was ideal for this
development, and this application was different to previously
refused applications for the land which had been opposed by
local groups, while this application was supported by the
community. She further stated that the development was in
keeping with the character of the area while incorporating
everything it needed to serve residents. Ms Gabrilatsou also
spoke on York’s history in providing care for those with mental
ill-health and stated that this development would continue that
legacy. She believed that noise impact of the development
would be minimal and stated that spaces for electric cars and
bikes would be provided. Finally, she stated that the proposed
development met the objectives of the NPPF and would protect
jobs in the city.

She was joined by a number of colleagues to answer questions
from members regarding the application, during which they
stated that:

e The visual impact of the tarmac will be reduced as the car
park will be full most of the time.

e Conversations around the boundary as mentioned by
previous public speakers were ongoing, and the
applicants were committed to resolving the issue.

e The roof was not fully sedum because some parts had to
be accessed by maintenance staff.



Page 12

e The design of the building was created with the needs of
residents and staff in mind, but was not solely based on
any ‘NHS aesthetic’.

In response to further questions from members, officers noted
that:

¢ The Retreat had 48 parking spaces, while the proposed
development would have 47. A travel survey of staff
showed that 96 travelled by car, which when the shift
pattern was accounted for meant the car park was the
correct size.

¢ |t would not be reasonable for members to members to
attach an informative note regarding the tree boundary
since it was not within the bounds of the land for
development.

e Historically the land was occupied by warehouses which
were described as white industrial buildings typical of the
1970s.

e The Public Protection Officer not raised concerns about
lighting around the development and the Ecology Officer
had not raised concerns around the effect of lighting on
local wildlife.

Following debate, it was moved by ClIr Crawshaw and
seconded by ClIr Pavlovic to approve the application subject to
the below conditions. A vote was taken with thirteen members in
favour. The motion was carried unanimously and it was
therefore:

Resolved:

I That the application be approved subject to the
conditions set out in the report.

ii.  That condition 16 be amended to retain landscaping for
the lifetime of the development and an additional
condition be attached with regard to external lighting to
ensure it is acceptable in terms of protected species
and the conservation area.



Page 13

ClIr T Fisher, Chair
[The meeting started at 4.30 pm and finished at 8.36 pm].



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Planning Committee
Date 4 November 2021

Present Councillors Fisher (Chair), Ayre, Barker,

D'Agorne, Daubeney, Doughty, Douglas,
Fenton, Hollyer, Looker, Melly, Pavlovic
(Vice-Chair), Warters, Waudby and
Fitzpatrick (Substitute for Cllr Lomas)

Apologies Councillors Lomas

51.

52.

Declarations of Interest

As a point of order the Vice Chair reported that he had received
a number of complaints concerning the comments made by the
Chair at the meeting held on 9 October 2021. The Vice Chair
read out a statement outlining the concerns. The Chair advised
that he had taken independent legal advice and noted that he
had voted in favour of applications in the Green Belt on four
occasions. He clarified what he meant to imply at the previous
meeting and noted that he had abstained from the vote on the
Dunnington planning application at that meeting. He noted that
he had no history of predetermined Green Belt applications and
in response to a question from the Vice Chair confirmed that the
Monitoring Officer had given advice in which she confirmed that
it was for the Chair to decide what his position is.

Members were asked to declare, at this point in the meeting,
any personal interests, not included on the Register of Interests,
or any prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests they may
have in respect of business on the agenda. Clir Looked noted
that as Lord Mayor she had opened the building site at the Gas
Works and was presented with the gift of a trowel at the
opening. Clir Fitzpatrick noted that at residents’ request she had
called in an earlier application at the Gas Works site. The Chair
declared a personal non pecuniary interest in agenda items 4a
and 4b as a retired teacher and soon to be volunteer at
Huntington School which would be a beneficiary of S106
funding.

Minutes



53.

54.

55.

Page 16

In response to a question from a Member, the Democracy
Officer confirmed that the minutes of the meeting held on 7
October 2021 would be approved at the meeting on 2
December 2021.

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 2
September 2021 be approved and signed by the
Chair as a correct record.

Public Participation

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at
the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on
general matters within the remit of the Planning Committee.

Appeals

Site to the west of the A1237 and south of North Lane
Huntington York [18/00017/OQUTM]

This matter was reported to Planning Committee following the
submission of an appeal against non-determination to the
Secretary of State by the applicant. Members were requested
to consider the report and to endorse the approach to be
presented to the Planning Inspectorate as the Council’s case at
the public inquiry.

The application was for outline consent with full details of means
of access. It proposed a residential development of circa 970
dwellings with associated demolition, infrastructure works, open
space, primary school, community facilities and convenience
store (use class Al) on land west of Monks Cross Link Road
and a country park with drainage infrastructure east of Monks
Cross Link Road. It was submitted with the intention to align the
determination of the Outline application with the adoption of the
Local Plan.

The Head of Planning and Development Services noted a
correction to paragraph 5.3 of the report. In response to
guestions from Members, Officers clarified that:



Page 17

They did not have the information regarding the potential for
the middle part of the development to be used for

The cycle access link was under the control of the applicant.
The planning application was submitted in 2018 and there
had been issues with the Local Plan and technical issues
with highways.

The applicant would be able to provide the information
needed to show that policies HW2, HW3, HW4, HW7 and D3
had been met. It was a complicated application due to the
number of complexities.

The master plan was indicative of whether the overall
housing densities were similar to that of estates in the
immediate area. The density was considered to be
acceptable.

The applicant was proposing an area of self builds equivalent
to 49 homes.

At present highways were not seeking to provide LTN 1/20
for the link road.

Presently there were no proposals for vehicular access from
North Lane.

Highways had asked for parking provision for public open
spaces on the site.

The council could secure a contribution for bus services but
did not have agreement on this from the developers.

The offsite contribution for Gypsy and Traveller pitches was
consistent with other decisions that had been made. These
were looked at on a case by case basis.

There had not been any additional information regarding area
5 being designated as a play area. The detailed layout would
be included as part of the reserved matters application.

The country park was required to mitigate the impact on
Strensall Common.

The location of the western hedge line on the boundary was
explained.

Regarding questions around the provision of shops, there
were highways issues unresolved which would be addressed
at the public inquiry.

A caveat for the provision of sufficient shops and amenities
was not unreasonable and would continue to be requested.
A request for health provision would be subject to
discussions with the NHS and this had not been provided as
part of the application at that stage.

Public Speakers




Page 18

Geoff Beacon spoke in objection to the application on the
climate aspects of the development in relation to the declaration
of a climate emergency. He suggested alternative uses for the
land on the site.

David Gregg (Chairman of Shepherd Group Brass Band) spoke
on their use of one of Portakabin's buildings adjacent to the
south west boundary for Brass Band rehearsals creating noise
that may encroach on new residents. He requested that a
further noise assessment be carried out on Tuesdays or Fridays
when the band was at its loudest. He was asked and confirmed
that he would be happy to work with officers on this.

CllIr Orrell, Ward Councillor for Huntington and New Earswick
Ward, spoke on behalf of Councillors for the Ward. He noted
that the principle for the development was made in 2018 and t
was supported by the Huntington Neighbourhood Plan. He
noted the objection to the exit on North Lane and asked for
stringent conditions on lorry routes and for the protection of
biodiversity.

Members were then given the opportunity to ask further
guestions to officers who were asked and advised that they
were trying to resolve whether the changes to shared pedestrian
and cycleway between the two new junctions on Monks Cross
Link road would be updated in line with LTN 1/20.

It was moved by Clir Looker and seconded by ClIr Barker that
the Committee endorse the conclusions of the report as
recommended by officers. Members agreed to include a
reference to opposition to North Lane being used as an access
point and a condition regarding sustainable travel, and the
provision of amenities as detailed at paragraph 5.21 of the
committee report. It was clarified by officers that the policy
allowed developers to provide offsite provision for Traveller
pitches. A vote was taken with 13 Members in support, one
against and one abstention.

The motion carried and it was therefore:

Resolved:

I.  That Committee endorse the conclusions of the report,
with the addition of a reference to opposition to North
Lane being used as an access point and a condition
regarding sustainable travel, and the provision of



Page 19

amenities as detailed at paragraph 5.21 of the committee
report and that subject to the satisfactory resolution of the
Issues identified in 6.2 they will be presented to the
Planning Inspectorate as part of the Council’s Statement
of Case at the forthcoming appeal.

ii. That delegated authority is given to the Chief Planner,
having regard to the heads of terms set out in this report,
addendums and/or Planning Committee minutes, to
negotiate and complete a document containing obligations
pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended) in order to meet the
requirement of the Planning Inspector.

Reasons:

The proposed development was located within the general
extent of the Green Belt; however the emerging Local Plan
strategy set out that the land had been allocated for
development as a strategic housing site to help meet the overall
needs of the city. The 2018 Draft Plan and its evidence base
regarding the proposed Green Belt boundaries and housing
need were advanced and in the process of examination. York
did not have a 5 year housing land supply and therefore the
proposed housing was a benefit that carried significant weight in
decision making. It was considered the lack of a 5 year housing
land supply, along with the delivery of affordable housing and
delivery of key infrastructure, would, subject to the satisfactory
resolution of transport, highway and access issues, clearly
outweigh the totality of identified harm and very special
circumstances would exist in this case. Further, it was
considered to be no case for refusing the scheme on
prematurity grounds.

The impact of the proposed development on the wider highway
network was yet to be fully determined, following initially
proposed pedestrian and cycle links in and out of the site via
Garth Road and Alpha Court, to the west and south being
removed from application, the trip rates adjusted to take account
of improved bus provision and walking and cycling rates, were
not considered to be representative of the likely trip rates for the
proposed development site. There was also a reliance on
committed highway schemes (A1237 Ring Road/Strensall
Junction 1, A1237/North Lane/Monks Cross Link Junction 2) to
be delivered by City of York Council, however whilst these
schemes were progressing, there remained a risk that the



55a

Page 20

junction improvements may not be delivered, or they may take
longer than anticipated. The transport assessment had not
assessed the impact of the proposed development on the
existing A1237 junctions. As such, currently the proposed
development did not accord with NPPF policy regarding
promoting sustainable transport, in particular paragraphs 110,
111 and 112.

[The meeting adjourned from 17:51 to 18:00]

Huntington South Moor, New Lane, Huntington, York
[21/00305/0QUTM]

This matter was reported to Planning Committee following the
submission of an appeal against non-determination to the
Secretary of State by the applicant. Members were requested
to consider the report and to endorse the reasons for refusal
that will be presented to the Planning Inspectorate as the
Council’s case at the public inquiry, the hearing opening on 11th
January 2022.

The application was for outline planning permission with all
matters reserved except access, for circa 300 residential
dwellings, associated landscaping, public open space, and the
formation of two new vehicle accesses from New Lane.

The Head of Planning and Development Services gave an

update noting that two letters in support of the application had

been received. In answer to a question from a Member she

noted that there had been an up to date sustainability appraisal.

Members asked a number of questions to which officers

responded that:

e The site was considered to remain as a Green Belt site.

e There were technical and highways issues within the
application that had not been resolved.

e The application decision date passed in July and the
Applicant had appealed non determination.

Public Speakers

David Jobling (Vice Chair of Huntington Parish Council) spoke
in objection to the application on behalf of the Parish Council.
He explained the history and three core principles of the
Huntington Neighbourhood Plan and selection of sites within it.




Page 21

The noted the legal standing of the plan and the rejection of the
site within it.

Gwen Swinburn spoke in support of the application with its
access to local amenities, and cycling and walking access to the
city. She noted the need to provide homes for new arrivals to
the city and with reference to S106 expressed concern that
there were no 4 or 5 bedroom houses in light of the need for
homes for larger families of refugees. In response to Member
questions she noted Lib Dem support for the 970 homes and
that concerning the golf club being open to everyone, that it was
an elite sport.

CliIr Orrell (Ward Councillor) spoke on the application on behalf
of the Ward Councillors for Huntington and New Earswick. He
noted that the site was in the Green Belt, was not included in
the Local Plan for development and was not supported by the
Huntington Neighbourhood Plan for development. He noted
there had been a number of developments in recent years and
that Huntington was a densely built area.

ClIr Hollyer moved the officer recommendation to endorse the
reasons to contest the appeal. This was seconded by Clir Ayre.
During debate a number of views were expressed, during which
the Chair clarified that the Neighbourhood Plan was part of the
development plan for the area. A vote was taken with 8
Members in favour, 5 against and 2 abstentions.

The motion carried and it was therefore:

Resolved:

I.  That Committee endorse the reasons to contest the
appeal that may be presented to the Planning
Inspectorate as part of the Council’s Statement of Case at
the forthcoming appeal.

ii. That delegated authority is given to the Chief Planner,
having regard to the heads of terms set out in this report,
addendums and/or Planning Committee minutes, to
negotiate and complete a document containing obligations
pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended) in order to meet the
requirement of the Planning Inspector.

Reasons:



56.

Page 22

I.  The proposed development was located within the Green
Belt. It would constitute inappropriate development in the
Green Belt as set out in Section 13 of the National
Planning Policy Framework. Inappropriate development is
by definition harmful to the Green Belt. The proposal
would result in a permanent detrimental impact on
openness of the Green Belt due to its scale and location
and would conflict with the Green Belt's purposes, as
identified in NPPF paragraphs 137 and 138.

li.  The site was not one which has been identified for
development in the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018
(which is at examination stage). The benefits put forward
by the applicant did not, either individually or cumulatively,
clearly outweigh the totality of the identified harm and
therefore do not amount to very special circumstances
necessary to justify the proposal for the purposes of the
NPPF.

lii. The proposal was considered contrary to advice within the
National Planning Policy Framework, in particular section
13 'Protecting Green Belt Land’, and the following local
policies: Huntington Neighbourhood Plan 2021, policy H14
‘Green Belt’; the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018 spatial
strategy as detailed in policies SS1, and SS2 and Green
Belt policy GB1, and the 2005 Draft Local Plan policies
SP2, SP3 and GBL1.

iv. The impact of the proposed development on the wider
highway network, and highway safety was yet to be
determined. The required level of mitigation in this
respect was yet to be determined and agreed. As such
the proposed development may not accord with NPPF
policy regarding promoting sustainable transport, in
particular paragraphs 110, 111 and 112.

[The meeting adjourned from 18:43 to 18:50]

Plans List

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Head of
Planning and Development Services, relating to the following
planning applications, outlining the proposals and relevant



56a

Page 23

policy considerations and setting out the views of consultees
and officers.

Former Gas Works Heworth Green York [21/00854/REMM]

Members considered a Major Reserved Matters Application
from Heworth Green Development for appearance and
landscaping - Zone A only for 119 dwellings and a
commercial/community use unit. Ltd at Former Gas Works
Heworth Green York.

The Head of Planning and Development Services gave a
presentation on the application showing the proposed section
plans and visualisations. She advised that there had been an
updated landscape masterplan and amended conditions to
Condition 2 (tree planting), Condition 6 (cycle parking), and
deletion of Condition 8 (travel plan) to be replaced with an
informative.

Officers were asked and clarified that:

e The community space was established during the outline
stage of the application.

e The intention was for dark red/brown bricks as shown in the
visualisation.

e The widths of the paths for use by pedestrians and cyclists
were explained.

Public Speakers

Tim Ross, Agent for the Applicant, spoke in support for the
Applicant. He noted that the application was a key part of
bringing together the former gasworks following the 2020
planning consent. He added that if approved, building would
commence as soon as possible and he noted the key merits of
the application.

Tim Ross was joined by his colleagues Stephen Clewes
(Architect), Mike Philips (Project Manager) Mark Shilton
(Landscape Architect) to answer questions on the application. In
answer to questions from Members, they explained that:

e There was a condition in the report detailing samples of
building materials. The types of bricks to be used would be in
line with the buildings in the area.

e The only area of tarmac was in the car park serving zone C.



Page 24

e Regarding drainage there were attenuation tanks in zones A
and C.

e The intention was the community/community space in zone A
would be a pocket park.

e There was one access road that ran around zone B and it
was anticipated that cyclists would enter via Heworth Green.
There were links to the Sustrans routes.

e The level of detail regarding the sustainability of materials
used for car parks had not been reached yet.

At this point in response to questions from Members, Officers
advised that it would not be reasonable to put in a condition
regarding the use of the commercial/community space in zone A
as there were reserved matters yet to be determined.
Concerning the number of disabled car parking spaces, Officers
were asked and noted that there was no specified percentage in
the council policy for disabled spaces and car parking standards
were included in the 2018 draft Local Plan. Referring to the
proposed site plan, Officers demonstrated where the disabled
parking spaces were located in zone A. It was noted that there
had been no objections from highways officers regarding the
number of disabled car parking spaces.

Members noted that when the application was approved at
outline stage, there was no opportunity to state that the
commercial/community space should be for community use.
Officers detailed the outlined planning permission and
demonstrated the 130m?2 for commercial/community use on the
proposed floor plan. It was clarified that commercial use
referred to retail/restaurant/café use.

CllIr Hollyer moved approval of the application. This was
seconded by Clir Daubeney. Following debate vote was taken
with unanimous approval of the application. The motion carried
and it was therefore:

Resolved: That the application be approved subject to the
including an additional condition stating that the
disabled car parking had to be policy compliant and
the following amended/deleted conditions:

Amended Condition 2 — Tree planting details

Prior to installation of the approved permanent hard and soft
landscaping all tree planting details shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.




Page 25

Amended Condition 6 — Cycle Parking

The cycle stores shall be covered and secure. The cycle
maintenance equipment (as specified in the Travel Plan version
1.3 section 4.3) shall be provided in the cycle stores for each
building.

Deleted Condition 8 - Travel Plan replaced with the following
informative

Informative: The developer is asked to note that the outline
permission (condition 30) requires that each reserved matters
application for any building includes a site specific Travel Plan,
which shall be approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority prior to first occupation of the relevant phase.

Notwithstanding the travel plans issued to date, it is required
that an updated travel plan be issued for this phase, for formal
approval, which provides for the following -

That in advance of each annual monitoring survey (which are
required for a period of 5 years following full occupation of the
relevant phase or building), the required response rate, or
alternative means of measuring travel habits, is to be approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The monitoring shall
thereafter take place in accordance with the approved details.

Within two months of the completion of the travel surveys, the
Developer Travel Plan Coordinator shall prepare a Monitoring
Report containing the following:

e Survey methodology and results

e Qualitative feedback

e An analysis on the effectiveness of the Travel Plan

e Proposals for future measures

The report shall be submitted to the Council for discussion and
agreement.

The annual reviews shall also explore and deliver (subject to
demand) space for a second car club car on site.

Reasons:

I.  The reserved matters application provided the outstanding
details following the outline planning permission. The
amount and type of development proposed and the
landscaping principles accord with the outline permission.
The application detailed the design and appearance of the



Page 26

buildings and the landscaping. The details accorded with
the expectations established at outline stage and national
policy within the NPPF and Publication Draft Local Plan
2018 policy regarding design and landscaping.

. Planning conditions related to
the scheme are contained in the outline permission.
Conditions in the application related to the detailed design
and landscaping. A condition was also included to give
clarity regarding Travel Plan implementation, ongoing
monitoring and, if necessary the additional measures to be
engaged should the travel plan targets not be met.

56b  Former Gas Works, Heworth Green, York [21/00855/REMM]

Members considered a major reserved matters application from
Heworth Green Development Ltd for appearance and
landscaping - Zone C only for 96 dwellings from at the Former
Gas Works, Heworth Green, York.

The Head of Planning and Development Services gave a
presentation on the application showing the proposed site layout
and elevation floor plans. She noted corrections to paragraphs
5.15 and 5.16 in the committee report and then detailed the
updated landscape masterplan and amended conditions to
Condition 2 (tree planting), Condition 6 (cycle parking), and
deletion of Condition 8 (travel plan) to be replaced with an
informative.

Officers were asked and clarified that:

¢ Regarding the temporary Sustrans connection, long term
cyclists would use the road around the public open space,
and as land was needed for the construction of zone B, a
temporary connection was needed.

e Trees were protected for 5 years by a condition in the outline
planning permission.

e The future maintenance of the dutch style paving would
depend on the road adoption process.

Public Speakers

Tim Ross, Agent for the Applicant, spoke in support for the
Applicant. He noted that the application was another key part of
bringing the contaminated site forward as part of the 2018




Page 27

planning permission. He noted that the new Sustrans link and
phone mast had planning permission and that if approved,
construction would commence as soon as possible. He listed
the key merits of the application.

Tim Ross was joined by his colleagues Stephen Clewes
(Architect), Mike Philips (Project Manager) Mark Shilton
(Landscape Architect) to answer questions on the application.
They were asked and explained that:

e The brickwork used would be conditioned. Additional
elevation drawings had been provided which stated what
bricks would be used.

e Additional disabled car parking spaces could be possible at
the expense of the loss of trees. Regarding designated
existing car parking spaces as disabled spaces, this would
be to the detriment of other spaces due to the space needed
for the parking spaces to be accessible.

At this point, a Member requested as a matter of urgency the
development of a disabled car parking policy. Officers advised
that additional spaces could be conditioned. Tim Ross was
asked and explained that other Local Authorities often
requested that 10% of car parking spaces be for disabled
parking. He confirmed that zone A and C provided nine electric
vehicle charging spaces with zone C providing passive provision
for electric vehicle charging. He added that there would be
ducting in place for this.

Officers then answered further questions to officers as follows:

e A further four disabled car parking spaces could be
conditioned and this would be at a loss of other car parking
spaces. The outline planning permission was noted and
Members were informed that additional car parking spaces
would be at the expense of soft landscaping. The Committee
could ask for a car parking scheme (whilst complying with
outline planning permission).

It was clarified that the first sentence paragraph 5.15 of the
committee report should state that the outline planning
permission stated that the number of car parking spaces for
Zone C was at least 60 but allowed for a further 10 spaces
across the site overall.



Page 28

Cllr Warters moved deferral of the application. This was
seconded by Clir Melly. A vote was taken with 5 for and 9
against. The motion fell.

Cllr Ayre moved approval (delegated Chair and Vice Chair in
consultation with officers) with amended/deleted conditions
detailed in the committee update, and the addition of the
maximum number of disabled car parking spaces being reached
whilst maintaining at least 60 car parking spaces
notwithstanding the details and the requirement to provide a
scheme of parking. This was seconded by ClIr Pavlovic. A vote
was taken with 14 for and one against.

It was therefore

Resolved: That the approval be delegated to the Chair and Vice
Chair in consultation with officers, subject to:

I.  An additional condition on the maximum
number of disabled car parking spaces being
reached whilst maintaining at least 60 car
parking spaces notwithstanding the details and
the requirement to provide a scheme of
parking.

ii.  The following amended/deleted conditions:

Amended Condition 2 — Tree planting details

Prior to installation of the approved permanent hard and soft
landscaping all tree planting details shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Amended Condition 6 — Cycle Parking

The cycle stores shall be covered and secure. The cycle
maintenance equipment (as specified in the Travel Plan version
1.3 section 4.3) shall be provided in the cycle stores for each
building.

Deleted Condition 8 - Travel Plan replaced with the following
informative

Informative: The developer is asked to note that the outline
permission (condition 30) requires that each reserved matters
application for any building includes a site specific Travel Plan,
which shall be approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority prior to first occupation of the relevant phase.




Page 29

Notwithstanding the travel plans issued to date, it is required
that an updated travel plan be issued for this phase, for formal
approval, which provides for the following -

That in advance of each annual monitoring survey (which are
required for a period of 5 years following full occupation of the
relevant phase or building), the required response rate, or
alternative means of measuring travel habits, is to be approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The monitoring shall
thereafter take place in accordance with the approved details.

Within two months of the completion of the travel surveys, the
Developer Travel Plan Coordinator shall prepare a Monitoring
Report containing the following:

e Survey methodology and results

¢ Qualitative feedback

e An analysis on the effectiveness of the Travel Plan

e Proposals for future measures

The report shall be submitted to the Council for discussion and
agreement.

The annual reviews shall also explore and deliver (subject to
demand) space for a second car club car on site.

Reasons:

I. This reserved matters application provided the
outstanding details following the outline planning
permission. The amount and type of development
proposed and the landscaping principles accord with the
outline permission. This application detailed the design
and appearance of the building and the landscaping. The
details accorded with national policy within the NPPF, the
National Design Guide and Publication Draft Local Plan
2018 policy regarding design and landscaping.

ii. Planning conditions related to the scheme are contained
in the outline permission. Conditions in this application
related to the detailed design and landscaping.

Chair's Remarks

A Member requested a return to onsite site visits. It was
confirmed that this was being investigated. A Member



Page 30

welcomed the remote site visits via Zoom.

ClIr Fisher,Chair
[The meeting started at 4.30 pm and finished at 8.16 pm].



Page 31 Agenda Item 4a

COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 2.12.2021 Ward: Guildhall

Team: East Area Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel

Reference: 21/01371/FULM

Application at: Land At Cocoa West Wigginton Road York

For: Demolition of gatehouse and erection of up to 302 dwellings (Use

Class C3), creche (Use Class E) and associated access, car
parking, public open space, landscaping, associated infrastructure
and drainage, and other associated works.

By: Latimer Developments Limited
Application Type: Major Full Application
Target Date: 14 September 2021

Recommendation: Approve subject to Section 106 Agreement
1.0 PROPOSAL

Background

1.1 In 2006, Nestle Rowntree determined to upgrade and improve facilities in the
northern part of their site, leaving redevelopment opportunities on the southern part.
This prompted the Council to designate the Nestle / Rowntree Conservation Area in
December 2007, centred on one of the oldest sections of the Nestlé / Rowntree factory
on the east side of the site; the Almond and Cream former factory buildings, along
with the land to the front, which includes gardens, and the grade Il listed Joseph
Rowntree Memorial Library.

1.2 This application concerns the land to the west of the retained factory buildings,
extending to Wigginton Road, cleared in advance of redevelopment, and outside of
the conservation area.

1.3 Nestle South is allocated for housing in the emerging Local Plan. The
anticipations for the site, informed by prospective developers at the time, are detailed
in policies SS15 and H1 of the 2018 Publication Draft Local Plan - allocation ST17
with an estimated yield of 263 dwellings in phase 1 (factory conversion) and up to 600
dwellings on the west side of the site.

1.4 The scheme for re-development of the east side of the site has approval and
refurbishment of the factory buildings is due to commence imminently. The
permission 17/00284/FULM, was for apartments, re-use of library for community

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 32

space and a new convenience store by the access, created off Haxby Road. The
application was later varied by 19/01509/FULM, which altered the accommodation
mix, with 279 dwellings overall.

1.5 The west side of the site (the subject of this application) was previously subject to
outline application 18/01011/OUTM approved in 2020, for 425 dwellings (118 houses
/ 307 apartments) and retail space, créche, offices and community uses.

1.6 This application is made by Latimer Development, part of Clarion Housing Group,
who have now acquired the entire Nestle South site and are implementing the
consented conversion of the factory buildings.

Application site

1.7 The site previously contained the core of the original factory buildings, developed
between 1890 and 1940. These buildings have now been demolished. The former
site entrance from Wigginton Road, which crosses over Bootham Stray, remains. The
Stray land is within the application site; it runs alongside Wigginton Road and
accommodates hard-standing previously used for parking by Nestle and an access
into the operational factory. On the west side of Wigginton Road opposite the site
there are a row of 2 storey houses, allotments and a car park.

1.8 To the south of the site is the Sustrans pedestrian and cycle route which follows
the route of a former railway line. There are trees to each side of the route. Further
south 2 storey houses on Hambleton Terrace face the application site.

Proposals

1.9 The application is for 302 dwellings, 118 apartments and 184 houses.
There will also be a creche (124 sq m) within one of the two apartment blocks.
The accommodation mix would be as follows -

1-bed 53
2-bed 103
3-bed 101
4-bed 45

Car parking spaces for residential 284 (94%)

1.10 All dwellings meet the optional national space standards. Through Section 106
legal agreement the scheme will deliver 20% affordable housing in accordance with
local policy (H10). Clarion Housing Association Ltd is a registered affordable housing
provider and the applicant’s intention is to deliver 36% affordable housing on-site
overall, with a mix of social rent and shared ownership tenure.

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 33

1.11 The Council has determined that the scheme is not EIA development. A
screening opinion was undertaken under application 21/00952/EIASN.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

The NPPFE

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the Government’s
planning policies and how these should be applied. Key sections of the NPPF are as
follows -

2 Achieving sustainable development
4, Decision-making
5. Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
8 Promoting healthy and safe communities
9. Promoting sustainable transport

11. Making effective use of land

12. Achieving well-designed places

15. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
16. Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

The Publication Draft Local Plan

2.2 The Publication Draft City of York Local Plan 2018 (‘2018 DLP') was submitted for
examination on 25 May 2018. Phase 1 of the hearings into the examination of the
Local Plan took place in December 2019. Its policies can be afforded weight in
accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF. Key relevant Publication Draft Local Plan
2018 Policies are as follows -

DP2 Sustainable Development

DP3 Sustainable Communities

DP4 Approach to Development Management
SS15 Nestle South

H1 Housing Allocations

H2 Density of Residential Development

H3 Balancing the Housing Market

H4 Promoting Self and Custom House Building
H5 Gypsies and Travellers

H10 Affordable Housing

HW?2 New Community Facilities

HWA4 Childcare Provision

HW7 Healthy Places

D1 Placemaking

D2 Landscape and Setting

D4 Conservation Areas

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Gl6
CC2
ENV1
ENV2
ENV3
ENV4
ENV5
T1
DM1

Page 34

New Open Space Provision

Sustainable Design and Construction of New Development
Air Quality

Managing Environmental Quality

Land Contamination

Flood Risk

Sustainable Drainage

Sustainable Access

Infrastructure and Developer Contributions

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

INTERNAL

Design Conservation and Sustainable Development - Architect

3.1 Officer comment on the masterplan was as follows -

- There is a lack of soft landscape between this site and the car parking to the east.
- There is a high amount on on-street or adjacent street car parking. The presence

of parked cars will have an adverse effect on visual amenity.

- Alleyways would preferably be 2m wide with boundary walls each side (they are

1.5m wide with boundary fencing).

- Apartments - both apartment buildings are six storey, taller than ideal proportions
for buildings around the Neighbourhood Square and this will impact negatively on

the quality of this important open space.

- Details — planning condition recommended to ensure adequate architectural

detailing and scheme quality.

Design Conservation and Sustainable Development - Landscape

3.2 A significant number of existing trees would be removed to create the link to the
Sustrans route, including two category ‘B2’ groups of mixed deciduous trees and a
category ‘A1’ mature Birch. The link to the Sustrans route is supported, however the

loss of trees should be adequately mitigated.

3.3 The inclusion of small pocket parks were recommended at the end of certain
streets to complete the distribution of open space over the site, facilitate mature trees
and so areas feel part of the site rather than dead ends before the car park at the site
to the east. As recommended these have been included on the east side of the site.

Design Conservation and Sustainable Development - Ecology

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 35

3.4 Bats - bat roost potential within trees to be felled - from the information provided
no trees with bat roost potential will be significantly impacted during the required
felling works. No further survey works is therefore required.

3.5 Recommend a condition to secure ecological enhancements, with ongoing
management and to evidence biodiversity net gain.

Education
3.6 Officers have requested a combined partial contribution towards primary and

secondary places and a full contribution towards early years education provision as
set out in the table below.

No. of | Contribution | Facilities
places
Primary 21 £398,496 Yearsley Grove, Haxby Road and/or
Burton Green
Secondary | 21 £548,646 Joseph Rowntree
Early 31 £588,256 Within 1.5km of site
years

Highway Network Management

3.7 Officers have commented as follows —

- Transport Assessment - The impact on the wider network is not expected to
exceed the levels previously accepted under application 18/01011/OUTM.

- Access off Wigginton Road — The access design is required to cater adequately
for pedestrians and cyclists crossing the access road and entering the site. The
detail design can be conditioned to reflect LTN1/20 guidance. The ‘entry strip’
(where there would be a raised table in the road) looks inadequate to slow traffic.
It is asked the detall is agreed through condition.

- Alignment of bus route through the site — the design is for a one-way bus route
east to west. Highway Network Management preference is for a bus route, in future
to possibly travel both ways through the site.

- Travel Plan - A revised travel plan will need to be conditioned for approval once
occupation starts. Surveys should be every year for 5 years. A budget commitment
to implement the travel plan and deliver incentives is required, either embedded in
the Travel Plan or agreed as S106 contribution for the local authority to deliver the
travel plan measures and activities on behalf of the developer. A budget or
commitment is also required to implement extra measures if targets are not met.

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 36

Sustainable travel - S106 contributions towards sustainable travel will be required
- £400 per dwelling for bus/cycle incentives and between £100 and £200 per
dwelling for Car club. There should also be car club parking space on site.

Adoption — officers have confirmed that any parking within the highway cannot be
private (i.e. spaces can’t be individually allocated). A TRO (Traffic Regulation
Order) contribution for the site of £30k is requested. This would cover the works
in Wigginton Road and res-park / parking control within the site.

Cycle stores — should be LTN 1/20 compliant i.e. 1 cycle space per bedroom.

Public Protection

3.8 Officers commented as follows —

Land contamination - The site investigation recommends a 600mm thick clean
capping layer in gardens / landscaped areas and gas protection measures installed
in the buildings. Conditions recommended for a remediation strategy and
validation of such.

Noise — previous noise assessments were undertaken in 2016. A new assessment
Is recommended in case different plant / equipment has since been installed at the
factory to the north. A condition is recommended to ensure adequate noise levels
within the proposed dwellings. A condition is also recommended to require that
any plant/machinery at the créche does not cause disturbance to nearby dwellings.

Construction management — condition recommended to deal with
noise/dust/vibration and to control times of construction.

Air quality - impacts associated with the scheme considered as ‘negligible’ when
assessed in line with relevant guidance. Emission damage costs associated with
the development adequately addressed by measures proposed for the scheme. In
respect of electric vehicle charging points there should be sufficient capacity within
the electricity distribution board for EV charging at each dwelling with in-curtilage
parking. For other spaces there should be 5% active and 5% passive provision.
The facilities are required to allow mode 3 / 32A charging.

EXTERNAL

Conservation Areas Advisory Panel

3.9 No objection.

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 37

Guildhall Planning Panel

3.10 Consider this scheme an improvement over previous applications. Still
concerned about the distribution of the parking spaces (lack of spaces for apartments)
and level of traffic this development will generate.

Police Architectural Liaison Officer

3.11 No objection. The principles of crime prevention through environmental design
have been taken into consideration.

York Civic Trust

3.12 The trust have commented on the amount of car parking, bus services and the
amount and type of development proposed.

3.13 Obiject to this application in its current form and recommend that planning
permission be refused unless the number of car parking spaces is reduced to an
absolute maximum of 150 spaces, and a reserved route is protected through the site
for buses to operate in both directions. The number of spaces is excessive and
incompatible with the Council’s target of carbon neutral by 2030. More use of car club
should be facilitated.

3.14 The trust understand the Council has aspirations to improve bus access to the
hospital and route either the #1 or #5 services through the site. Disappointed the
scheme only accommodates a westbound bus route. A one way bus link would be
counterproductive, and lead to a loss of patronage. Concerned that the applicants do
not appear to appreciate that a bus service within the site will be of benefit to residents.

3.15 The housing mix offers good credentials for the creation of a diverse and dynamic
community. The scale and density of the proposal is suited to York and in particular
this site. Pleasing too is the location of the road ("Main Street") into the site from
Wigginton Road that offers views of the 1930s Cream Block of the former Rowntree's
factory. The emphasis on green space is welcomed. However recommend a closer
focus on the tangible or intangible historic associations of the site, as well as the
architectural prominence evident in the neighbouring Nestle Rowntree Conservation
Area, so as to raise Coca West's overall design and identity-making ambitions. Larger
public spaces also recommended.

Theatres Trust

3.16 Do not envisage any significant disruption due to construction. No objection to
the principle of redevelopment. The theatre is a Grade Il listed heritage asset run as
a charitable trust by the community and provides a facility from which local people
including future residents of the new development would benefit. As a venue with

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 38

clear proximity and historic link to the development site, consider there would be great
merit in seeking Section 106 receipts to help fund the theatre’s plans and current
works.

Yorkshire Water

3.17 The submitted 'Flood Risk Statement & Drainage Strategy' prepared by Civic
Engineers, dated June 2021 is acceptable. In summary, the report states that surface
water is proposed to discharge to the 375 mm diameter public surface water sewer
located to the north east of the site at a maximum rate of 16 (sixteen) litres per second.
Foul water is to discharge to the public sewer network within Haxby Road.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

4.1 There have been three objectors to the scheme. Issues raised are as follows -

- The number of proposed houses/apartments

- The height of the apartments and some of the houses

- The lack of car parking space

- Increase in volume of traffic on already congested roads

- Tree removal to enable an entrance to the cycle path. This is seriously going to
affect the environment of the area and will spoil the outlook from Hambleton
Terrace. (In tree survey these are within group 801. The trees are up to 16m high
and are given a B2 amenity value).

5.0 APPRAISAL

5.1 The key issues are as follows —

- Principle of the proposed use

- Design

- Impact on the Nestle Rowntree Conservation Area
- Highway network management and safety
- Ecology / Green Infrastructure

- Public Protection

- Residential amenity

- Sustainable design and construction

- Drainage / Flood Risk

- Education

- Open Space

Assessment

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 39

PRINCIPLE OF THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

5.2 The site is previously developed; on the brownfield land register and allocated for
housing in the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018 (2018 eLP). Residential led
development of the site is consistent with NPPF policy, in particular sections 5 which
relate to housing supply and section 11 which relates to making effective use of land.
The latter section advises that in decision-making, give substantial weight to the value
of using suitable brownfield land within settlements for homes and other identified
needs.

5.3 Section 3 of the 2018 eLP details the spatial strategy for York and the key areas
of change. Allocated housing sites over 5 ha in area each have their own policy. The
Nestle South site is allocated for housing in policy SS15. The key principles for
redevelopment of the site in SS15 are listed below and are discussed throughout this
section of the report.

I Achieve high quality urban design which recognises the distinctive character of
this part of the city and respects the character and fabric of the factory buildings
of distinction including those on the Haxby Road Frontage including the library.

. Conserve and enhance the special character and/or appearance of the
Nestle/Rowntree Factory Conservation Area.

iii.  Provide a mix of housing in line with the Council’'s most up to date Strategic
Housing Market Assessment.

Iv.  Maximise accessibility and connectivity to the city centre and local area by
pedestrian and cycle routes, including direct access from the site to the Foss
Island Cycle Path located alongside the site boundary.

V. Retain the mature trees along Haxby Road frontage and protect the setting of
the site.

vi. Maximise connectivity and linkages to surrounding green infrastructure
including Bootham Stray.

vii.  Appropriate access from both Haxby Road and Wigginton Road along with
associated junction improvements as necessary through Transport Assessment
and Travel Plan. Access between Haxby Road and Wigginton Road will be
limited to public transport and walking/cycling links only.

5.4 Policy SS15 of the 2018 eLP relates to the Nestle South site. The application site
Is phase 2 of this allocation. The allocation is for up to 600 dwellings. The policy
states that in addition to complying with the policies within the Local Plan, the site
must be master planned and delivered in accordance with identified (above) key
principles.

5.5 The mix of housing proposed is acceptable as is the number of dwellings
proposed, which is less than the 2018 elLP site allocation. The accommodation
amount and type derives from the need to reasonably respect the scale of houses to
the south and west (whilst considering the former industrial scale of development on

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 40

site) and enables a scheme that is some 60% housing and 40% apartments. The
accommodation type is generally compliant with local housing need and provides a
broad range of house types. Some 67% of the dwellings are 2 bed and 3 bed.

Overall housing mix is as follows -

Total Percent
1-bed 53 18%
2-bed 103 33%
3-bed 101 34%
4-bed 45 15%

5.6 Also proposed is a créche. This would be some 124 sq m in floorspace. The
facility would be of a scale to primarily provide for the proposed housing and will make
a positive contribution to the overall mix of uses at Nestle South. The provision would
not detract from the vitality and viability of the city centre, due to its scale, and would
contribute towards providing community needs and promoting social interaction, in
accordance with paragraphs 92 and 93 of the NPPF, in respect of enhancing the
sustainability of communities and residential environments.

Design

5.7 NPPF paragraph 130 establishes national design standards, regarding attractive,
locally distinctive places that function well and address residential amenity and crime
and disorder. These topics are expanded upon in the National Design Guide.

5.8 Of the 2018 eLP principles relevant to redevelopment of this site are set out in
paragraph 5.3 (above). Policy D1: Place-making expands upon the NPPG design
principles and applies these to the York context.

5.9 Policy D1 establishes the following requirements for proposals -

- Respect York’s skyline by ensuring that development does not challenge the visual
dominance of the Minster or the city centre roofscape.

- Respect and enhance views of landmark buildings and important vistas.

- Ensure proposals are not a pale imitation of past architectural styles.

- Demonstrate the use of best practice in contemporary urban design and place
making.

- Integrate car parking and servicing within the design of development so as not to
dominate the street scene.

- Create active frontages to public streets, spaces and waterways.

- Create buildings and spaces that are fit for purpose but are also adaptable to
respond to change.

- Create places that feel true to their intended purpose.

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 41

Assessment
Scale and massing

5.10 The 2018 eLP aspirations for the site encouraged re-development of a high-
guality design which recognises the distinctive character of the factory buildings. In
this respect the previous outline consent permitted buildings ranging in height
between 5 and 6 storey behind / to the west of, the retained buildings and along the
north side of the site. This scheme has fewer tall buildings. Two apartment blocks
are proposed, one to the west of the factory buildings, and one to the north of the site.
These buildings will have strong presence and create a sense of arrival into the site,
from the new access road (which has permission and is part implemented) off Haxby
Road. The buildings will also bring a sense of enclosure and in this respect calm
traffic and, in combination with the public realm design, give the impression of a
residential neighbourhood.

5.11 The apartment buildings will be 6-storey, just lower than, and smaller in volume,
compared to the main factory building. The building height behind the factory is the
same storey height to the scheme previously approved. The buildings would
complement, and not detract from the status of the main buildings, and their dominant
presence in the Nestle / Rowntree factory conservation area and in local views.

5.12 Elsewhere the buildings are domestic in scale and will range from 3.5 storey
down to 2-storey. This is an acceptable scale in that it facilitates 2 and 3 bed-sized
homes, which are well-suited to meeting local housing need.

Layout

5.13 Access points for the site use the existing junction position with Wigginton Road.
The layout will accommodate a right-turn into the site and priority for cyclists using the
cycle path. The geometry of the junction is unchanged from previous approvals.
There is a legal/contractual requirement for continued vehicle access into the south-
west of the Nestle site. On the east side the access connects into the previously
approved new access from Haxby Road.

5.14 In accordance with aspirations for the site, as set out in the 2018 elLP, the
scheme will accommodate more direct routes for pedestrians and cyclists. There are
new connections proposed into the Sustrans route to the south and south-west. Also
priority for cyclists will be introduced at the Wigginton Road junction. On the east side
of the site connections are made into the factory conversion site, so future residents
of that building will have a direct link through the site towards Wigginton Road and the
Sustrans route.

5.15 The layout accords with best practice in the national design guide on the following
grounds —

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 42

- The scheme is integrated into and enhances its context by restoring the stray land
to the west of the site to amenity space, with public access and play features
introduced.

- Good connectivity by adding to the Sustrans route (as explained above).

- Two of the east — west routes through the site will retain vistas of the retained
factory building, thus acknowledging local character and giving identity to the site.

- Buildings orientated to overlook open space and landscaping where possible.

- Active frontages overlooking public open space. Rear gardens back onto each
other and private / semi-private areas

- Secure by Design incorporated (the Police Architectural Liaison Officer has
provided input on the layout and proposed boundary treatments).

5.16 The apartment buildings, which are 6-storey, are grouped around public open
space. The space will not be overshadowed as the apartments are to the north and
east sides of the space; there is openness to the south. The south block, immediately
adjacent the open space accommodates the creche. The active frontage of the
commercial premises would be complimentary and conjunctive with the open space.

Public realm and open space

5.17 The site has two central open spaces. There is a predominantly hard surfaced
space by the apartments, which will complement the créche facility and a second
space, surrounded by housing. The latter will be a greener soft-landscaped area.
Both spaces have trees where feasible, being restricted by requirements for
underground drainage storage requirements. In addition to these spaces the scheme
includes restoration of the stray land on the west side of the site. This is an overgrown
former car park area which will be soft landscaped. It will include pedestrian cycle
links and children’s play areas. On the east side of the site two pocket parks have
been introduced into the scheme (as recommended by the Council’s Landscape
Architect). These will provide visual relief and amenity and have been provided at
points where there would otherwise be views of the neighbouring car park.

Car parking

5.18 A number of revisions have been made to better assimilate cars into the scheme
and reduce their visual impact/dominance. The scheme is now acceptable to officers
in this respect. The public realm would not visually be dominated by parked cars, and
nor would the presence of vehicles deter, or pose a risk to highway safety or to
facilitating and encouraging sustainable travel.

5.19 The car parking allocation for the site is around 90% which is accommodated in
a mix of spaces; car parking courts and driveways and on-street. The on-street car
parking is generally on the south side of the site. To avoid car parking being over-
dominant, the approach has been to screen the larger car parking courts, with

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 43

landscaping by the entrances and have intervening trees and small areas of soft
landscaping between driveways. The prominence of smaller groups of parking
towards the east and west edges of the site would be mitigated by adjacent trees and
soft landscaping. On the south side of the site the parking spaces are spread out
reasonably and surfacing is such that the streets are all surfaced in block paving and
level/at grade. This will make for an attractive public realm when the cars are vacant.

Vernacular

5.20 The development comprises of the two apartment blocks, which would be located
closest to the former factory to the east and the existing Nestle facilities to the north
and two and three storey housing. The housing would be visually contained within
the site. The apartment buildings would be 6-storey, just lower than the retained
factory building which is within the conservation area and in the process of conversion.
In material and details the proposed buildings relate to the, repetitive and brick
vernacular of the former factory building.

5.21 The apartment buildings are setback from Haxby Road and will only form a
backdrop to the main former factory building. The buildings respect their setting and
there would be no harm to the character and appearance of the conservation area.

5.22 The house types are a mix of 2 and 3 storey; with pitched roofs. They will be in
a mix of red and buff toned brick. There is a coherence to the house types, and they
will give the scheme, which is reasonably contained by surrounding large scale
development to the east and north, and landscape to the west and south, a distinctive
character, in accordance with national design guidance.

5.23 The ‘southern mews’ houses are tightly grouped together. The design & access
statement addendum explains how these house types have been designed to avoid
overlooking of neighbours and to maximise outlook over their own private amenity
space.

Character and appearance of the conservation area

5.24 The Council has a statutory duty (under section 72 of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990) to consider the desirability of preserving
or enhancing the character and appearance of designated conservation areas. The
site is outside of the Nestle / Rowntree Factory Conservation Area, which is located
to the east. On the west side of Haxby Road the conservation area boundary stops
at the west edge of the Cream Block and the Almond Block Extension (being
converted into residential). The conservation area explains these are large, the most
prominent and very distinctive buildings confirming the industrial nature of the area.

5.25 The dominance of the retained former factory buildings on site, their Haxby Road
setting, and how they are perceived in local views would not be challenged or harmed

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 44

by the proposed buildings, as explained in the design section. There would be no
harm to the character and appearance of the conservation area. Also the setting of
no listed buildings would be affected.

Highway Network Management

5.26 The NPPF states that in assessing sites that may be allocated for development
in plans, or specific applications for development, it should be ensured that:

- Appropriate opportunities to promote sustainable transport modes can be — or have
been — taken up, given the type of development and its location.

- Safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users.

- Any significant impacts from the development on the transport network (in terms of
capacity and congestion), or on highway safety, can be cost effectively mitigated
to an acceptable degree.

5.27 It also states “Development should only be prevented or refused on highways
grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual
cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe. Within this context,
applications for development should:

a) give priority first to pedestrian and cycle movements, both within the scheme and
with neighbouring areas; and second — so far as possible — to facilitating access to
high quality public transport, with layouts that maximise the catchment area for bus
or other public transport services, and appropriate facilities that encourage public
transport use;

b) address the needs of people with disabilities and reduced mobility in relation to all
modes of transport;

C) create places that are safe, secure and attractive — which minimise the scope for
conflicts between pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles, avoid unnecessary street
clutter, and respond to local character and design standards;

d) allow for the efficient delivery of goods, and access by service and emergency
vehicles; and

e) be designed to enable charging of plug-in and other ultra-low emission vehicles in
safe, accessible and convenient locations”.

Sustainable travel

5.28 Measures to encourage sustainable travel are embedded in the design. The
layout provides efficient connectivity for pedestrians and cyclists, in particular the new
legible connections into the Sustrans route and priority for cyclists at the Wigginton
Road entrance. There will be a Travel Plan to encourage non-car modes of travel.
The travel plan will establish targets over a 5-year period following full occupation.
There will be ongoing review and appropriate measures imposed if targets are not
met. The travel plan will be secured through condition, with measures to encourage

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 45

cycling and use of buses secured through legal agreement. The target within the
travel plan will be to reduce single occupancy car trips by 12%. The layout enables a
bus route through. The principles for redevelopment of the site in policy SS15 only
requires that “access between Haxby Road and Wigginton Road will be limited to
public transport and walking/cycling links only”. It does not explicitly require provision
of a two-way bus route.

5.29 The travel plan issued is silent on the use of car club. This should be promoted
as an alternative to private car ownership. Incentives to encourage use / membership
will be secured through S106 agreement. A condition will require inclusion of car club
parking space within the Nestle South site (subject to operator agreement). There is
an existing space at Yearsley Swimming Pool but a space on site would be reasonable
and should be viable given the amount of development proposed.

5.30 Each of the houses will have covered and secure storage for two cycles at the
outset, as required under the 2005 DLP (which requires 2 spaces for 3-bed or larger
dwellings). The houses all have private gardens with access so future provision could
be accommodated. The apartments have just over 1 space per dwelling. The north
apartment block contains 58 dwellings and has 62 spaces (6 outside) and the south
apartments 48 dwellings and 50 spaces.

Impact on wider network

5.31 The highway network can accommodate the proposed development without
further mitigation. Apart from the car parking to the southern apartment block (which
has some 15 spaces) cars will access the site via Wigginton Road. Modelling which
has been undertaken takes into account a future base rate (2026) and applies other
anticipated development schemes. The increase on the traffic network, and local
junctions is shown as less than 5%, which is deemed acceptable, without mitigation
in traffic engineering terms. The previously approved and now proposed scheme
have also been compared. The current scheme, in terms of trip generation, is
significantly less at peak times.

Car parking

5.32 The Civic Trust recommended the amount of car parking be reduced, from 94%
to 50% provision. The amount of car parking the developer proposes is not
unacceptable taking into account the NPPF. NPPF advice in paragraph 108 is that
“‘maximum parking standards for residential and non-residential development should
only be set where there is a clear and compelling justification that they are necessary
for managing the local road network, or for optimising the density of development in
city and town centres and other locations that are well served by public transport”.

Ecology / Green Infrastructure

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 46

5.33 The connection into the Sustrans route at the south side of the site is considered
essential in terms of place-making and promoting sustainable travel. It is a
requirement of the 2018 eLP allocation. The connection proposed results in the loss
of two category A trees and a group of category B trees where the ramp into the site
proposed. The location has been chosen as this is the point where the variation in
ground levels between the Sustrans route and the site is at its least. Trees line the
extent of the embankment which bounds the site, so an alternative location would also
require tree removal.

5.34 The scheme will open up a section of the embankment, for some 20 m in length.
The embankment would receive a native wildflower mix and tree planting. However
it is preferable this new connection is legible in the landscape and benefits from
natural surveillance. There is also a vista created into the central green space within
the site. The desire to create this connection, and as the applications have illustrated
a net gain in biodiversity, including soft landscaping and tree planting, justifies the tree
removal.

5.35 Developments should provide net gains for biodiversity. This is established in
NPPF paragraph 174. Biodiversity net gain has been illustrated using the Defra
Biodiversity Metric 3.0, comparing the pre and post development onsite habitat units.
An estimated 2.1% total net increase in biodiversity units has been identified. This has
been calculated taking into account tree removal and the biodiversity of the existing
site and the habitat creation proposed including urban trees, introduced scrub,
sustainable drainage features, other neutral grassland and native species rich
hedgerows.

Public Protection

5.36 Noise — previous schemes for the site have been approved subject to condition
in respect of noise. An updated noise survey and approval of suitable mitigation can
be secured through condition. The submitted assessment advises double glazed
windows would achieve the required noise levels within dwellings. However the
recommendations are based on survey results from 2017 and plant / machinery at the
Nestle site may have varied since.

5.37 Contamination — site investigation has been undertaken. A planning condition
can require an informed remediation strategy and confirmation of implementation.

5.38 Air Quality / EV charging — the NPPF paragraph 186 states planning decisions
should sustain and contribute towards compliance with relevant limit values or
national objectives for pollutants, taking into account the presence of Air Quality
Management Areas and Clean Air Zones, and the cumulative impacts from individual
sites in local areas. Opportunities to improve air quality or mitigate impacts should be
identified, such as through traffic and travel management, and green infrastructure
provision and enhancement. As considered by public protection officers (summarised

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 47

in section 3) the impact on air quality as a consequence of the scheme would be
negligible. In accordance with the local low emission strategy electric vehicle charging
facilities on site would be required through condition. It has been illustrated also that,
in terms of green infrastructure, there will be a gain in biodiversity overall.

Residential amenity

5.39 It is a core principle within the National Planning Policy Framework that
developments always seek to secure a good standard of amenity for all existing and
future occupants of land and buildings. The NPPF states decisions should avoid
noise from giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life as a
result of new development.

5.40 The proposed development would not have an adverse effect in terms of being
overbearing or over dominant or causing any loss of light. The proposed houses are
a considerable distance from neighbouring housing; the houses to the south of the
site are over 40m from Hambleton Terrace, those on the west side of the site over
30m from the site boundary. The apartment blocks are on the north east of the site,
further away from neighbouring houses compared to the factory block to the east.

5.41 The proposed dwellings all comply with the optional national space standards.
The dwellings have reasonable outlook and will not overlook each other. The
apartment layout maximises opportunities for dual aspect apartments where practical.

Sustainable design and construction

5.42 The scheme will have all electric systems, in accordance with emerging national
policy on energy generation. It will use heat pumps and photovoltaic panels also.
The scheme will achieve the current local requirement (2018 eLP policy CC1), to
achieve a 28% betterment over 2013 Building Regulations.

Drainage / Flood Risk

5.43 2018 eLP policy ENV5 on sustainable drainage states that surface water flows
from Brownfield sites should, where practicable, be restricted to 70% of the existing
runoff rate. A surface water rate for the site has been agreed previously. An agreed
rate did take into consideration that although the site is now cleared, it historically
contained buildings covering most of the site. The run-off rate agreed previously is
maintained in this scheme, which, along with the overall drainage strategy is agreed
to by Yorkshire Water. The site is outside Flood Zones 2 and 3 and in this respect
appropriate for housing.

Education

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 48

5.44 NPPF paragraph 94 states that it is important that a sufficient choice of school
places is available to meet the needs of existing and new communities. Local planning
authorities should take a proactive, positive and collaborative approach to meeting
this requirement, and to development that will widen choice in education. They should
give great weight to the need to create, expand or alter schools through the
preparation of plans and decisions on applications. Local draft supplementary
planning guidance explains how the need for extra education spaces are determined
and the relevant planning obligations.

5.45 Officers have informed of the need for education places anticipated as a
consequence of this scheme (paragraph 3.6). The provision would be secured
through Section 106 agreement.

Open Space

5.46 Section 8 of the NPPF establishes that planning decisions should aim to achieve
healthy, inclusive and safe places and the importance for access to a network of high
guality open spaces and opportunities for sport and physical activity. Local policies
should identify the need for open space, sport and recreation and opportunities for
new provision.

5.47 The local policies for provision of amenity and sports space are established in
section 6 of the 2018 eLP — Health and Well-being.

5.48 Policy HW 3 states developments that place additional demands on existing built
sport facilities will be required to provide proportionate new or expanded facilities, to
meet the needs of future occupiers. Developer contributions will be sought to provide
these additional facilities. Policy GI 6 New Open Space Provision advises that all
residential development should contribute to the provision of open space for
recreation and amenity. Provision should be informed by existing provision in the area
and local open space standards.

5.49 With the inclusion of the stray land the site would accommodate adequate open
space / amenity space to meet the needs of future occupants, based on the proposed
housing mix and local supplementary planning guidance (SPG) on open space. The
space includes play facilities for children, semi-natural amenity space and space for
recreation. The associated legal agreement will secure future maintenance of the on-
site open space.

5.50 A contribution is proposed towards off site sports and this has also been
calculated at £158,046 using local supplementary guidance. The contribution would
be secured through a Section 106 obligation and would go towards facilities in the
local area. Officers have identified previously a number of clubs/facilities within 1.2
miles of the site where contributions could be used and these are based at New

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 49

Earswick, Heworth, York City Knights and York Community and Gymnastics
Foundation.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 In applying the NPPF substantial weight is applied in favour of housing delivery at
this site. The land is previously developed, on the Brownfield Land Register, in a
sustainable urban location and has been allocated for housing in the eLP. The
dwellings proposed would be in accordance with local need. The scheme includes
60% housing 40% apartments, predominantly family sized (2 and 3 bed) with
provision of 1 bed dwellings, that in particular meet local affordable need. The
affordable housing proposed would be policy compliant (in amount, size and type).
Additionally the developer’s intention is to exceed policy requirements, in co-operation
with Homes England, providing a further 44 shared-ownership homes (a type of
affordable housing as defined in the NPPF). The scheme will provide public open
space, improving the existing stray land and provide new connections within the
Sustrans route. No harm to the conservation area has been identified and the scheme
will comply with sustainable design policy in respect on building efficiency and
performance.

6.21 The Council cannot currently demonstrate an NPPF compliant five year supply
of deliverable housing sites and therefore the Council's policies for the supply of
housing are out of date, in accordance with paragraph 11 of the NPPF. There are
also no policies in the NPPF that protect assets of particular importance which provide
a clear reason for refusing the development in this instance. Therefore paragraph
11(d) of the NPPF tilts the planning balance in favour of granting planning permission,
unless any adverse impacts of doing so significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits when assessed against the policies set out in the NPPF as a whole.

6.22 The benefits of the scheme outweigh some of the issues raised through
consultation; the NPPF test is that refusal is only justified if the adverse impacts on
the scheme, when assessed against the NPPF, would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits. This is evidentially not the case.

6.23 The recommendation is to approve the application, subject to the recommended
conditions and a Section 106 Agreement to secure the following planning obligations

- Affordable housing (policy compliance - 20% and tenure mix)
- Off-site sports - £158,046 to be used at either of the following facilities - Heworth
Cricket club, Heworth Rugby club, New Earswick sports club, New Earswick &

District Indoor Bowls club, York community and gymnastics foundation, York City

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Knights).

Page 50

- On-site open space (including stray land) — on-going maintenance regime and

provision of free public access

- Education

Primary & Secondary - £947,142

Early Years - £588,256

- Sustainable travel - first occupants offered £200 towards both bus pass and

cycle/cycle equipment.

- Car Club - first occupants offered £200 towards car club membership.

- Traffic Regulation Order up to £30k (to cover Wigginton Road access, internal

layout and potential res-parking arrangements on-site).
- Section 106 monitoring fee - £31,740.20

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve subject to Section 106 Agreement

1 TIME2 Development start within three years

2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the

following plans:-

DNO0092-JTP-22-ZZ-DR-A-0000
DNO0092-JTP-2Z2-Z2Z-DR-A-0001
DNO0092-JTP-2Z2-ZZ-DR-A-0002
DNO0092-JTP-2Z2-ZZ-DR-A-0003
DNO0092-3TP-2Z-2Z-DR-A-0004

DNO0092-JTP-Z2Z-72Z-DR-A-0100
DNO0092-JTP-Z2Z-2Z-DR-A-0200
DNO0092-JTP-Z2Z-2Z-DR-A-0210
DNO0092-JTP-Z2Z-2Z-DR-A-0220
DNO0092-JTP-2Z2-ZZ-DR-A-0230
DNO0092-JTP-2Z2-ZZ-DR-A-0240
DNO0092-JTP-2Z2-ZZ-DR-A-0250
DNO0092-JTP-22-ZZ-DR-A-0260
DNO0092-JTP-2Z2-ZZ-DR-A-0270
DNO0092-JTP-2Z2-ZZ-DR-A-0280

Masterplan revision P4
Site Location Plan P1
Existing Site Plan P1
Site Sections P1

Site Sections P1

Bin Store Plans Sections Elevations P02
Housetype 2A Plans Sections Elevations P01
Housetype 2B Plans Sections Elevations P01
Housetype 3A Plans Sections Elevations P01
Housetype 3B Plans Sections Elevations P01
Housetype 3C Plans Sections Elevations P02
Housetype 3D Plans Sections Elevations P01
Housetype 4A Plans Sections Elevations P02
Housetype 4B Plans Sections Elevations P02
Cottage Flats 1C Plans Sections Elevations P01

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



DNO0092-JTP-NB-Z2Z-DR-A-0600
DNO0092-JTP-NB-Z2Z-DR-A-0601
DNO0092-JTP-NB-Z2Z-DR-A-0602
DNO0092-JTP-SB-ZZ-DR-A-0600
DN0092-JTP-SB-ZZ-DR-A-0601
DN0092-JTP-SB-ZZ-DR-A-0602
DN0092-JTP-NB-ZZ-DR-A-0700
DNO0092-JTP-NB-Z2Z-DR-A-0701
DNO0092-JTP-NB-Z2Z-DR-A-0702
DN0092-JTP-SB-ZZ-DR-A-0700
DNO0092-JTP-SB-ZZ-DR-A-0701
DNO0092-JTP-SB-ZZ-DR-A-0702

Landscape Drawings

Page 51

PO1
PO3
PO3
PO1

North Block Apartment - Plans
North Block Apartment - Plans
North Block Apartment - Plans
South Block Apartment - Plans
South Block Apartment - Plans P02
South Block Apartment - Plans P02
North Block Apartment - Elevations
North Block Apartment - Elevations
North Block Apartment - Elevations
South Block Apartment - Elevations
South Block Apartment - Elevations
South Block Apartment - Elevations

201572_L097
201572_L098
201572_L100
201572_L101
201572 L102
201572 L103
201572_L104
201572_L105
201572 1200
201572 1201
201572 1202
201572 1203
2015721204

General Arrangement revision 3
Boundaries revision 3

Landscape Masterplan revision A
Tree Removal Plan -5

Boundaries Plan 1 of 4 - 5

Boundaries Plan 2 of 4 - 5

Boundaries Plan 3 0of 4 - 4

Boundaries Plan 4 of 4 - 4

General Arrangement Plan 1 of 4 - 5
General Arrangement Plan 2 of 4 -5
General Arrangement Plan3of4 -4
General Arrangement Plan4 of 4 -4
Legend Sheet - 4

PO1
PO3
PO3
PO1
P02
P02

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out
only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

3  Construction Management

Prior to commencement of development, or phase of development, a Construction
Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the relevant construction
period.

The plan shall include: -

- Details of measures to keep the highway clean - to include wheel washing facilities
for the cleaning of wheels of vehicles leaving the site, including location and type.

- Dust - A site-specific risk assessment of dust impacts in line with the guidance
provided by IAQM (see http://ilagm.co.uk/guidance/) and including a package of
mitigation measures commensurate with the risk identified in the assessment.

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 52

- Air Quality - The air quality impacts associated with construction vehicles and non-
road mobile machinery (NRMM) and the proposed mitigation measures,
commensurate with the identified risk.

- Noise - Details on types of machinery to be used, noise mitigation, any monitoring
and compliance with relevant standards.

- Vibration - Details on any activities that may results in excessive vibration, e.g.
piling, and details of monitoring and mitigation to be implemented.

- Lighting - Details on artificial lighting and measures to minimise impact, such as
restrictions in hours of operation, and the location and angling of lighting.

- Complaints procedure - The procedure should detail how a contact number will be
advertised to the public, investigation procedure when a complaint is received, any
monitoring to be carried out, and what will happen in the event that the complaint
is not resolved. Written records of any complaints received and actions taken shall
be kept and details forwarded to the Local Authority every month during
construction works by email to the following addresses
public.protection@york.gov.uk and planning.enforcement@york.gov.uk

- Dilapidation survey - Prior to works starting on site a dilapidation survey of the
highways adjoining the site shall be jointly undertaken with the Council and the
results of which shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure before development commences that construction methods will
safeguard the amenities of neighbouring properties in accordance with Policy ENV2
of the City of York Publication Draft Local Plan.

4 Restricted hours of construction

The hours of construction, loading or unloading on the site shall be confined to 8:00
to 18:00 Monday to Friday, 9:00 to 13:00 Saturday and no working on Sundays or
public holidays. Any working outside of the permitted hours is subject to prior approval
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect the amenities of adjacent residents.
5 Tree Protection

At all times during construction Trees shall be protected in accordance with BS:5837
and the measures as shown on the Barnes Associates drawings BA10564TPP B
(north and south). Any protection measures to be removed in advance of the
completion of construction shall first be approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: In order to protect trees of high amenity value, in accordance with sections
8, 12, 15 of the NPPF.

6 Archaeology
Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 53

No archaeological evaluation or groundworks in the relevant area shall take place until
a written scheme of investigation (WSI) for the stray land on the south-west side of
the site has been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing.
The WSI should conform to standards set by the Chartered Institute for
Archaeologists.

The site investigation and post investigation assessment shall be completed in
accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation and
the provision made for analysis, publication and dissemination of results and archive
deposition will be secured.

A copy of a report on the evaluation and an assessment of the impact of the proposed
development on any of the archaeological remains identified in the evaluation shall
be deposited with City of York Historic Environment Record to allow public
dissemination of results within 6 weeks of completion or such other period as may be
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Where archaeological features and deposits are identified proposals for the
preservation in-situ, or for the investigation, recording and recovery of archaeological
remains and the publishing of findings shall be submitted as an amendment to the
original WSI. It should be understood that there shall be presumption in favour of
preservation in-situ wherever feasible.

Reason: In accordance with Section 12 of NPPF. The site lies within an area of
archaeological interest. An investigation is required to identify the presence and
significance of archaeological features and deposits and ensure that archaeological
features and deposits are either recorded or, if of national importance, preserved in-
situ.

7 Invasive / non-invasive species

No works shall commence on-site (apart from demolition) until an invasive non-native
species protocol has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority, detailing the containment, control and removal of Cotoneaster on site. The
measures shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved protocol.

Reason: To ensure that an adequate means of eradicating or containing the spread
of an invasive non-native species is considered and thereafter implemented to prevent
further spread of the plant which would have a negative impact on biodiversity and
existing or proposed landscape features.

8 Landscape and Ecological (or Biodiversity) Management Plan

No works shall commence on-site (apart from demolition) until a Landscape and
Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 54

Ecological (or Biodiversity) Management Plan (LEMP) has been submitted to,
approved in writing by, the local planning authority.

The content of the LEMP shall evidence a net gain in biodiversity and shall include

the following:

a) Description and evaluation of features to be managed.

b) Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management.

c) Aims and objectives of management.

d) Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives.

e) Prescriptions for management actions.

f) Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of being
rolled forward over a five-year period).

g) Details of the body or organisation responsible for implementation of the plan.

h) Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures.

The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by which
the long-term implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer with the
management body(ies) responsible for its delivery. The plan shall also set out (where
the results from monitoring show that conservation aims and objectives of the LEMP
are not being met) how contingencies and/or remedial action will be identified, agreed
and implemented so that the development still delivers the fully functioning
biodiversity objectives of the originally approved scheme.

Reason: To take account of and enhance the biodiversity and wildlife interest of the
area, and to be in accordance with Paragraph 174 d) of the NPPF (2019) to encourage
the incorporation of biodiversity improvements in and around developments,
especially where this can secure measurable net gains for biodiversity.

9  Vegetation removal

Works which include tree works and vegetation clearance shall commence in
accordance with the precautionary working methods set-out in section 8.0 of the
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal provided by Wold Ecology Ltd (February 2021).

Reason: To limit harm, injury and disturbance to protected and notable species that
may occur site. And to ensure that breeding birds are protected from harm during
construction. All British birds, their nests and eggs are protected by Section 1 of the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended.

10 LC2 Land contamination - remediation scheme

Prior to development, a detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition
suitable for the intended use (by removing unacceptable risks to human health,
buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment) shall be
submitted to and approved in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The scheme

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 55

shall include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and
remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The
scheme shall ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A
of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land
after remediation.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

11 LC3 Land contamination - remedial works

Prior to first occupation or use, the approved remediation scheme shall be carried out
in accordance with its terms and a verification report that demonstrates the
effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced and is subject to the
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems.

12 Drainage

The site shall be developed with separate systems of drainage for foul and surface
water on and off site.

Reason: In the interest of satisfactory and sustainable drainage.
13 Drainage strategy

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the details indicated within
the submitted report, Flood Risk Statement & Drainage Strategy by Civic Engineers,
job title 1747-01 - Cocoa West, York dated June 2021 (on page 1).

Reason: In the interest of satisfactory and sustainable drainage, in accordance with
NPPF section 15.

14  Drainage infrastructure

Prior to construction works in the relevant area(s) of the site, or phase of development,
measures to protect the public water supply infrastructure (within the site, or phase
boundary) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 56

The details shall include, but not be exclusive to, the means of ensuring that access
to the pipe for the purposes of repair and maintenance by the statutory undertaker
shall be retained at all times. If the required stand-off or protection measures are to
be achieved via diversion or closure of the water main, the developer shall submit
evidence to the Local Planning Authority that the diversion or closure has been agreed
with the relevant statutory undertaker and that, prior to construction in the affected
area, the approved works have been undertaken.

Reason: In the interest of public health and maintaining the public water supply in
accordance with NPPF section 15 (Yorkshire Water requirement).

15 Phasing and delivery of POS and Sustrans connections

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby permitted a scheme detailing the
phasing for the full completion of areas of public open space, including Bootham Stray
and informal play areas, fithess equipment, all the Sustrans connections, the public
realm and areas to be adopted highway (the details of such are required under
conditions 16 and 17) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

The phasing scheme shall demonstrate how the public open space / Sustrans
connections / public realm shall be fully provided in relation to completion of any
phases of dwellings on site. The development shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved scheme.

Reason: To ensure that the required infrastructure is provided at a time which meets
the needs of future users and occupiers of the site, in accordance with section 2 of
the NPPF.

16  Public realm design

Prior to the relevant works the detailed design of the public realm, including areas to
be adopted highway, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details and the phasing details approved under condition 15.

The details shall include typical details for each character area and areas where
raised tables are proposed within the street. Details shall confirm finishing materials,
typical sections, ground levels and details of the interface between varying surfaces
and materials.

Reason: In the interests of good design, highway safety and to encourage sustainable
travel. In accordance with NPPF paragraph 130 and section 9.

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 57

17 Landscaping

Prior to the relevant works a detailed landscaping scheme shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved details and the phasing details approved under
condition 15.

The details shall adhere to the principles of the approved landscape masterplan and
landscape drawings by open and shall detail-

a) The number, species, stock size / height and position of trees and shrubs

b) The trim trail, natural play areas and the 'play street'.

c) The Sustrans connections which shall confirm an adequate gradient to deal with
any variation in ground levels.

d) Details of informal children's play areas.

The landscaping shall be reasonably maintained at all times. Any trees or plants
which die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced
in the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless
alternatives are agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the variety,
suitability and disposition of species within the site in the interests of the character
and appearance of the area and to ensure adequate play facilities for future residents,
in accordance with NPPF sections 8 and 12.

18 Road Safety Audit

A road safety audit (carried out in accordance with guidance set out in the DMRB
HD19/03 and guidance issued by the council) for the Wigginton Road junction works
shall be carried out prior to first use of the access road.

Reason: To minimise the road safety risks associated with the changes imposed by
the development.

19 Site access

The development hereby permitted shall not come into use/be occupied until the
following highway works (including works associated with any Traffic Regulation
Order required as a result of the development, signing, lighting, drainage and other
related works) have been carried out in accordance with the approved plans, or
arrangements entered into which ensure the same.

Highway Works: Implementation of the highway works on Wigginton Road and the
site access (which includes relocated footpaths, cyclist priority crossing at the junction

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 58

(to LTN 1/20 standards) bus stops (to include BLISS real time display) and pedestrian
crossing islands).

Reason: In the interests of the safe and free passage of highway users and to promote
sustainable modes of transport.

20 Highway constructed before occupation

Prior to the occupation of any dwelling, all carriageways and footways fronting that
dwelling and along which access is required to that dwelling, shall be kerbed, lit and
surfaced to at least base course level.

Reason: To provide a safe means of access.
21 Materials

Manufacturer's details of the external materials to be used shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the
construction of the relevant phase of development. They shall be made available for
review on-site, at the discretion of the Local Planning Authority. The development
shall be carried out using the approved materials.

Sample panels of the brickwork to be used on each phase of the development shall
be erected on the site and shall illustrate the colour, texture and bonding of brickwork/
stonework and the mortar treatment to be used, and shall be approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of building works within that
phase. These panels shall be retained until a minimum of 2 square metres of wall of
the approved development has been completed in accordance with the approved
sample.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the finished
appearance of these details prior to the commencement of building works in view of
their sensitive location.

22 Large scale details

Large scale details showing typical details of the apartment buildings, and their rooftop
(with plant) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority prior to the commencement of the development and the works shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of good design and the setting of the conservation area, in
accordance with NPPF sections 9 and 16.

23  Sustainable design and construction
Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 59

The dwellings hereby permitted shall achieve a reduction in carbon emissions of at
least 28% compared to the target emission rate as required under Part L of the
Building Regulations 2013, or compliance with any approved Part L document dated
2021 or thereafter.

Prior to first occupation of any phase details of the measures undertaken to secure
compliance with this condition, for the relevant phase, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To fulfil the environmental objectives of the NPPF and support the transition
to a low carbon future, and in accordance with policies CC1l and CC2 of the
Publication Draft Local Plan 2018.

24  Noise

The development shall not be occupied until a detailed scheme of noise insulation
measures for protecting the approved dwellings from externally generated noise has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and
implemented in accordance with the approved details.

The scheme shall demonstrate the building envelope of all dwellings shall be
constructed so as to achieve internal noise levels in habitable rooms of no greater
than 35 dB LAeq (16 hour) during the day (07:00-23:00 hrs) and 30 dB LAeq (8 hour)
during the night (23:00-07:00 hours).

During the night LAFMax level should not exceed 45dB(A) on more than 10 occasions
in any night time period in bedrooms and should not regularly exceed 55dB(A).

Noise levels shall be observed with all windows open in the habitable rooms or if
necessary windows closed and other means of ventilation provided.

Reason: To protect the amenity of future residents from externally generated noise,
in accordance with NPPF paragraphs 130 185 and 187.

25 Commercial unit - plant/machinery

Details of all machinery, plant and equipment to be installed in or located on the
commercial premises on-site (the creche), which is audible outside of the premises,
shall be first submitted to the local planning authority for approval in writing. These
details shall include average sound levels (LAeq), octave band noise levels and any
proposed noise mitigation measures. The machinery, plant or equipment and any
approved noise mitigation measures shall be fully implemented and operational
before the proposed use first opens and shall be retained and appropriately

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 60

maintained thereafter.

The combined rating level of any building service noise associated with plant or
equipment at the site shall not exceed 46dB(A) LA90 1 hour during the hours of 07:00
to 23:00 or 38dB(A) 15 minutes during the hours of 23:00 to 07:00 at 1 metre from the
nearest noise sensitive facades when assessed in accordance with BS4142: 2014,
inclusive of any acoustic feature corrections associated with tonal, impulsive,
distinctive or intermittent characteristics.

Reason: To protect the amenity of future residents from externally generated noise,
in accordance with NPPF paragraphs 130 and 185.

26  Electric vehicle charging facilities

Each dwelling with car parking within its curtilage shall incorporate sufficient capacity
within the electricity distribution board for one dedicated radial AC single phase
connection to allow the future addition of an Electric Vehicle Recharge Point
(minimum 32A). The necessary trunking/ducting shall be in place to enable cables to
be installed prior to first occupation of the relevant dwelling. Details of this passive
provision shall be included within a household pack for the first occupant, to include
location of proposed Electric Vehicle Recharge Point, trunking/ducting and details of
distribution board location and capacity.

Prior to the commencement of development, or a phase of development (apart from
demolition and/or enabling works), a strategy for the provision of electric vehicle (EV)
charging facilities to serve communal spaces (i.e. those not within the curtilage of a
dwelling and not within the adopted highway) shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The strategy shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved details. EV charging points shall incorporate a suitably
rated 32A 'IEC 62196’ electrical socket (minimum) to allow '‘Mode 3' charging of an
electric vehicle. The provision shall be at least 5% active and 5% passive.

The strategy shall specify the location, specification and timescales for installation of
EV charging facilities and provide details of the active and passive provision. It shall
include an Electric Vehicle Recharging Point Management Plan that will detail the
management, maintenance, servicing and access/charging arrangements for each
EV charging point for a minimum period of 10 years.

Reason: To encourage the use of electric vehicles and reduce emissions, in
accordance with paragraphs 112 and 174 the NPPF and policy ENV1 of the
Publication Draft Local Plan.

27 Travel Plan

Prior to first occupation of the development a final travel plan shall be submitted to
Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 61

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be
carried out thereafter in accordance with the approved details. The travel plan shall
accord with the guidance detailed in the National Planning Policy Guidance and the
framework travel plan dated June 2021. In addition to the measures in the framework
Travel Plan the full plan shall include and subsequently adhere to -

a) Details of the travel plan co-ordinator for the lifetime of the plan and method of
funding.

b) Implementation of additional sustainable transport measures should the targets of
the travel plan not be met.

Reason: to promote sustainable travel, in accordance with NPPF section 9.
28 Cycle Parking

The houses within the development hereby permitted shall each be provided with at
least two covered and secure cycle parking spaces. Details of the cycle parking shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to first
occupation of the relevant phase. The cycle parking facilities shall be provided in
accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of the relevant dwelling
and retained as such thereatfter.

The cycle parking facilities for the apartment buildings shall be provided in accordance
with the approved plans prior to first occupation of the relevant building. The facilities
shall be provided and retained as approved for residents use at all times.

Reason: To facilitate and promote sustainable travel modes in accordance with NPPF
section 9.

29 Shared pedestrian and cycle paths connecting to existing network

All proposed shared pedestrian and cycle routes on the west side of the site, that pass
over Bootham Stray and connect the development hereby permitted to the existing
pedestrian and cycle network (along Wigginton Road and the Sustrans route), shall
be no less than 3 metres wide.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to encourage sustainable travel. In
accordance with NPPF paragraph 112.

30 Car club parking facilities

Prior to first occupation of the development a scheme to accommodate dedicated car
parking space(s) for the car club shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall identify the provision of at least 1
dedicated car share space within the Nestle South site and the trigger(s) for

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 62

installation. The car club space shall be retained for parking of car club vehicles
exclusively for the lifetime of the development at all times, unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority (should evidence be provided to demonstrate
that a commercial operator is unwilling to locate car club facilities in this location
following completion of the development).

Reason: to promote sustainable travel and reduce private car travel, in accordance
with NPPF section 9.

31 Visitor parking

Car parking spaces annotated as visitor parking (VP) on the approved masterplan
drawing DN0092-JTP-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-0000 shall be retained for the aforementioned use
at all times, unless such spaces are allocated for use as car club / car share spaces.

Reason: In the interests of good design and highway safety in accordance with NPPF
paragraphs 112 and 130.

32  No through traffic

The restrictions (bollards) to limit vehicle access through the site shall be retained in
accordance with the approved plans at all times. Access between Haxby Road and
Wigginton Road is limited to public transport and walking/cycling links only.

Reason: To promote sustainable transport and to avoid increases in traffic in local
residential streets, in accordance with NPPF section 9 and policies D1 and SS15 of
the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH
In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive
outcome: provided pre-application advice, sought revised plans in the interests of
good design, the use of planning conditions and obligations.

2. Ecology

The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as
amended (section 1), it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the nest of any
wild bird while that nest is in use or being built. Planning consent for a development
does not provide a defence against prosecution under this act. Trees and dense

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 63

vegetation are likely to contain nesting birds between 1st March and 31st August
inclusive. As such habitats are present on the application site and are to be assumed
to contain nesting birds between the above dates, unless a recent survey has been
undertaken by a competent ecologist to assess the nesting bird activity on

site during this period and has shown it is absolutely certain that nesting birds are not
present.

3. Yorkshire Water

If the developer wishes to have new sewers included in a sewer adoption agreement
with Yorkshire Water (under Section 104 of the Water Industry Act 1991), they should
contact the Developer Services Team (telephone 0345 120 84 82, email:
technical.sewerage@yorkshirewater.co.uk).

Please note that utilities may also be present within and adjacent the site entrance,
which may require diversion or abandonment. The developer is advised to liaise with
Yorkshire Water in respect of such matters.

4. LEGAL AGREEMENT
Your attention is drawn to the existence of a legal obligation under Section 106 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 relating to this development

Contact details:

Case Officer:  Jonathan Kenyon
Tel No: 01904 551323

Application Reference Number: 21/01371/FULM Item No: 4a



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65

Land At Cocoa West, Wigginton Road, York
21/01371/FULM

ra 57 EE Ran.

Reproduced fom the Ordnance Sureymap with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationeny Ofiice & Crown
Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduecton infringes. Crown Copyright and may
lead to prose cution or civil procesdings.

Produced using ESRI (LK) MapExplorer 2.0 - hitpe{ivww. esrivh.c om

Scale:

1:2513

Organisation

City of York Couneil

Department |Directorate of Place
Comments  |9ite Location Plan
Date 23 November 2021
SLA Number




This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL

Planning Committee

To be held on Thursday 2" December 2021

/9 abed



i

21/01371/FULM - Land At Cocoa West, Wigginton
Road, York

Demolition of gatehouse and erection of up to 302 dwellings (Use Class C3),
creche (Use Class E) and associated access, car parking, public open space,
landscaping, associated infrastructure and drainage, and other associated
Works.

COUNCIL

89 abed



Site Location Plan

Allot Gdrs |

BB

69 abeq

|| Cocoa West, York

Cvandeg Tlie

Slte Locatlon Plan

o 56@

-
= Eheot Codet DNDIGETAZEEET Reino0 1

Bade @43 171250 Jebi Py
wlrg Ma, D000

'YORK £ i

S . ol 0
Sa Dvdeghe 2000 [T
ol Bar —
2 W m A
=)

COUNCIL \ M{ | e —‘u:f_;'EﬂMWﬁ”ﬁDﬁmﬁam@ ||J|_]|||||| Il

|||||||||



Aerial View (2017)

T ETT ot EY it e o b4
"o ,,L

T

o “-'\_....,

CITY OF I 2 L i A rad el i

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021




Masterplan

I.
\ CITY OF

COUNCIL

YORK

T FA H E FH ]

& %
=
=

(DRGSO

by

i N i D O O

| | HAMBLETOM TERRACE

.
|

l ‘lL ’ J‘h | r—|[ |-| | s [ _., :T?'."‘.‘_;
uJL Iilﬂj_m jJler__,—'_r,_L LTI 'HHHJAH |,I,..,.| | L]

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT'S DRAWINGS

FOR DETAILS OF SURFACE MATERIALS, U
SOFTWORKS AND S5TREET FURNITURE

REFER TO DRAWINGS:

201572 L300 TO 201572 1203 AND
LEGENLTSHEET 201572 204

FOR DETAILS OF BOUNDARY TREATMER m
AND ACCESS GATES REFER TO DRAWINI
201572_L102 TO 201572_L105 I

o | e | Dot owen |t

(-

Planning

Cocoa West, York

Drwad=g e
Masterplan

St Code; (INGISG 17232 DRA00

| | sea

a Ful, 1120

L Towama 0200 _ ek 7

5



et
pa— D0 et acae 0 i g
X Srwoasara

Tkt b brocg = P aEaEr of Db RapARG EFR:
TR Faakeg & e werkh epictec a Sa copyright of TP

e
TP accecn
or partimen o= zes2
R e e = 2 (i e i
- M - Orinwing 10 be rmed i confunctien wih
Building — Typica T
FRLIAT2S Key Plan
- S i — = — NTE
Elevation -
FFL1S &S m
o4 |
o — - — West Emt
FFL 10278 m = LS —
we_ — - — L
pa=r=c PR b S St
— VY 4
(O |
—1 SRS
FRLTA26m =— L e Materal Key
R i | I S
RSN (| neoe OESEERRRES 1 - Ligh R Brick
=1 -
B 2. Retos
3 - White HE and Mas Bricx.
FFLESUSm
. A T 4 - Whte Brck
§ - Concrete Lintel & CB Dutal
& - Balcories - Bromee RAL colour e
7 - Wieddow Frasme - Breeze, RAL ol tte:
FFLO.000 8 - Louvie to Plart - Bronze, RAL coleur e
L0000 m
L SR PSSR P 9 - Edge Ralieg - Brcee, RAL colut it -U
0. Parspet Capping - Brores, RAL colour the
4 1 2 4 Y 1. Chuzedt Curtals Wl Entratese - Srirge, RAL
\:legElevanon 2. Apement Front Dose - Pastel Shedes, RAL ookt
18- Anciery Extermal Doors - Bronze, RAL cobur i (D
34 - Fascia Pacel - Brorse, RAL colour e - I
95 - Coburmens - coleur toe N
FRL 0 ETSm
R o i e, s
e Wil > 1
oo - SEORMTR RS, T T .
4 & E Il! P ZwH (—N-A-"-.p‘n—“bl. o w
VP et & Prw vy
P02 0R0831 Deveorn wised for wmrinton oo
‘ ‘ PO 00631 Puneing heas [
T (] L4 i e e =
> dll S
1 ” g Comments
40 4 = §
FRL02Em L -
- will i > |
L-.au. == LATIMBR

A
=3
A

. TP Seadon, UstS

Tre Rum Wawhocss
Parrings Zewat
Landsn, £1W AP
44D 207017 1700
- =

3
B
3

=

=
=
=

—

@
v
4
Ll
4
L
i
Y

B

a;coa West - Northern
Apartment Block

- _‘- .
=
| N

,
5
g
=
L N
i

/l

CITY OF

1 L A ~ Ty
| GA Elevations (20f2)
FFLOCOOm — -—
O e e e - scae @At AS INCIcated s mee. 01820

7 T mm$
COUNCIL Sk Bievaton o e——

et G

DN T PN 22 DAL T2




=
0]

North Apartment Building — |
Typical Floor Plan

Lewsl 01-04
i

Tt = I

1TH Y

Cocoa West - Northern
Apartment Block

H
Eq c \
! 18ap —] % i
o I: B ; T I
. I. = . JTP Seadon, Una S
— : o R i
- == : Landon, EAW JAP
[ H ! ' mpngme
M| (3 g ! ! !
H : i H
I
I

g TER

R

LI

S \ 8
4—"""‘:% CITY OF e e

|
YORK 0 .= =9

COUNCIL




South Apartment Building — Typical Elevation

FFL 10875 m
e

FFLST26m
wes_

FFLIS@Sm
p 4]

FFL 0275 m
wo_

FFL7.125m FRL7.126m
wa

we

FFL3OTSm FRLI0TSm
wo

wo

North Elevation
1:100

%

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

26 2 acam teer in 3w
armcaons
Tt be Srugh % the atwion o the wapenyng cMcar
Thin el & e works dusicied e e copight of STP.
v
TP accest

20 bty

e raace

West Elevation
1:100

Material Key
- Light Red Brick

- Red Brek

w %

- Foed HE e M Brick

4 - Whie Brick

S - Whte Brick Bandig Detad

€ - Bakories - Bronze RAL colous e

7 - Wirdow Frama - Sionze, RAL cols the

& - Louvse to Plant - Brenze, RAL cdlos B

9 - Edge Ralleg - Brzoze, RAL cakur tte

10- Parapet Cappr - Brovze, RAL cokur tbe

11 Gtz Curtain Wl Ererascs - Bronza, RAL cslour e
12 Apartmert Fro Doot - Pustel Shades, RAL cabour the
13- Anchery Extermal Doors - Bronzm, RAL cslout the

14 - Fancia Panel - Broree, RAL colow Be

B0 DM Gmwtien it brmeiramon o
POt 100021 Panning mase oG w
=
Pianning
N~

@

LATINER

S

ma. unm

&coa West - Southern
Apartment Block

Downg Tise.
GA Elevations (20f2)

CNIORTP-S8-22-DR-ALT02




South Apartment
Building — Typical
Floor Plan

\
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

[

}
I

T I
f ]
] e
I | I—

1

Level 00

Level 01-04

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

LATIMER
.
s St
' 2 Caton Rt
ey
4 D111 1550 0800
—, sk

&wa West - Southern
Apartment Block

GA Plans (1of2)

s g 1:100 sonnar. D1E20

Coneig e D601 [ ,/"\.

o




Uaad o e
A n i e o e e

B e e P i
e TR A e T
R e v

Pl
]
[~}
Pl
Sy
skl

[
"

R U g )
i A - e . i e 203

Housetype Plan

Y g
n

i

fote 16, 18, 22, 24, 2%, 28, 35, 57, 52, W01,
'I?I 15, 135, 137, 147, 1489, 151, 153, 155,
157, 1m. |ﬂ.|=5 168, 171, |'I‘3. 183, 188,
and 167 ars hariged units,

=i w T

AN

Rt Brisk -

123, 139, 136, 147, 156, 159, 162,
163, 164 185. 186163, 170 171 72173
183, 184, 185, 188 187

=1
[

+Ruff Eirlck -

Plote 22, 23, 26, 24, 24, 27, 20, BE, BG, 37,
3033, 100, 101, T2, 121, 122 124, 123,
132, 177, 138, 147, 148, 148, 150, 151, 152,
| 153

I
1

|
|
! Waberial Hey
Lowel 01 Fioef Lavel Typical 30 i e i
2. Boce™
2y e e s e
A ey Py Wk Pl o wils Swpsmew Fosfie:
4N rradd curory
B ndne Fruma - Pae Gren - P soioar TRC

.

1

i Hi
H =
4 B 5271053

Tame e -U
e [ - —
e & S [ ()
T
i H- s |l Starc 21 20 m" \l
e - Lansny ESvre nims (9))
Sodian1 - B1 iﬂl“.lﬂ_r'l;.;.h-
i i
H H
R e & u
| Dn | Ermin o | 3t
nLATAm FILA TS e
—————— ST T T T — iy
-/._,.-" \\
-
. v e, i
nsnm (L& t . T —
JE N [ - - ] = SR e
—paa
|I] ~ H@é |_| g o
Die B v [-yrn' B Y, Cocoa West
. HT_3A - Plane Sectiors
o~ Fext Bkl RenrFacion - Ll Erick™ i ST Flevations
‘ Wi e ] 000 el 01820
g CITY OF —— e

I o R K HOUSE TYPE 3A PROPOSED IN NORTH SECTION OF SITE

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021 10




Site Sections (1)

CITY OF

COUNCIL

YORK

Sectlon DD
Northern Street

TITT 790 TPO0 VOO Y YOO WOV M =

TITT TTAT VA0 TUY YOOV YOS VOO M =

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

Uiley —
=

Hvenbes

Breagieis e wierdon of e mpen g k.
R Y P Y

o s,

B 2N Sometldng deenkors iocwar, o o
" b e ™

e lcon | ot P
Trvetng T

Planning

<

LATIMER
b e e

v:u D ieagod
J t it
uuﬂ"vl e

™
Cocoa West, York

realsy U
Proposed Site Sections

Shest Codo; ONDST) TPa22a2 ZaDRA004

Sl @A 106y 900, 01820
Dty M. 0304 I I Nee _ P2 ‘ * )

T e e ———




Site Sections (2)

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Fﬂ‘_jmu —1 =

| F;..Z' L) = .
| RSH=

1 Beblid Hi%ﬂiﬂu

V— —————

PR ER MR E R
ést? nlﬂi MEL

Sectlon B-B
Maln Street

PRI Soma iy sbeerbors conear.
P oean bk

b
111

Do e

Planning

AT —
: o o P ]

bl

T P e

Sactlon C-C
Nelghbourhoed Green TP Shaka
. DS D R M ne
Povbghn Svent
J (DS
‘ et ot
s

Cocoa West, York

w1

Proposed Site Sections

Shost Comn; DNOOGZe) TP a2 e 22aDRA0D
0500, 01020

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021 o) e

0 Wy




Example of Public

Realm and
Landscape

N

CITY OF

COUNCIL

YORK

ETA L T L n [ — F
L‘ 7 5 ==t =} & == 5
- - - B = 5%

= \;ﬂ : [] —| 1“?

5 IL""_‘ Type Type Type || Type ﬂ .J,;?,'

= 3t 28 28 28 a3

17.1m

[ae]
[

'gy'

.68.

City of York Council Plannihg Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

HAMBLETON TERRACE

.SE.

e
g

REFER TO L204
FOR LEGEND

HOTES

4. i cuwing n 5 50 ea I cmrjencion wht. 4l st
Tvwng s iacBakon
3 Dot icas oF fia dwing. Wrisn Smarien

Prtere
1 Ay Sacevpanchu furd babeass i doeing B

COMBPORATION

EYPLAM

PAGE 30F 4

Scai Tar

By w Smr PLANMING
[r—— J——
|
201572 1202
T B

T Sow TEm Om 2w

S rImgA Dew B




V.

21/01605/FULM - Mecca Bingo, 68 Fishergate, York

Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of the site to form 275no0.
room purpose built student accommodation with associated car parking,
landscaping and facilities

COUNCIL

08 abed



R S R
B BT A L S

W o b ok,
uuuuuuuuu

[ A -

Site Location Plan §

\

N
EC=N ' -H:""-' %
\ 1 R penn A AREE = R

—

MELBOURNE STREET

o
LANDECAR AKCWECTS

[451}2101

P

Fialta House, Fishergate, York

K

OLYMPIAN

I Location Plan

\ s
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

| bame  2101-GWP0 1-XX-DR-A=[PA0D01
scde  11IS0EAE [miden  PADZ

AL .
-\ ..... _l : 1 i o r r- DrownChectsd 50T [mamse 16,0621
~ : il P ittee-Meetng T2t December 2027 S i 1 T

— 1




Page 82

16

] 15
- I, | ¥ o
| E “_
- [ | | ¥ i
- =N _
i w e ] ahiun
o o i | - | _ _
- - 3 5 || _
_ i E X = i
Pr——— m = __ : _ i . -
g g : E
e HENN E__ _ “ m
I _H_ s I
SRR I i {
| L] - | @&
] w \. J.u = ._ | m T N ik ]
| b —
w BT o] I || W?
| =
0 5 H HH AT i
- B i _w _ e
RRRERATE 2 ! ] _ anmanst
i /.,nlnh RN m B MfRHL_____ ] L] m =+ T TER _._r..a[Llll..L\\
A_J. rJ.r_mh.ru.rrl '] HEHEE T EILEL L | Liel .mn_.mIm Q?Amll\.ll._ >
.lrL\l.Llu MJJ,}.:IHHHM. | _ ]
-1 e 3
l..ﬂwn.l__ L | A
LA il b e
FET | Lo L
\\1\1\11-_ F_F -
W e 12 b
x._.. _D. L
L/ LW

LY
[
T
El Sub Sta

EUETRY |

b
L
2
A
City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

IR

=

3
I
9

Conservation Areas

lllustration of
surrounding




Blue Bridge Lane

COUNCIL

A

Rear Elevation Facing South/William Court

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021 17

€8 abed



h\\ton cannon u

P ous - J., J(m

Front, Side and Rear of 25 William Court

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021 18




R L
.mm_:“ g Page 85 AR il
mm i i m m {HHR
i
HE 8 | J
auiil ol : il

1

YORK

Proposed Site Plan




Proposed Elevations —
North and West

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

) by f iy

-
b

OB Rt

Ll s
hd

AR P
¥

A P e
-

AL G Pt
hd —

dencaling ta cimeay
ELEVATION 03 - From William Court, Looking East

_______ Lift Overrun and
T s o by Smka Shaft
[y
-
preTp—
LB s
-

AR P
-

L
L

AL D Pt
L4

Meacca bings
ansting axant

42499

| = |

ey
mcoz.nd beick beandl ovar

98 abed

L

ELEVATION 04 - From Novatel Carpark, Looking South

Bk soldar coumas wi
recezad bride band @ear

Bick satbodks Basting fancing ‘

Materials Key

1. Light red multi-brick,

2. Dark red multi-brick,

3. Brass spondrel ponel

4, Setbodck brick panel reveal detai,

5, High perfarmance PPC Aluminium window units, double glazed, External
colour to match brass spandrel panel, RAL TBC (white internaly),

&, Horizontal louvre, RAL TBC,

] A 8 M.§ N NN B F-§ § |}

7. Standing seam zinc roof, RAL TBC,

B, Vertical metal railing RALTRC,

9, Feature horizontal band, Brick Soldier Coune and recessed brick band,
10, Stesl lowvwred external door, Colowr to match windows, RAL T

11, Feature brick chimney, Brick type 1/ 2 as per elevation,

12. Standing seam zinc to liff averrun, Calowr fo match roof, RAL TBC,

13, Potential location for Public Art, Details TBC,

B e sz
E..Mv.:\ﬁmmmwm.mm I ' Proposed Elevations 03, 04

ke . EES e Rialto House, Fishergate, York

wﬁﬁ:::;?mm o o ok g : .:-" Claee Mama 2101-GWP-01-XX-DR=A(FA}-0021
&= ;f secke  1:200@A3 Rwvaion

G = ~o| OLYMPIAN [ J— &= S
LT . . . . = e L S S T
S o City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021 ) 20



Proposed Elevations
— East and South

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

A by iy
-

i o
LA i o

1 i
-

1L ok
-

#1180 Coadl B
-

ELEVATION 02 - From Eluebridge Lane, Looking North

Smoka Shaft | Uit Owaman

Macca bings
anstng axant

FISHERGATE ROAD

dunlmg‘odumrw

Materials Key

1. Light red multi-brick,
2, Dark red multi-brick,
3. Bross spondrel panel
4, Setback brick ponel reveal detail,

5, High perfarmance PPC Aluminium window units, double glazed, Bxernal
colour to match brass spandrel ponel, RAL TBC (white intemaly),

4, Horizontal louvre, RAL TBC,

7. Standing seam zinc roof, RAL TBC,
8, Mertical metal railing RALTBC,

9, Feature harzantal band, Brick Soldier Course and recessed brick band,

10, Steel lowred sxternal door, Colowr fa match windows, RAL TRC
11, Feature brick chimney, Brick type 1/ 2 a3 per elevation,

12, Standing seam zinc 1o lift averun, Calour to match roof, RAL TBC,
13, Potential location for Public Art, Details TBC,

Back soldiar coursas with
moavad back band over

ey h.ga

BEEERIESNES S NE

R S

oy %ﬂ\*“mwmﬁ.m“ﬂ‘m gl

AT B of dnanion o b okt commarig ary werko¢
e Smpdogs U ke T o e o o i o rk el

ey i s i i rh b
im Sm 10m

a
[ [ N |

L1
Scola - 1200 @A

G ot Entwarcn
(4512101
LT

Rialto House, Fishergate, York

Proposed Elevations 01, 02

a1t | 221121 | Revaed rocommens a |er
FATG | G51731 | Lonchoopes neiasd o commen o |or
A7 | 041121 | Lanchoope newasd o commens o |or
PALS | G5.1021 | Minor grophicdl cmendmens e |on
T [wvmd] oo corrererts racwmoed] ikl |

Pt | 2as 21 Ekechen S [ee Jor
o [or

<3

Ch

City of York Council Planning Committee Me€

tmg -

2hd December 20

OLYMPIAN

riame 2101 -GWP-01-XX-DR-A-(PA}-0020

ccte 1:200@83 [twsion AL

orcrwnChached D / DT | Fatase

18.06.21

rawing Sasa D - Planning

TR T
ks

MmO
FUCT AAREE.
FROLECT MG,
LARBACPT MRCTIET:

i, i, i Lo Lt 24150
saall 1% )\MM“&' S0 13 S 1T
o e opraEheom



Large Scale Details and materials — Fishergate, Blue Bridge Lane corner

%

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

I Section A-A
1
|

Metal standing seam pitched roof

wdl .

g

View 3 - (Fishergate / Blue Bridge Lane Corner)

PPC Alu flashings
Recessed brick band

PPC Alurninium Window units

‘Chimney" Brickwork detail

Featurs Brick Detailing

3 No Soldier Cources with
recassed brick band above.

PPC Aluminium Window units to
active frontage / social spacss

Feature graphics fo give
additional ‘movement’ to

Mecca
Bingo Extent

Precedents

88 abed

T e

Syt s
gva B "

tmm(& SEAAY o o o b o aterm commacng ary werk o0

W S petors Sl b ks o o ol o g T o ol iy
Aoy rwpanciaaTa b oagn £ad 1 the Ateact

slevation
L 1
! :
! il T
|

57| THavand Rlomwih arndmanns BE BT
e
5 &l
% o
5 e |of
Tav  Dow | Comment or

» Rialto House, Fishergate, York

Bay / Materials Study 02

OLYMPIAN

Ch

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

Nowe  2101-GWP-01-XX-DR-A~(PA}-0041

e VARIES | PAO4

O cowes /o lncd.

D7 |rasnse 180623

Drowing Sasa D - Planning

o towon Lidgur Lova Laadel28 155
-l.nuu 2620 41 | +SHN1S 0 1REDT,
ahew corn | vam

22



e

(e P BT e I PN

Proposed Ground Floor

ko
Weran 8 mavdana ol barckmn

n cor eniacft draving

o rer i dginl divwdora oo i drowing

Moy s 16t ragerTad s b Niba

0 1m Sm 10m
||I|(|I||I | |

Scole - 1250 @A3

KEY
[0 sockal Space - 334m2
CYCLE SPACES Plont- 175m2
Shaffisid Hoops * - Vartical Cireulaton / Coms
[ Ghuster Sockal Kichens

I studio Room -Vosas 2Ne.

DDA Stdo Roam - =31 2m2 1Mo
I cluster tacroom - 12 5m2 27 Ne.

Toral: 50 No.

e Cyche Storage 168 Spacss (61.09%)

= Ratura Cycl Storage 148+ 94 Spaces = 262(95.27%)
G bulding fnvonce / fgress

¥ CycleAccess va Gate

" Moitnonca access off Shua Sridga Lane

mil 2212 -U =
12041121 Cydeloes amwnded =
MI1 05 0N Cydelaew anended

w10 | 3606 21 | Cycle ocoen vage adcrd B
0% | 2105 21 | Ravaed to comment Goklm

ADDMONAL
L. JCYCLE'SPACES
Sh os 1

mos | AN ==

TS

avod 31y 0¥3INsH

Brokan s lidgur oo Laskia 150
a1 13 364 2044 7] | +5800113 260 1R ©)
R WA G Y | e o

S RS

(451)2101

P

Rialto House, Fishergate, York

Gan

OLYMPIAN
\%ﬁ

g
% Proposed Ground Floor Plan
CITY OF
Nawe  2101-GWP-01-00-DR-A~(PA)-0012
Y R K e T750GA3 [we  PAD
DrawyOedwd DEDT  [rasm 180627
(S Satnston: D-‘ﬂonmrg
COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 202

ek o o IEAD ers, e
440

Ty B



Proposed First Floor

_ _ EEmREmEe O

Rt e e IRt e

ko
Wi 8 ndons ot Barchan.

o ror e of i

o rcr ke dginl dimacdans troce i droning
Aoy e v T © S At

a4 1m

5m
| | - | |
Scols - 1250 GA3

10m
| |

Studio Room - Vanas 21 Ne.
DDA Studo Room - -31.2m2 1Mo,
[ chster sadroom - 12 5m2 59 Ne.

Tosal: 81 No

moa [ 2291 m-hp.,m-m i
3

mo7 | 0510.21 | Apvand tordhect chonged

moe | 30001 Mdbﬁgﬂmnm"d

WS | 240021 | Mavaed tocommann

Goklm
| amced Submeoncn lacoman
el 3 ke

w4 | 11082

Substorcn boron cmended__ |
oy | oen

|FF
Cerere cmied Smcke | DF
5

‘ond smcvos e wwpped. |

| 23080 | nu-i e cammants

Hoon lickgarLaw Lok 20 150
Pty e A
g anh o

" Rt

(45112101

P

Rialto House, Fishergate, York

G

1 |
CITY OF i

YORK T

COUNCIL

OLYMPIAN

Proposed First Floor Plan

2101-GWP-01-01-DR-A~(PA}-0013
£ Sade 125083 [nevsen PADE
- DrowyOreched DE/DT  [Rranam 180621
Clty of York Council PIannmg Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021 e

3 Ve S o LTI T, Wi
112101 LRI st ae 10




Proposed Second Floor Plan

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

ik Rk e D
(R BT R R R SRR

P

mmmmmmmm

e 2z 22zl

Rialto House, Fishergate, York

OLYMPIAN

Proposed Second Floor Plan

Name 2101-GWP-01-02-DR-A-(PA)-0014
Sode 1:2508A3 ll-wa- PAOS




S e S v st ey

TSRSy o o rha i brn v vy ko

Proposed Third Floor Plan

10 | 229121 | Revaad tocomments. <

o | 053021 | Bec i chargedto @
wos | 30000 | fenpiccmmmn e eed

W7 | 2400 21 | Pavand vo cemmens Ocklen
| o 3w comweied @
moe | 1a0an i
W35 | 110821 | Subsomn loconan amanded | FF N
Wod | 290621 | Erergy cemwomimed Smcke | CE R
shett wepped |

M03 | 2330621 | Revaad o comments Jce_Jor
W02 | 320621 | Roofichito kichemadded  |OE_[OT
W | 18060 | fre e |

Fev  Dow | Comment D

CVPA

USERD ST
NERCS DEIATR.
aCE P

moxaT
LNDLCAR MCHECTS

lidgeriam Laaki2n 170
LT3 S T SSAO1YS 30 9
rchmesadgep-arh

oy
e
(451)2101
-1 ot e
il Rialto House, Fishergate, York
| | Car
|
1
|

OLYMPIAN

CITY OF | |

YORK

COUNCIL

Proposed Third Floor Plan

Nowe  2101-GWP-01-03-DR-A-(PA)-0015
Sede  1250@A3  [amwsen  PAIO
DewvOuwded DE/DT_ |ratum 180621

e o
City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

Vsn- (2512101 %i«Aav\. om e $10




Proposed Roof Plan

\
g CITY OF

COUNCIL

YORK

P =l
Chuaser Kischen
03.01 et
roof
e,
Roof ight 1o o > f a3.01
@305
Chater Kitchen
03.05 ewracy AV 10 3rd
#roughrod Carmdor balow
350mm Dioen ‘
Aue &
250mm CHP Aue.
Roof l
Quster
03.05
Roof ight 1o AQV 1 3ed
Clll°'3 Carridor balow
Quaser Kischan
03.04 evoa
AV 10 3rd
—\ Comidor
|

Cluger Kitchan
3.02 waract
roof

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

B B ST
(e BT R TR R

pen—

Wi e s i oud bk o

0 par e off

0 pcrnle gl dimsesona from ¢ dromieg
ey o arcios © b roperted 6 £ Ak

|0|m Sm 10m
I |

wl\\l

ol - 1250 GAS

Raokocoms valkwoy

g foll Amest System - Design and
2 e fdiini S

1 Dminoge guter
—————> Drainoge falls - asindicated
AOV 10 smokeshaft -
Senving up 10 Second Flcor

Combinad AOV/Roof Access
Hoxch 1o stair cores.

PV Panels - 22 No.
2094 x1038nm @ 30°

Roof Light

[ID L a8

mio | 22012
mgosso)l [ R doraed o
08 | 2400 21 | Pwvond o commant Goblm
cmanched S ubstoncn |coo on
 B— 17
[ARTI T et ittt
W05 | 110821 Subarcson kosion cmenced
MOS| 2806.21  Core 3Smom thet reccoted
W04 250631 | P cuertum corfemad
W03 230621 Ravasd to commant
W02 220621 ook ighh tobitcherm cckded
MOT 180621 Fre haw
v

CVPA

CwaRs MOWCT:
NERCR CECE
SHCE R

ORI NAAGE
LANGLCAR ARCHECTS.

Pavond 1o commens

=T

bed

€6 °

1 Mo, Lkt Laon. L3 190
ST 1336 £ 1) | +S8TH1 13 268 1R 1)
AR O | e o

e e
45112101
P

Rialto House, Fishergate, York

e

OLYMPIAN

Proposed Roof Plan

Name 2101-GWP-01-04-DR-A~(PA}-0016




Clear space
1500mm x1500mm under worktop
Wheelchair turning space

Typical Bedroom Types

floor unit

L__F

7

.e_‘

flaor unit

@
Typical Cluster Study Bedroom - 190 No. Typical Studio Bedroom - 82 No. Typical DDA Studio Bedroom - 4 No. ®
Unit Shown 12.5m? Unit Shown 18m? Unit Shown 27 8m?* ©
AN
List of furnifure:
1. double bed
2. desk
] ! ! 3. chair
TYPE 01 ] 26.5m? 3 4. vl:alrdrObe
t 5. shelving unit
TYPE 02 13.2m? 17 TYPE 02 20.6m? 12 TYPE 02 | 27.8m? i 1 i 6. potential chairs
] : H 7. ncll-ueneﬂe
TYPE 03 17.6m? 1 TYPE 03 26.2m? 1 8 table
TYPE 04 21.0m? 1 TYPE 04 18.9m? 1
TYPE 05 14.8m? n TYPE 06 31.0m? 1
%W%ﬁi@’r&?ﬁmﬁﬁh R (5112101 .
‘ %ﬁm g iy e e - Typical Bedroom Types
o CITY OF CET LTy v 90t comatrg Rialto House, Fishergate, York
S oAty e o el o v el = hame 2101-GWP-01 - DR-A-(FA)-0060 e
Ay hacraprciaarabmrapa rad m he Acheacs = 15088 |l.-_ S LA RELCAPE ARCHTECE:
| I | |h OLYMPIAN rcwn/Crecied DE / D1 |pathase 18,0621 ettt o iz
e s WS PR L0 | o g ENC

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021 28




Proposed Sub Station

Brick Par. with Raaf structure Ta
Herthem Power Specifications

Lowwed doars fa Narther Pawer
Grrid Spedfications

Sul-Stations walk in dark red
multi-brick

Switchroom Access Substation Access Substation Access

Sub-Station - Ground Floor Plan Elevation 04 «Q
D
(e}
ol

Rialto House 1o Rear
Elevation 01 Elevation 02 Elevation 03
m. E“ G ot Radumec s
\ CITY OF a F:pmmm_:"ﬂ*‘.n:,&.‘._q T | ST Wi S T P Proposed Sub Station
ot Ao | annat e o i Rialto House, Fishergate, York

RRR™ %R
SE5R B3
i
g
E

e e
e . o s e a0 W | VIR St LA ogpmm o
fng dcrepanci b repn red i the Adirecr mwﬂ T T :‘ :':"m:"m'"i'o'm'*w”::'zo o wcas
" %‘l Revaion
2m
" b [ [ Com o <k OLYMPIAN oramiected DE 7 DT |rmrtawe 180621 e o e e
.

IIII|IIII it . CEI b MRS T torh, ke
T Drowing s [ - Plannng

COUNCIL Tress City of York Council Planning Committee Meetlng “Shd December 2021




Willicam Court Willicam Covurt
no 25 el

William Court —
Overlooking Study

ELEVATION &

4z 400

Building lne to ariging
planning submitted sdieme

10,066
Secpackary 1o Side

__\ . A
: - - |
[ k] $ \—,/{
@ $ i
II 2 e
| = g2
I 3 2%
L] @
&

‘William Court na 25

96 abed

e e e R I
\ CITY OF S I IR A R S R Opaque - William Court - Overlooking MA
e o i o s s Transparent Rialto House, Fishergate, York
v o it ot o o i Translucent windows set back behind louvres WD MCHECTS
Yo R K %&%‘:&M“‘ —_— © Spandrel panel ! ! S liome 2101-GWP-01-XX-DR-A-(PA}-00£2 8 S s
o ’ Louvered service doors PARY | JRORIT | Lot rorefact pln Foe 1:200@A3 - PaOI ———
ﬂ m |5f" 1m = Splayed Windows Tov Do Commant o Th OLYMPIAN - T/ o7 I::.. 31.08.21 i, How, L Lo Lol 1553
N L Y 5 ————————— _ 13 20 441 | o2aA13 08
COUNCIL L 'E‘Cf{'f/mo?‘?ﬁirw'éouncn Planning Committee Meéeting“*2nd-December 2021 e 3D ~Plonring B




Existing and
Proposed
Render (1)

Existing View

Proposed View 01 Looking South From Fishergate Rood

—jor

of

\
g CITY OF

Rialto House, Fishergate, York

Render 1

EECCT

ST St - A T Fomdims
L) e . ¥ 7 =
rabarwnead n e Achracs 3 e e
v <h

OLYMPIAN

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

Nome  2101-GWP-01-XX-VS-A-(PA)-0045

sccte  N/A

[reaicn PAOY

o cowm Chwclond DF

T ls,su...

Drawing Sasa D




Existing and
Proposed
Render (2)

Existing View

Key

Proposed View 02 Locoking West Down Blue Bridge Lane

Rialto House, Fishergate, York

T o

Render 2

e lor

= «1  OLYMPIAN

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

Nawe 2101-GWP-01-XX-VS-A-(PA)-0046

Sccde

Drawe Checked -

[rwion PAOY

T Ia—,- e

Drawing Sasa D




Existing and
Proposed
Render (3)

i

faky
e ss

Existing View

Key

Proposed View 03 Looking East Down Blue Bridge Lone

e - Render 3
— " . i | L i " Rialto House, Fishergate, York
> ‘\h CITY OF i el =z & i: = b 2101-GWI01-KNS-A{PA)-0047
I il — OLYMPIAN == = Jea ko
Y R K DWS*“ ’ . ;‘;‘;Z’“ﬁ:ﬁm- '
COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021 33



Existing and
Proposed
Render (4)

Existing View

00T sbed

Key Proposed View 04 Looking East From Williom Court

2 Render 4
Rialto House, Fishergate, York
o
O Name  2101-GWP-01-XX-VS-A-(PA)-0048
o I Sccte M /S Revaion PAOY
~—= OLYMPIAN = f= 2o
Drowing Sasa D

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021




V.

21/01535/FUL and 21/01536/LBC - The Minster
School, Deangate, York

Change of use of former school to York Minster refectory (use class E) to
Include new restaurant, kitchen and plant, creation of level access, installation of
platform lift, new service doors, re-roofing, integration of solar PV panels and
external repairs; and creation of a new Public Open Space, including external
landscape improvements, gazebo, parasol bases, ice cream hut, railing
relocation, cycle parking and cycle service hub.

COUNCIL

TOT obed



EBVRACVM

ROMAN LEGIONM
FORTREES

Site Location Plan

| 3
“ZN CITY OF — OW o
COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021 36

Y,



West Elevation and Site
Frontage — View from
Deangate

\
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL




West Elevation —
View from Deangate

(2)

b A T i »Zv.[
LT

iUUHUHHu

| SERREEN

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL




View toward North
Flank and Location of \
Lift \

ik

r
|

I v

"‘:Q‘; CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL




View toward York Minster

"‘:Q" CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL




Proposed West
Elevation

Materials Key: Q-?
«Q

Stone - Ashlar, Limestone - existing ’

Slate - roof renewed refer to Drwg (G4) 200fore ()

PV Siztes - refier to Drwg {GA) 200 for notes

Terne Coated (lead coloured) stainless steel cla¢ b
Painted timber doors and with leaded ghazing, O
exizting adapted ~
Chimneys - unused - existing

New painted timber boarded door in existing, adapted
stone suround

Discrete LED downlight= on sfim stainless steel projecting arms
New flag pole an new brackets, repiacing existing broken
fiag pale brackets

10/ Exsitng windows, glazing, lead cames and opening fights
all refurbished

11)  Existing lantern and bracket refurbizhed / replaced with new

RRIBRIR

D&

Koy Pian Stage 2 - For Planning Not for construction

CITY OF
[CUBNT £ o
York Mirster 150 (A1) £:100 (A3) 110521

. Date .
11,08, ALS
ALS e
h \(> ¢ (The Yok Mister Redectory o mé
\\ Notes: m"’“’s '"“M
) N, 122-3 (GA)00 2.03
. S Aot ARCRTICRAE LD » -~
e S BRI =1 | I‘E‘/ 0 "':.-

. LN . sk
COUNCIL = sitRlanning Committee Meetingd2nd December2021 __ « [‘ QQT@CQ,RE ot




Proposed East
Elevation

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

L e Materials Key:
W {01 Stone - Achiar, Limestone - existing (i6) Gahanised Fire Escape Stair - existing retained
1 i i e i VA 2 7 i Fa e P
L stone sumound . stone suToUNG, adspiad and rapard {02 Slate- roof renewee, refer to Drwg (GA) 200 fornoes | {17)  Mew emergency finadight replacing exting in existing locstion
D3 PV Slates - refer o Drwg [GA) 200 for notes 4 (18]  PPCaluminium rwdp snd hopper, colour to match dadding
h=Slielaivuy L sulunig = Lfmbigh
1 P p— new palnted Smoer door win 08 Teme Costed (lesd coloured) stainless steel dlad lift shat (15 Screen
plane giazing - 3l pai gn;e&mmmwm 05! Esisting Fire Exit Window - adlapted to Fire Exit Door - refier to detail
cpening gt (dcor) glazed, L N opening Iight - seized 06 Chimneys-unused-exjnirg. .
on satety giass, all painted U7]  Mew Supply and extract terminals flush with slates, colour to match siates
out plack ] 08 PRC Aluminium louwre, colour as cladding
- 9 Galvanised ladder with marsafe channel and pop up safety post
- 10/ Fall restrairt post
11]  Kitchen extract, fiters and attenuation
A s U 12 Esisting windows, giaring. lead cemes and opening lights
all refurbished
Existing Proposed 13)  Stone Siate - roof renewed on ke for fike basis with new build up
— L. ) i . 14)  Mew bulkhezd lights - in asisting lacztions
0s) Existing Fire Escape Window Adaptation, 1:20 15 Newsst oo repiacing defective existing
iren and plastic minwater poeds
| 2 Deangate - The Old Song School The Stone Yard
A
N
== = ° \\
r J T L o N
T g o8
= i U
— !
(] o T o (g
- ml h
- e fe o
! u Joa —
a2 [ 1 . . 0o
.rﬁ\l o1 o1 L0 ol 1
E 12 | -
) | 1 1
1 new rwdp and hopperin | /|
new location ke
13
| <
. 1
|
e [ T ol e Foey Plan frsieitr . ot E:‘:?e 2 - For Planning o Not for .:u:msn'ut:ﬂiclnnm
2 18111 al Note 2 and 3 amanded - PV ilets islisu of PV paneb, East Elevation amended to sult DRWG PREFIX CORRECTED _ ;::::‘.::;:rm dhouist. Abwirys use bbb reedaion. Vork Ilisiar T80+ 1:30 A1)/ 1:300 (3] 1|
R : s o 2
Maudd In conjunction with other Information dhom CAL and other comultants, The Yerk Miss tar Rafeciony A ap
\ x\ LE gﬂii\l'l::lf‘;“um N [T XY nms.;'
st Elevaticn (Church Yard) e
N / g 3 Prapsmd 122-3 [(GA)401, 2.02
™ 7 _ _ (ST
T Planning Comm‘rt\ég\/leetlng_l_; 2nd December 2021 = [. gﬁﬁcgé




Proposed North and

South Elevations

CITY OF

COUNCIL

Materials Key:

2

e

Eing g oo Lt rrihed | etce
o i clad lift shaft
(o8 mumﬁmmmmmumﬂgdmm
e i arms
(07! New extract terminal in existing locstions
08 Exinting SVP
S — -
{10)  Fall restraint post
a2 Erising windows, gling Iead cames and ogening lghs 10 be sesie]
A * Cpague privacy - extent as shawn
3 for like basiz
a4 mmkamwm« repsired
@ Mew cast o i
iron and plastic reinwster goads

e Escape Stair - existi

g criting
Pew coor in place of existing window
Salid scoustic barrier - 18m high

Imternal floor level raised locally

Mew ot drain to perimeter at junction with building
Existing wi iy concealed by - opened up

adapted

FOE GREEEEHEE

Existing plasterbaard ceiling removed and replaced with new

North Elevation - Facing Stone Yard

YORK

Stage 2 - For Planning Mot far

[CLIENT SHE
[ York Minster 150(A1) /1100 (A3)
T

W TITLE

@ CAROEES




Proposed Sections

\ s
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

=]
=2

[oepr—
Ao Bk regudoes

Section A-A, Proposed

A ettt

@EntrarmeSnfem Door - Modified for Level Access, approx 1: 20 @ A1

Materials Key:

G
3
c]

o

@
]
%
L]
]

18

®

EE

Terne Caated (lead coloured) stainless steel clad lif: zhaft
Gahvanised ladder with mar=afe channel and pop up safety past

©  rotreatriec o

e glazing, lead i -safety film to be
applied to in few of existing glazs rep receszry
wainzeot paneling.
ceiling and rep 2 layers fire
ratad plaztarbozrd
Esisting lath and plaster skillings
Al for ceiling with fire
st ceiling replaced with new

Existing suspended ceiling tiles removed, lath and plaster ceifing
reinstatad

glazed doar ilz the in Fit Out

i door] with esting far. light removed

and infilled, new FR door
News staff and customer facilities - imber stud and plasterboand

in Fit Out
do ined and adapted to zuit new levels

‘providing level access

Internal stone i and reir i level o ide level

scozss. Some new paving required to replace warn and broken, induding
3t warn thresholds, to minimize trip hazards.
Extmrnal levels raized - refer to Landscape propassls

New flag pole and assaciated brackets

General Mote - Roof repairs:
MNote Removed
Refer to (GA) 200 - Roof Plan as Proposed

o
jab]
«Q
D
=
=
(@)

SR

iHPlanning Committee Meeting - 2nd_December 2021

Stage 2 - For Planning

Mot for construction
Tt

[visee izt 1:5048 AL 1100 @ A3 14.06.21)
[FRGIECT T G|
THE S o

1223 (GA)300 2.02

(H’ CAROE ZEEm nomer S

¥l ARCHITECTURE HSERnil il D——




01)  Existing York stone flag floor raised to provide level sccess Esisting timber stair and balustrade. Joirery repsired and refurbished
Mew stone introduced with old to remedy broekn and wor, especially 3t Folllowing remaowal of hardboard conceslment
worn threshodds, to create step free foor wit ip hazards. (13}  Mewtimber scoess hatch to basement
Merws excternial finishes 3t rew levels to provide level acoess (14, New evterior timber door in new structursl opening
Pro posed Ground Eaine e s et e i ettt i e (15 e v e s .
Existing door - retained in existi i (18! MNew internal timber doar and frame
F I OO r P I an Existing door - relocated A7, Mew glazed timber door and frame in new structural opering

Existing door - handed 5 New Colcroom

Meew door - in adapted existing window opering 19, Exsting RWDP and assaciated hopper to be relocated
Euisting wi ined and rapsired,

Ne'w fire rated roller shuster - linked to fire alarm

Existing metal fire escape stair -retained and redecorsted

Mew glazed doors and screen

o8
8,
e
2
et

E SdEng e I verAcs T g
s TG -l e e ebine gl

WG Pl Gomc o i
5 sttt
(8)

RG.05
NORTH WING

D
lmaroas or A
|- H
H
ENTRANCE [T ————
- smnmgltag fos s i provios e — Al v o gt |~
[re—
Key
Exiging

Ground Floor Plan - Proposed | iy

|55 Mewtabic

C | T Y O F ?; n‘rmn m Cead ﬁm.‘ P Ty Pisn et ™ N [ Stage 2 - For Planning Mot for construction
I 160621 (A :t Mot amesded Y ENT

Eens T
York Minste 150041}/ 1400 (A%) 11.18.21)
oo b i — o -
Kltchen and Prepartion Are3 EqUIpMEnt - shown for INmatan oy i o T
Hotea: n
44 Propeset (St and Core] 122-3 (GA)100 2.02

COUNCIL e Planning Committee Meeting - 2 CAROE e ey

ARCHITECTURE msiami




Proposed First Floor

Plan

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

existing exit from
Stone Yard into
existing alleyway

existing roof light
opening to become
roof access hatch

A

OPEN YARD

fire escape stair from first floor,
escape routevia church yard

Esisting stone siate roof renewed on like for like basis with enhanced
insulztion and breathability

Meew lead "dormer” facilitating new kitchen extract ductwork.

Existing lead lined gutter renewed on like for like basis, with falls adapted
o LCA codes

Esisting kitchen extract removed - refier to demalition drawing.
Indicative roof mounted plant - refer to M+E Consultant information
Meew roof sccess hatchin existing roc light opening

P accmss ladider with il srrest lidelock system

Terne Coated (lead coloured) stainless steel dad lift shaft and roof
Esisting restricted mesns of escape via small window, improved by

dlapting exiting nd to means of escape

Existing timber s=air and halustrade

Existing door retained, ironmangery, dasers and saals upgraded
Esisting internal window, retrained, restored and revesled and sdapted
with FR glazing if suftable.

Esisting internal window, retained, restored and reveslied to stairs
Existing opening roof light retained and overhauled

Existing roof access vi window - retzined

RR.O2 Acoustic screeing
wiss =— WiL1E W03 new RNDP
existing felt roof - flat | :
to be renewed on like | [ ] . _—0— 9—~.
for like basis |
| o "
| i el
ey
| ST,
| U
| m
I
O\ ke ' ®
York Minster ANy -’4:"- )
Stone Yard L N | || (GA)300
Waorks Buildings - Lounge Bar . R1.05 ~ =
: SOUTH WING Speneg s s sz =
pariaby baciracr scocaee
R101 Seating T N
NORTH WING
glass connection between lift shaft I T -
and existing stone wall - 250mm g am
approx. 'shadow gap'
existing roof ight removed, new
batten rell roof lead roof to maich e
existing berel o aghtours
I
slate roof - re roofed to ] =] (==
new secification -
=
'qup 7 weo batten [oll lead roof - maintenance WG5S
o pame casement for roof access, s works pnly, with addition of fall
with lack, new access restrainjt fixing points
steps
Key
[ Bdsing
- [[Ed Demoitons
First Floor Plan - Proposed PR —
o [150638 [ b |Rootpant evd, scted amended o Nors aledi i, e e A [Stage 2 - For Planning - Mot for °°"5“"-'°ﬁ°:n
hicte that Sreaton 150141}/ 1400 43 18.05.21)
o =
Maad In conjunction with otber Informeton fom CAL and other cimutants S O |
TR RN |

S ST T A ik o

[

-Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd.Decembe&2021

122-3 (GA)1I01 2.01

+ ThaSurmport Offcs
5P Cathacra
an




Key: S . . .
h T —
O1)  Existing stane slate roof rencwed on like for like basis with crianced alleys, i w
\ insulation and breathability suit increase in averall height of roaf caverings to sccommesdate 4
I', New bead "dormes” facilitating new kitchen extract ductwork ir ion; lightni i with terminal
Proposed Roof Plan ., riivasmissisrey Sllevmsmeianaom »
| ’ ‘OPEN YARD .'.I falls to LCA codes ! s=fe acoess o solar 3 outlets i
1 I} 04 Existing ki wed - refer ition drawing [ inta roof detailing. {
| 05 efer to M info S e . /
< B 06! New roof light apeni safety line
| W extemal canopy | shelr to rear : 5 openne
enfrance door- tmber framie and fiat rodt, {GA)30 07/ Mewzccessladder with fall arrest glidefock system M Bestingroofiight=
e Pl 08, _Terne Costed [lead coloured) stsinles: steel cad f: shaftand roaf | lates within roof pitch, ing ew slte roof
09)  Existing sixte roof materials stripned and set aside; inefective 1980s New pofyester powder costed acoustic screers
s flammable insulation removed: roof structure and intemal eelings calour BS 10 A 05 [mid grey) - the.
retained and repaired on like for like basis; new bresthable ‘warmeroof | (14 New Supaly and extract terminals flush with slates, calowr to match
. 1 4 insulzted build-up applied over existing rafters with sirleskage detailing © 15  Discrete LED downlight on sm stainless steel projecting arms, located
‘s_.{ - chi ildi i cowerings ing central an embrasures
- :’;‘::_";‘:J; f counter-battended; new solar-siates to specialist installer details, . (16 Lawintensity LED accent uplights lighting facade, witheut spill to sky ar
existing exit from existing roof light Y l
Stone Yard info opening to become - !
xR o ancess hatolt |:| e fire escape stair from first floor,
- H escape route via church yard
- 7=\
existing felt roof - flat @) = RS,
to be renewed on like et St e,
for like basis i
RR.06
1 s S RR.1D
RO 9 ] 9
WRI1 v o WRDS
FLAT ROOF a1 S ] o 11
d R
,,’/ o RR.08 NN
P L /./ by 1
10 (
N\ B o | AN Y
A N A
“York Minster &l | et . WREE QJ
Stone Yard (GA]300 g W shate RR.0D . u (GA)300 (o)
Works Buildings WRLID RR.05 S
u D
- . \ - p A ) RRAZ
€] ) B 12 £ !
| rro2 N 7 . I
FLAT ROOF =
G RR.O7 s e e ¢ w
- T @8 & 5 5 ® ll RR.11 W
I f ; | .
existing roof light removed, new | wroe | L
batten roll roof lead roof to match 1 a1 h ]:II i
exisfing | fegF T
Rf.04 Ry
iz 12
slate rqu-ma'ntinanc;e . . UL = O . — - // = B
works only = B = — EEESSE SRS S = — = . & )
batten roll lead reof - maintenance % -l
M 16; works only, with addition of fall 15 15
restraint fixing points 13
B
Key
(GA)30)
Exizting
c I T Y O F | Ruv. Date D, | Cheed. Plan - il g
B e b $ e =3 st e [Stage 2 - For Planni o Not for mnshudlu:.
% Tiess o Y siaters chuarnged o Tully Insage bes. a oy dcenpar 150 (A1) 1:100 {83) 110821
T e
Read | Tha York Minster Refectory A J‘
Mot [DRAWING TITLE FRMINITE | CRRMAG . RoAS ]
122-3 (GA)200 2.02
COUNCIL City of York Council |Planning Committee Meeting - 2rid December 2021 % CAROE &5l sommcrcns
e » , . - SRR C i

ARCHITECTURE

TR Sz T T
WWW.CARDE COM

LOMDON BCEM 1D
Tomm M s




Proposed Landscape Plan

Y,

i

ner carmuitanty drange -
wing esign inomation

e dutadi

56 a0udior b Bases dedgn 8 spechicatan
oching of ary eharent

Dranage derige nd hirntructere

i ducting

CITY OF

COUNCIL

AB dimerasors in s, urkess stherwbe itated
Sealng frm drmwing f 3rirtad ncorracty may s 4o

AboraTon ourite red e Lourdary dhomn fox
comtentua! purpons by
A% hatch pastenns ars bedicatia only unkess stated
o
This drawig |3 10 be read 1 cosfencion o reeat
documestanon ¥om the design tean

i 0 tha 4

Wieat, The contrazicr i 35 chieck and verity all besls

v dimersions agamit s1e sanvey hitematisen
sancies In the deugn Rformaticn are ta Be
the atsenson of re form lamscaoe
P r———y
ok,
Ty products shat be iestal
Pth mastactenoss wi

b strict

roponed uthties
5 a0 10 St 21 0 In JECOTTINCE woth
Elort dassties

100 plans wubstitution shall be ogreed whe
1€ architect e o crdaring.

YORE MINSTER

STONEMASONS AREA

S
. F
ning Committee

R

For datalls of Perpolagatebo refar to
K6 RFIA-XX-00-OR-L-800L

i & v

TALBOT COURT GARDEN

eting - 2nd December 2021

ey

Plansing apphcation boundary

Existng buldng

Coursed Yorkstone paving

wih contrast banding

Redn bound gravl sufacig

Prepesad fush bace

I l b stands
B fenchwith bockrest
&  Fowdews

7] Baistieg raiings and low wall

7 Prozosed ralings and ow wall
&7 | tralocating esisting 10 be remaves)
|

ﬁ Proposed scroen 1o Sin stece

O - Nemirwicned gates o match
gy

Proposed vk

Eastiog levely

{isting trees to be retained
Frogosed tree in soft lendscape
Froposed box heated tree
Progosed espalier yramed it tree
Frogosed grass

Froposed plaming
Fefer (o pranting strategy
QN REM X0 OR-L004

Moneatie planters 750w Hgh
Fafer 1o planting strategy
-1 M- XHL0- 00004

Frozosed hedge plaating
Refer to panting strategy
QB M K00 DR-A004

v TT abed

Froposed chmbers to wall
Fater 1o planting strategy
CRETE-FF M- X-00- DR-L004
Indicative table kcatios
Layout and size 10 eperutor
spetification

Low lgheing butird to contral rente

Bicyde repair station

re-form

landscape architecture

Tower Works, Globe Road

Leeds 1511 506

T +44[0]113 245 4555
nfogrefomiangscaps.com

W o formisndscape.com

Project

YORK MINSTER REFECTORY AND MINSTER YARD

RF20-878

Clemt
NORK PATSTER
Document title

LANDSCAPE GENERAL
PLAN
Paper she Saale
AL 1200
Status
FOR REVIEW AND COMMENT 53
Orawing nus Revieon
O PRE A XXC0-BRA0001 P02



Proposed

Landscape Sections

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

0002 Sectioneleabon: sl reute inoking towarcds Stoneyard
0

Motes

P

o8

A dimansires b e, ushess otherwss stated.

rmers
A iefursration oetsade fud b Bourdary shows e
oreestist purgose ol

ThVs draminng i3 10 be e i Conpurction with the
fotlowing re-dem lardicaps sechbactire

#ocumentation
* 0875 R X000 L0001
 Cunatel Arrasguenact Moo

mern. v»-mmmuummummnn

ATRECaAe, 1 WP X 0 CommencRNEINof

3

2100

“Saction kocation plan

MO

\Coﬁﬁcn Planning Committee Meél

1300

O INIIIH‘;@; TR i

002 Sectonelevaton: cterral ing wece lcking towds the u-l-mrv

| ||I!||1H|l|||I||l|\IIIUIIIHIIIIIIIIIIIII(H \Illllltl‘lhhnlhl« .1:mlhdllﬂllllllllllll [l

a2

Scale

3 e RO e
umn s era et x
Serg e ._. e

re-form

landscape architecture

Tower Werks, Globe Road.
Leeds 131] 56

T +a4 [0}113 245 4585

£ nfog@redomungscaps.com
Vi 10 formizndscape.com

Project
THE REFECTORY, YORK MINSTER
RF20-876

Clent
YORK ANSTER
Document title
ILLUSTRATIVE LANDSCAPE SECTIONS

Paper siae
a1

Status
FOR REVIEW AND COMMENT

o -XXC0-DRAC00)

€ s i b

GTT obed

L
Om Im 2m Im 4m Sm Em 7m Bw Sm iom

nes

H

fometreics
-

sale
1200

Rewision



Example of PV Slates

4—":-;-‘%‘ CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021




21/01980/FUL — College Green, Minster Yard, York

Landscaping works including provision of seating and stepping stones

COUNCIL

/TT obed



TN N
7

o “;:—:ﬁ% X7 XN\
e B AN
JDean's Park’ S\ Y@ K

t’—"" -

Site Location Plan

~

Cons
&

¢ N
QS\& Oé /Ie’

Notes:
’ %‘ 1. Nat for construction ail @mensions %0 be confirmad on site
=222 N CITY OF 2 Based OS_Vectorkiap,_Locd_Raster_£95210_904677 1_10000

3 Reter Zoundary
treaments, sie levess, arainage, retaining walk
4 Buld en

sy b proreec swmw?n?mummmmummmm 572508

e sz | roa 5. Al existng trees 10 De protected to 55 S837. rfog papassan

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021 52

Y,



College Green — View
North West

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

53

6TT obed



College Green/St
Williams College — View
North East

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL




Existing Footpath — View
Toward
Goodramgate/Deangate

LITTER

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

2



Proposed lllustrative
Landscaping

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

T, e % 7 7 570 = T T = - 7
““:{fz"‘—"’ ""z : ,r?" " L7000 z . 0 7 Y N # e
) Hard canved Tadoester Megresism LinestsnelGuseay G = 3 257, I y Pyt
scuptural testure Cats D ough the existng wwn tc \‘, -~
etrphusise the virw of the Minslee and crale an iteractive | 1}
seating festuire. To kichide & chandared edge 1o the top of i;,
ha sione evwel 2 band ceved delels, such & e Winsler

Cut sicne crestes & crisp, clemn Ired featirs thet
Hes i Wi Dre Mimsder end it archilecture style

4 LRSS . 4
s ol drits of widfowe: and serene A
L : v 24 o _ y } ™ ":,‘ 4 : ;i 4¥ plenting waeve Breugh the space and
| ) = y 7o ! AL 2o 41"‘,' Iernct with the scubsturel feature, o
! perarnial plnting y ‘ ESTA T f s "rM‘n '”0,‘,' crestn & beethi clartieg display
ot N AT 0L ’ L Pharting fon mecm intimate pockats of

X scece end seeting arees wihin the widel P

1S J NS r &4 2505 itarest fom soed hmads and stucti A

s nzen law wong e Fontage win
Colloge ensure post cerd views of the sissber
reman cpan and & faxbie cpan soece e

| evarts and actiily is, sich & the fOp Up

. Yok BIO everts that have proved populer
. averthe pest 2 years, | retained

P . IS A

a4

potis 1o the main sculptone fosture in
Colege Creen Pavieg siones are
fush 1 ensire Uy are socesaltie
nd are 1o provide ample wicth for
userns o share B soece end |
MutoeTe Wi ease

.

scheme. Thess mature e Yame £
the Minster, snbarncing the povicerd
. offering estabinhed cenopy cover, 3

fating mes 10 be pectectnd by
L8 accordance with BS S637.2012 i the
e sz the pah ¥ be remcved dun W . g : » : 5 7 b mmfwv;hugm
e age - =Y < 3 . ' ‘_ B & &y ~ R ol be carried cul using & Hand Dig

Surgery Laf finther detals. Leveistobe |
| relsined &3 axisting under RPAY.

Existing path 1o neoporsie designated seating arees
New high quaity benches are proposed thal very in height
and include back end aim rests, cetering for of ages and
ablly reeds. Benches e 1o be cated off the path
within hed surfaced peved wrses. Spece fir whee! chaks
and pushchain 12 be noorpomied st to some of the
Benches 1o emure the preposels ate bouive and
ovarynne is sble 10 enoy Da soece

Hand carved Tedosate! Vagnesl:
Urmestena/Cuseloy Gl stepping stone feetute
1o run Bwsugh Dae pockets of plenting end lewn

wen, cheaing an inletective feetire,

encouteging Usens o conredt with the proposed
design. Haxsgon shaped stepping siones have
charmdeted edge 1 the lop and 15 vary 1 haight.
Viryng height stepping siooes sep up end
down ircugh the grean and plasting pockets
within the ewn

e 1 Acrns path ard low wals to b relaited
2 Al retaned surfecng end wells are sutject 1o
warka, general and

meldeg good whees seguited. Removed peving
from within Coflege Crean 1o be reaned end

re-pupoed for spaivng good werks

1 Nao. Proposed Whitebean ee 1 replace e e

m?mmnwh
S retained within the proposed
L irprovements. Paving s Bis aree o

“ 1 ﬁummm-mm

- %




Batch B0 -
Mage
15 ralinct the
Arrmssicns, angh

Banch o i, Bianich
chaarrie b th top edge. The York Minsier Cicts Keys Chst to e hind
canved ink the wed ol the vt banch.

Proposed Plans
and Sections

A | B |

N ETONE FEATURE BENCH A ",

™, ™,
"\ Cut skone sk banch *, )
" Cutslone feturs saing stis ot e Sesture i Etvmar
Sortend et roind  dheiry il s il 5 ¢ N Bt mmum"ﬁmm
L ';'""":ﬂh‘" e banchas. To b s fhush and e Pawing 5 ta Yerkstion Sardione o Fens
ez it 4 shght canizmiecss of Daan Susdutens. Te b e using 4 g
eng i anl pravad g that
et ancu s periraar, e Mcitate drarace

cesliusten busa und inciide Sstul e

STONE FEATURE BEMCH ELEVATION @ 1:50

Basch o
r Cat wnd
Aﬁ_‘_“’"""“"“‘“"""""“‘“mm“‘“ m § pe— il high. Bench b b eestusied fom curved hand
ienalcns, arele and shage £ be riined dusing fla et stinge of woslkin F. - e ‘ -@_l:""
! Eruct lincalisrs, o rrsicns, anghe and shaze b be rabned
it - - Pt fos ol York Weraa e i Vi, Bt 1 vl St chadorts
Rt ! the wp adge Bacch i nchide @ Frm chasler 1o the 1p edge. Bench i

AD0mes e ot shone privig =g detel o
o pukurty of s shond ahire.
% B0mes,

400t wick 21t sdonn pavineg rasgis detal 1o

o 08 The Vet
; Frivrd ol ol b
» s s o banch A

ADDrm= wte ol st puvieg margh desd
bhpﬂud‘ﬂhr‘m
faatun. Elocks b b 2000300sm ¢ S0mm

e S0 B0 x Beran
dnp.mnbh\‘mhln
Saredslon ot Feru o Dean

Sandatoea. To by i g &
dmap Pavicg o be Yoikshie Susduicos o g ot uction use wed
Faseat of Dipws Susdsicns. Ta be isid usisg & [ErE—— -U
ight cussinictus buse and inchisk Satar
iy - Cut slone fwalure garving stiis Satal batwten he
benchiPixisg 1o b Yeribise Sandslons o Fenmsd ol QJ
n_munw-hguuum
[ERRpa——— @
Cit slone liaters sarving 8
et tha baschPasing |
sumimeats (D
Sandatosa To be lakd iy
Fuanzialu= daptin ant s et s fo e STONE FEATURE BENCH A - PLAN VIEW @ 1:50 STOME FEATURE BEMCH B - PLAN VIEW @ 1:50 STOME FEATURE BENCH C - PLAN VIEW @ 150 ot tticn s and icl
I ’ amsmizm 1 o e Ve jeinis. H
I -_mmmawvm
STONME FEATURE BENCH CROSS SECTION @& 1:10 w
Cut slone leilurs fving siris dell batwaen e
Bence Puing ot e BCOKDO0 wed Flust puving stssas 3t vegelhar 15
s deus. Pawving o ba Yoskshine [
F“JD_MmTahlﬂd.dlgnhld ) —imagon shaped senting shom iveturs srd Purving stoses b
comslructon base ard inchide ot jons palh Flah paving sl ot g s fom S tatoanm ring s
-A00mem ks ot soms pring mein 4 m»mmmnm:w Seop. Poving o be Tmanie
m—— | detal 12 the patimets: cf the soulgterad and Slmm deep. 5 b hrred 20t u.ﬂ: dm
[ stme fastusn. Bocks b be 200eS00sm o Todcasise Msgausharn " ool gt Ly )
| | ¥ B0m, """";:nm S msﬁm-muhhudumuu i e
Basefaluig ox Farpst Sardtons. coratnclion base o 4 concrels pad
To b bk i & ighd cusstiuchion base
| | ot g N::n Ve m;tmmmmmu
I I L umumwmwb
e
| |
| | -
1-200m—y PP st
ﬁn E
-
d s0cmm
SRR |
f——B0sr——
Srvaope i G s witt i prorrs
STONE PAVING STRIP CROSS SECTION @ 110 'WMM‘M"T-“ 2
NOTES: : \ o
thiigh procan et fram Yk ' st stupping sisree 1 ba ek 0 & . Z .2 !
Marry S Masans umcrute pad Ciepts and s et u= b "‘T:‘ e secess b i Yy LSRN /
. [ et wehere et e darvmleped 1 csdicaion with Yors asatwitdliwnr plarding. Dugth aducars /
n arnd vmguaton arw Wi 2m of s Minsier Sone Masor's & Dasign Taam v sqseuih o bt cheesboped in coondination wils mhum:::““m
e servims (Setads s be agrmad] Vo Minsier Stuse Maseiis & Deaign Taam v v -
CITY OF st s £ L
* Smpping stz fstire b be iz @ miimen of S bom sunuungieg lendscace features be e :
128 it RoSPA recmmmen st FEATURE STEPPING STONES CROSS SECTIONS @ 120 INTERACTIVE FEATURE STEPPING STONES ACCESS PATH - PLAN VIEW @ 1:50
Fregee T
B MNotes: PP Dagign Ltd
York BID & 1 mhmﬂmmsmh&mmm m[mell
p— T Toxs [me znasennnmp & Survey GO 1371/ 11 by Russell Geomatics Lid N Pool Road
Proposed ustrative Sections & Detals :- b - to architectslengineers drawing for site levels, drainage, retaining walls, services and utiilies ' Ofiey
a3 |3t (PR PLAING - rerarastn | LW | L | o0 g\mmbm [ L=2 iFR
COUNCIL —— [ | slelERiY Ork (pOsndiE CmpmeyCompmmtee-besting==@nd December 2021 N e 57
PWF 448 004 [} VARIES@AT 20 eons o e oo o | =

J DESIGM




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 125 Agenda Item 4b

COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 2 December 2021 Ward: Fishergate
Team: East Area Parish: Fishergate Planning
Panel
Reference: 21/01605/FULM
Application at: Mecca Bingo 68 Fishergate York YO10 4AR
For: Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of the site to

form 276no. room purpose built student accommodation with
associated car parking, landscaping and facilities

By: Petrina Ltd And Grantside (North Star West) Ltd
Application Type: Major Full Application
Target Date: 14 October 2021

Recommendation: Approve subject to Section 106 Agreement

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1 The application site currently accommodates a bingo hall with car parking, dating
from 2002. The building covers the south section of the site. There is an open car
park on the north side. Vehicle access is from William Court.

1.2 To the north of the site is the car park associated with the Novotel. William Court
to the west is a cul-de-sac of 3-storey houses. Fishergate House, a residential
development set within landscaping and car parking is to the south. The 1837 house,
which is setback from Fishergate, is Grade Il listed. Buildings on the opposite side of
Fishergate are 2-storey and 3-storey in height. Directly opposite is Fishergate School,
Grade Il listed.

1.3 The site is immediately south of the city centre, as defined on the 2018 Draft Local
Plan proposals map. The Central Historic Core Conservation Area lies to the east.
The Conservation Area was extended south, to include the Fishergate area, following
recommendations in the Central Historic Core Conservation Area Appraisal by Alan
Baxter Associates 2011. The application site, the Novotel development and
contemporary houses were redeveloped in the late 20" century (replacing the
glassworks which historically occupied the site), and are excluded from the
conservation area.

1.4 The site is within the City Centre Area of Archaeological Importance. It is notin
Flood Zone 2 or Flood Zone 3.

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 126

Proposals

1.5 The application is to redevelop the site for purpose built student accommodation.
The development would provide 276 student rooms; a mix of cluster flats and studios.
There would be ground floor communal facilities in the wing fronting Fishergate.
There are 5 car parking spaces (including a car club space and accessible spaces)
and service access on the William Court side of the site. The layout provides two
landscaped courtyard areas, which will be evident from Fishergate and Blue Bridge
Lane. The scheme is 4-strorey but designed to appear as 3-storey with the top floor
concealed behind pitched roofs and projecting front gables.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

2.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
determinations be made in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

2.2 The National Planning Policy Framework (‘NNPF’) is a material consideration in
the determination of this planning application. Key policies / sections of the NPPF are
as follows —

5 Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

8 Promoting healthy and safe communities

9 Promoting sustainable travel

11 Making effective use of land

12  Achieving well-designed places

14  Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
16 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

2.3 The Publication Draft City of York Local Plan 2018 ('2018 eLP') was submitted for
examination on 25 May 2018. In accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF its
policies can be afforded weight according to:

- The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation,
the greater the weight that may be given);

- The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given);
and

- The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012.

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 127

2.4 Key relevant Publication Draft Local Plan 2018 Policies are as follows -

DP3 Sustainable Communities

D1 Place-making

D6 Archaeology

CC1 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy Generation and Storage
CC2 Sustainable Design and Construction of New Development
ENV1 Air Quality

ENV5 Sustainable Drainage

H7  Student Housing

HW1 Protecting Existing Facilities

T1l Sustainable Access

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development - Archaeology

3.1 Officers have recommended a condition requiring a programme of mitigation, to
involve excavation and public engagement.

3.2 The site is within the Central Area of Archaeological Importance and known to
contain significant archaeological features and deposits from all periods despite being
developed since the 19th century. The site was evaluated in 1994 (by YAT) with
further evaluation and excavation (by FAS) in the early 21st century ahead of the
construction of the bingo hall. These investigations were limited in the northern half of
the site due to the extant Rialto Cinema at the time.

3.3 The layout of the proposed building has been driven by above-ground constraints
and design guidance. Unfortunately, the design does not utilise the areas previously
excavated as much as it might have done if archaeologically led. The proposed
foundation design / pile caps will impact upon the remains of the cinema, medieval
and potentially earlier pockets of archaeology within the northern half of the site. In
the southern half the pile caps will impact upon significant archaeological deposits
preserved as part of the Mecca Bingo construction.

3.4 The impact will include areas identified during previous investigations as
potentially containing archaeology dating to the Anglian period. The archaeology
relating to the Anglian period has been identified as of national significance, the
resource relating to other periods across the site has not. However the known Anglian
archaeology on the Mecca Bingo site is also not of the same quality or quantity as the
excavated glassworks site immediately to the north of this site in the mid-1980s.

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 128

3.5 Implementation of the scheme will further divide and penetrate the remaining
archaeology, particularly in the southern part of the site. Any legibility of deposits
preserved in-situ will be compromised and the resource is likely to be no further
understood. Furthermore, there are large obstructions in the northern half of the site
which will potentially require pile probing which will also have a detrimental impact on
any remaining pockets of in-situ archaeology.

3.6 In this case the public benefit of fully excavating the remaining elements of
archaeology on-site is therefore the preferable approach. The information derived
would complete the archaeological picture of the area running from the glassworks
site to the north to Blue Bridge Lane to the south. By stripping the site, a final decision
can be made as to whether it is possible to preserve any reasonably sized areas of
archaeology in-situ. This approach will allow the most control over the archaeological
deposits to be exerted. However, it is anticipated, given the amount of interventions
past, present and proposed, that a full excavation is likely to be required in order to
maximise public benefit from the site.

3.7 An archaeological remains management plan is required. This will set out the
details for the initial strip, any monitoring during further site investigation and be
updated when the final archaeological mitigation scheme is known. The plan should
also set out a program of public engagement relating to the excavation. It may be
possible to use the remaining structural elements of the Rialto Cinema as a public
engagement tool. Publication of the findings, in particular how these relate to the
excavations which have taken place on surrounding sites over the past 40 years, will
then occur.

Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development - Architect

3.8 Required a significant setback between the north wing and Fishergate to allow for
landscape. A setback of 3.5m to 4m is now proposed which is satisfactory.

3.9 Roof — officer’s preference was for the section of roof between the pairs of gables
to be pitched reasonably, so the design is authentic and the gables are the prominent
feature. Following discussion, the scheme has been amended on the elevation facing
William Court (elevation 03) where the issue was most significant, due to the lack of
staggered building line and intervening chimney between the gables.

3.10 The amenity of residents on William Court could be affected by the development,
due to it being over-bearing and causing over-looking.

Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development — Landscape

3.11 The scheme has been amended to address the following recommendations —

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 129

- On the north side of the site officers recommended planting for outlook and to
encourage wildlife. The most recent landscaping plan confirms the existing hedge
and Alder trees retained with a grass margin by the building.

- Fishergate elevation - strongly advised that the northeast gable be pulled back
from Fishergate in order to create a stronger and more prestigious entrance and
setting, and to better key the building into its landscape/streetscape context. The
revised plans have achieved a setback of 3.5m to 4m.

- On the south side of the site as recommended the boundary railings have been
pushed back from the footpath to increase the dominance of the planting.

Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development - Ecology

3.12 To provide appropriate biodiversity benefits ask for a condition to secure 4
integrate features for bat roosts and 4 for nesting birds.

Highway Network Management

3.13 Raised concern over the main entrance location and its relationship with
Fishergate. This is because of the likelihood there will be drop-off and deliveries
adjacent the entrance (despite current waiting restrictions). Such practice would raise
safety concerns, in particular due to the proximity to the zebra crossing and proximity
with the junction to the gyratory. It was asked for the access to be relocated. Officers
have subsequently agreed the principle of a space on Blue Bridge Lane for drop-off.

3.14 The initial cycle parking provision, of around 65% is reasonable and compares
to similar student accommodation schemes.

3.15 Contributions requested for highway works — no stopping at any time on
Fishergate, relocation of car parking on Blue Bridge Lane and provision of a space for
drop-off. A contribution is sought for the Council to assist with the Travel Plan and
ensure itis it is appropriate in terms of securing targeted sustainable travel measures.
A student management plan, to deal with the possible issue of students parking locally
to the detriment of highway safety, is requested. A similar approach to the student
accommodation scheme at Frederick House recommended.

Public Protection

Noise

3.16 Ask for conditions to require adequate noise levels within the proposed
accommodation, to approve details and noise levels of machinery, plant and
equipment. The submitted construction management plan is acceptable in terms of
measures regarding construction noise (& dust).

Land contamination

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 130

3.17 Past site activities could have given rise to land contamination and potential
contaminants. The site appraisal report recommends that an intrusive ground
contamination assessment be carried out to find out whether contamination is present.
Officers recommend conditions for a remediation scheme and implementation.

Air quality

3.18 Construction - through good site practice and the implementation of suitable
mitigation measures, the effect of dust and particulate matter releases would be
minimised and the residual effects are not anticipated to be significant. Operational
impacts — no objection or mitigation requested.

Electric vehicle charging facilities
3.19 Officers request 1 electric vehicle charging point, with passive provision for a
further space.

Designing our crime office (North Yorkshire Police)

3.20The most significant crime issues that could affect this development are burglary,

cycle theft and criminal damage. Itis recommended that —

- Communal entrance doors fitted with a self-closing mechanism with a lock which
engages automatically. Opening restrictors to windows.

- CCTV coverage to cycle storage.

- Access to cores be restricted.

York Civic Trust

3.21 The Trust is generally supportive of the design concept and form. The pitched
roofs with gable ends are a positive design choice and a welcome contrast to the flat-
roofed square-forms of other similar contemporary developments.

3.22 Would like to see more planting between the north wing and Fishergate. The
impact of the building here is exacerbated by the largely blank gable ends with little
detailing. A setback the width of one of the student rooms i.e. about 4m, allowing for
soft landscaping, would allow the scheme to not appear overbearing.

3.23 A more prominent entrance to the scheme recommended, to define the buildings
function and to provide architectural interest.

3.24 The expanse of cycle parking in the northern courtyard takes up over half the
courtyard and is unduly prominent. Its location directly in front of the main entrance
further contributes to the obscuring of the entrance-way and entrance space. Suggest
the facilities are more evenly distributed throughout the site.

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 131

3.25 Accessibility to the communal areas is queried as it is all provided within the
south block.

Yorkshire Water

3.26 The drainage strategy is agreed to. Recommend conditions in respect of
systems for foul and surface water and implementation of the drainage strategy. A
condition is requested to agree measures during construction to protect the public
sewer adjacent the site.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

4.1 There have been 46 contributors on the application. One in support. The
comments are as follows —

Adverse effect on neighbours’ amenity

- Over-bearing and overlooking due to the scale of the building and its proximity to
neighbouring houses and gardens. Adverse effects to William Court and
Fishergate House.

- Noise due to comings and goings of residents and deliveries.

- Noise from sub-station / servicing / plant and equipment of the development. All
these items are towards the rear by William Court.

- Odour from waste storage

- The should be no access from William Court

- The transient nature of students will detract from the local community.

- No on-site management 24 hr to control behaviour.

- Outdoor spaces could cause noise disturbance.

nghway safety
Could result in excessive pedestrian traffic at the crossing before/after school.

- Increase in traffic due to deliveries and servicing and residents

- Student arrivals and departures plan is unrealistic.

- Lack of parking will means cars parked locally. Local parking zones already
congested due to the number of cars associated with HMO'’s.

- Lack of drop-off / servicing bay on Fishergate

- There should be 1 cycle space per unit and storage should be covered.

- The scheme should provide funding to improve cycling on the highway network.

- Traffic management plan and travel plan not fit for purpose

- William Court not of adequate dimensions to be able to accommodate the
servicing requirements associated with the development.

Visual impact
- Building looks stark and out of context.

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 132

Over-development of the site, the site is of a similar size to William Court but
would accommodate far more residents.

Building unduly high; should reflect the 3-storey development at William Court.
Missed opportunity to create a landmark building at this prominent location.
Contrasting brickwork to William Court

Air Quality

Detrimental impact on air quality. Due to delays to traffic causes by more people
using the zebra crossings and a as consequence of increased traffic.

The type of development proposed

Lack of evidenced need for student accommodation; higher need for market
housing. Other student accommodation schemes have not achieved 100%
occupancy rates. Any further student housing should be on campus.

Loss of leisure / community facility and lack of evidence to show no demand for
previous use.

The scheme will be great for surrounding business.

Student accommodation unsuitable for a site so close to the river.

A communal / commercial facility within the building with wider public access
would be welcome.

Poor quality of amenity for future residents due to room sizes.

Access arrangements in case of fire?

Pressure on surrounding infrastructure.

Inadequate percentage of the rooms are accessible (only 4).

Gas fired boilers unacceptable on sustainability grounds.

Councillor D Taylor

Concerned that there may be too much student accommodation built in Fishergate
Ward and this development might not be viable.

More needs to be done to reduce overlooking of neighbours and their gardens.
Some thought has been given to this, but little regard given to the overlooking of
residents of Fewster Way.

The corner of Blue Bridge Lane and Fishergate is a prominent gateway into the
city. How the building addresses the corner could be improved. It is however
acknowledged as an improvement to the existing situation. The building where it
fronts Fishergate lacks interest. A further setback from the street is recommended
as a possible solution in this respect.

Positive about the garden area on Blue Bridge Lane as this breaks-up the
monotonous blank wall of the Mecca Bingo currently in situ. Approve of the two
colours of red brick which adds colour and variation to the massing of a large
building.

Concern there is no lay-by immediately by the entrance. Delivery / serving vehicles
stopping up and blocking the highway/pavement in this area could affect highway
safety.

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 133

- Traffic on A19 delayed by persons using the zebra crossing. This could have an
adverse effect on air quality.

- Construction traffic — delivery times should avoid peak hours and school opening /
closing times

- Operational concerns — should be staff on site always to deal with any concerns
regarding noise and management measures to prevent students parking in the
surrounding area.

5.0 APPRAISAL

Key issues

5.1 The key issues in assessment of this scheme are -

- Principle of the proposed development
- Heritage Assets / Archaeology

- Design of the proposed building

- Neighbours amenity

- Highway safety and sustainable travel
- Public protection

- Drainage

Principle of the proposed development

5.2 Key sections in the NPPF in considering whether the proposed development
would be acceptable in principle are Section 5. Delivering a sufficient supply of homes,
8. Promoting healthy and safe communities and 11. Making effective use of land. The
policies within the NPPF establish that in principle the proposed use is acceptable.
NPPF paragraph 38 states “decision-makers at every level should seek to approve
applications for sustainable development where possible”. Paragraph 11d
establishes that in this case planning permission should be granted unless any
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits.

5.3 NPPF Section 5 states that “to support the Government’s objective of significantly
boosting the supply of homes (which includes student housing), it is important that a
sufficient amount and variety of land can come forward where it is needed, that the
needs of groups with specific housing requirements are addressed and that land with
permission is developed without unnecessary delay”.

5.4 The site is previously developed and in a sustainable urban location. The
proposed re-use of the site in principle conforms with NPPF section 11, which requires
planning decisions should:-

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 134

- Promote an effective use of land in meeting the need for homes and other uses,
while safeguarding and improving the environment and ensuring safe and healthy
living conditions (paragraph 119).

- Give substantial weight to the value of using suitable brownfield land within
settlements for homes and other identified needs (120).

- Local Planning Authority’s should take a proactive role in identifying and helping to
bring forward land that may be suitable for meeting development needs (121).

- Take a positive approach to applications for alternative uses of land, where it is
developed but not allocated for a specific purpose in plans, where this would help
to meet identified development needs. (123).

5.5 There is deemed not to be a policy conflict due to the loss of the former use.
Section 8 of the NPPF relates to healthy and safe communities and includes policy
for the loss of facilities. In paragraph 93 it states that “to provide the social,
recreational and cultural facilities and services the community needs, planning
policies and decisions should plan positively for the provision and use of shared
spaces, community facilities (such as local shops, meeting places, sports venues,
open space, cultural buildings, public houses and places of worship) and other local
services, to enhance the sustainability of communities and residential environments”.
The emphasis is on the protection of facilities that cater for peoples day-to-day needs.
The loss of a bingo hall, which has ceased trading, is deemed not to be a facility or
service that is essential in providing for community needs.

5.6 Of the 2018 eLP policy HW3 relates to protecting existing facilities. As per the
NPPF the background text advises the policy relates to community facilities should be
taken to mean buildings, facilities, and services that meet the day-to-day-needs of
communities. This may include libraries, post offices, and community meeting places,
such as youth groups, places of worship, and parish and village halls. The former
use, bingo hall and car park, are considered not to be facilities essential for the day
to day needs of the community.

5.7 The loss of the existing facility does not carry significant weight. Given the location
of the site, within an accessible distance of the city centre and the nearby amenities,
public buildings and commercial uses around Fishergate, Fawcett Street and towards
Lawrence Street, there are alternative locations and facilities where the former use
could be accommodated, if there were the demand.

5.8 Policy H7 Student Housing within the 2018 eLP carries limited weight in decision-
making at this stage as the emerging plan is not adopted. It is against the NPPF
policies that this proposal should principally be assessed. H7 states proposals for
new student accommodation will be supported where:

- there is a proven need for student housing; and

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 135

- it is in an appropriate location for education institutions and accessible by
sustainable transport modes; and

- development would not be detrimental to the amenity of nearby residents and the
design and access arrangements would have a minimal impact on the local area.

5.9 The amount of purpose built student accommodation (PBSA), operated by the
university and other operators, even when including permissions yet to be
implemented, could accommodate around 40% of students (in full time education).
The data evidences need for PBSA. Taking into account NPPF policy on decision
making (in paragraph 38) which states Local planning authorities should approach
decisions on proposed development in a positive and creative way and decision-
makers at every level should seek to approve applications for sustainable
development where possible, the application could not be resisted in principle on the
basis of need.

5.10 Schemes for PBSA at Fawcett Street (21/01570/FULM) and Fulford Road
(19/00603/FULM), within close proximity to this site, have recently been considered,
with no objection on location grounds. The location is suitable for student
accommodation, given the proximity to the city centre and York University. The site is
in a sustainable location, just outside of the city centre, as shown in the 2018 elLP
proposals maps.

5.11 The impact on nearby residents and the local area is appraised in the following
sections regarding design and amenity.

Heritage Assets / Archaeology

Character and appearance of the conservation area

5.12 The site is outside of, but adjacent to, the Central Historic Core Conservation
Area. The Council has a statutory duty (under section 72 of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990) to consider the desirability of preserving
or enhancing the character or appearance of designated Conservation Areas. Where
there is found to be harm to the character or appearance of the Conservation Area,
the statutory duty means that such harm should be afforded considerable importance
and weight when carrying out the balancing exercise. The approach to determining
planning applications, in terms of assessment on Heritage Assets, is set out in Section
16 of the NPPF.

5.13 The site is just outside of the Fishergate character area of the Central Historic
Core Conservation Area. The conservation area was extended as part of the most
recent appraisal, to include Fawcett Street and Fishergate. The character area
appraisal overview states “the historic character of the area is fragmented by modern
development and its ambience is compromised by high volumes of fast moving cars
— it essentially operates as a traffic island. Despite these issues, the area should be

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 136

incorporated within the Conservation Area as it forms an important entry point to the
city and provides a setting for the city walls”. The ‘opportunities’ recommended for
the area include more pedestrian crossing points on Fishergate.

5.14 The site as existing differs from the prevalent conservation area character along
Fishergate, taking into account urban grain / townscape, building materials and local
vernacular. The proposed scheme will better address the street considering the form,
proportion and materiality of the proposed buildings, which are of a comparable scale
to neighbouring buildings, reference local vernacular in their use of front gables and
use of red brick (two tones of red-multi brickwork is proposed). The layout will provide
views into the two landscaped courtyards, reflecting the character of Fishergate
House to the south. Consultation responses have referred to the front gable of the
north wing and its undue close proximity to Fishergate. This concern has been
addressed in the revised scheme (now proposed) and the front gable has been
pushed back between 3.5m to 4m from the footpath. This allows for soft landscaping
that will complement the planting in front of the site (within the highway) and
Fishergate School opposite. There is no identified harm to the Central Historic Core
Conservation Area (which is adjacent the site).

Setting of listed buildings

5.15 Fishergate Primary School, on the opposite side of the road is Grade Il listed, as
Is Fishergate House to the south, and Ivy Cottage at 33 Fishergate to the north.

5.16 Section 66 of the of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 advises that in considering whether to grant planning permission for
development which affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning authority
shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or
any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.

5.17 The listed buildings in the vicinity of the site are all within an urban inner city
location. The proposed development will not affect how these buildings are
appreciated in context and public views will not be affected. The scheme has a neutral
effect on listed buildings.

Archaeoloqgy

5.18 The site is within the City Centre Area of Archaeological Importance. NPPF
paragraph 194 states that “where a site on which development is proposed includes,
or has the potential to include, heritage assets with archaeological interest, local
planning authorities should require developers to submit an appropriate desk-based
assessment and, where necessary, a field evaluation”.

5.19 Policy D6 of the 2018 eLP advises that proposals will be supported where harm
to archaeological deposits is unavoidable, when detailed mitigation measures have

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 137

been agreed with City of York Council that include, where appropriate, provision for
deposit monitoring, investigation, recording, analysis, publication, archive deposition
and community involvement.

5.20 The applications have provided an adequate desk-based assessment, as
required by the NPPF. York Archaeological Trust have also undertaken preliminary
site investigations, which are reported in the application and inform the proposed
mitigation agreed with the Council’s Archaeologist. The mitigation will be secured
through condition and comprise stripping the site, to determine whether archaeology
can be preserved in-situ, considering the foundation design, otherwise there will be
excavation (a full excavation is expected). The mitigation, combined with the benefits
of the proposed regeneration of the site, outweigh the impact on archaeology if
excavation is required. The approach will be set out in an archaeological remains
management plan. The plan will be required to set out a program of public
engagement relating to the excavation. It may be possible to use the remaining
structural elements of the Rialto Cinema as a public engagement tool. Publication of
the findings, in particular how these relate to the excavations which have taken place
on surrounding sites over the past 40 years, will then occur.

Design

5.21 NPPF paragraph 130 sets out design considerations. In addition paragraph 131
now emphasises the importance of trees in urban environments. Paragraph 130
advises developments should -

a) function well and add to the overall quality of the area over the lifetime of the
development;

b) be visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping;

c) be sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities);

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive
places to live, work and visit;

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and
support local facilities and transport networks; and

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where
crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or
community cohesion and resilience.

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 138

5.22 The scheme is NPPF compliant in respect of good design, in respect of its
function, provision of amenities, appearance in respect of the local area and it
introduces new tree planting, where servicing / drainage storage requirements allow.

5.23 The buildings layout and design has been influenced by the following factors —

- Provide a main entrance from Fishergate so the majority of activity; comings and
goings of occupants is concentrated to Fishergate.

- Communal uses on the wing of the building facing Fishergate to provide a more
active frontage. This also enables a communal space looking onto the larger
landscaped courtyard.

- To avoid narrowing the footpath or compromising the cycle route on Fishergate
space will provided on Blue Bridge Lane to accommodate deliveries / drop off. The
layout will facilitate this with a minor / secondary access on the south side of the
building.

- Detailed pre-application discussions with the Council’s Design and Conservation
team have informed the buildings scale and form, which respects the areas
prevalent character.

- Cycle storage has been re-organised so trees can be accommodated and
landscaping is more prominent in the north courtyard, both in terms of residents
outlook and in views from Fishergate.

- Surrounding residents has been considered. On the south side of the building
there is open space which reflects the Fishergate House layout. The location,
orientation and size of windows have all been carefully considered to avoid
overlooking surrounding properties at William Court ad Fishergate House.

5.24 The scheme includes a mix of studio rooms and cluster flats (the largest cluster
has 13 bedrooms, although all but two of the clusters have fewer than 10 bedrooms).
Given the mix of accommodation types, and the provision and variety of communal
space for all residents at ground level and in the courtyard there is adequate amenities
within the scheme. The internal communal facilities provide over 300 sq m floor
space.

5.25 Fire strategy — a dry riser system is proposed to be installed in the cores
(staircase areas) this allows fire-fighting to be undertaken within the building if
required. On this basis tenders only need to gain access within 18m of each dry riser
as set out in BS 9991 (fire safety in design). This is provision is achieved in the
proposed scheme.

5.26 The appearance of the scheme; the buildings and landscaping and how it
respects the local area is set out in the section on Heritage Assets. The scale, form
and materials of the building better respect the area compared to the site in its existing
condition. The scheme is also beneficial in providing landscaped areas, which will be
visible from Fishergate and Blue Bridge Lane.

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 139

5.27 The proposed condition related to site management will cover secure by design
measures. In particular the presence of on-site security, access control and CCTV
coverage of the cycle store areas.

Sustainable design

5.28 Local requirements for buildings in terms of addressing climate change are eLP
2018 policies CC1 and CC2, which seek to secure enhancements over the 2013
Building Regulations. New buildings are expected to have a dwelling emission rate
(DER) that is a 28% improvement over the 2013 regulations.

5.29 A reduction of 28.22% over a baseline building has been estimated to be
achievable, through incorporating combined heat and power (CHP), photovoltaics, a
variable refrigerant flow (VRF) system for heating and cooling amenity spaces, and
mechanical ventilation and heat recovery (MVHR). The local requirement can be
secured through planning condition.

Biodiversity

5.30 The NPPF states decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and
local environment by minimising the impacts on, and providing net gains for
biodiversity and recognising the wider benefits from natural capital and ecosystem
services — including the economic and other benefits of the best and most versatile
agricultural land, and of trees and woodland.

5.31 Net gain would be achieved as a consequence of the additional areas of soft
landscaping proposed on-site. A condition is also proposed to provide habitats for
bats and birds within the building fabric.

Neighbours amenity

5.32 Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that developments should create places that
are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-being, with a
high standard of amenity for existing and future users.

William Court

5.33 The rear of the north wing of the proposed building was moved further away from
the west boundary in revised plans. The separation is now 10.7m between the end
elevation and the boundary with the rear garden of 25 William Court.

5.34 The separation between the proposed building and neighbouring rear garden is
the same as that between the front elevation of 18 William Court and the rear garden
to 19 William Court. The upper floor windows on the proposed building in this area
have also been set at an angle so only a narrow section of the window (some 34cm
wide) looks towards the neighbour’s garden. The section of the building opposite the

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 140

side elevation of 25 is closer, around 9.5m from the boundary. There are only two
small secondary windows in the side elevation on no.25. The neighbour is an end of
terrace house; the main windows are to the front and rear. As the scale of buildings
would not be significantly different (the ridge of the proposed building is just under 1m
taller than the neighbour), the separation distances comparable to elsewhere on
William Court, and given the window design, the proposed development, reflects local
conditions and would not be unduly overbearing or over-dominant.

5.35 At the south end of the site windows on the proposed building are also orientated
to look away from rear gardens and towards either the side elevation of buildings or
more public streets and spaces. The proposed building will be setback from the
footpath edge, behind a strip of landscaping. The ridge level of the proposed front
gables are under 1m higher than the ridge levels of housing at William Court. There
would not be undue overlooking. In terms of building scale and proximity there is not
a material difference, to the extent that amenity is affected, between the existing and
proposed buildings on-site.

Fishergate House

5.36 The building footprint is predominantly set away from Blue Bridge Lane as the
main courtyard garden is on the south side of the site. The proposed building is far
less oppressive compared to the existing. There are only two ends of the east and
west wings that extend to the boundary. The primary windows on these wings look
east / west and not towards Fishergate House. Only at the south-east corner is there
a living room with a large south facing window. The windows architecturally help
address what is a prominent corner. They would overlook a shared communal space
but have no adverse amenity effect on the dwelling to the south which is some 25m
away.

Fewster way

5.37 The north wing of the building will be approximately 21m from the side elevation
and garden of the nearest house at Fewster Way. This is reasonable in respect of
amenity.

Building services noise and sub-station

5.38 The plant room enclosures will be capable of attenuating any plant noise. This
will be covered through condition. Separation distances between sub-stations and
residential accommodation are recommended to be 3m and this is achieved.

5.39 A condition is recommended regarding on-site management and operation of the
development in respect of avoiding noise disturbance.

Highway safety and sustainable travel

5.40 The NPPF states that in assessing applications it should be ensured that:

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 141

- Opportunities to promote sustainable transport included where appropriate.

- Safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users.

- Any significant impacts from the development on the transport network (in terms of
capacity and congestion), or on highway safety, can be cost effectively mitigated
to an acceptable degree.

5.41 The NPPF states “Development should only be prevented or refused on
highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the
residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.

5.42 Given the type of development proposed, and its location, an essentially car free
development accords with the NPPF policies and objectives. Itis also consistent with
the approach taken at other city centre sites with purpose built student
accommodation, which have successfully integrated into the locality. The car parking
provision (5 spaces) is for accessible parking and to accommodate a space for the
car share / car club only. There will be an electric vehicle charging facility also.

5.43 A full travel plan, prepared in accordance with national guidance, setting ongoing
monitoring / targets will be required through condition. The expectation would be that
this is managed by the site operator and is therefore site specific. The purpose of the
travel plan will be to encourage sustainable travel. A contribution has been agreed
for the Council to provide input to the Travel Plan over its lifetime and ensure it is
appropriate in respect of targets, monitoring, and implementation.

5.44 Cycle storage — the storage provision provides 44 spaces within the main
building, plus 2 larger/over-sized spaces. Within the north courtyard are a further 124
spaces that would be covered and secure. This provides a provision of 61% initially.
There is further space within the courtyard for future provision subject to demand.
The provision of 60% is acceptable for the type of use proposed. Based on post-
occupation at comparable PBSA, the initial provision will provide for demand.

5.45 The waste collection point and access for servicing / maintenance has been
tracked to show appropriate vehicles can access. Itis acceptable on highway safety
grounds.

5.46 Space for drop-offs (for example taxis) will be introduced on Blue Bridge Lane,
with an access point into the site provided. This is the preferred option as such a
facility could not be accommodated on Fishergate without adverse effect on the
existing provision for pedestrians and cyclists.

5.47 There are other purpose built student accommodation schemes of a similar
location and scale to as proposed which have been in operation for some time now.
There is no compelling evidence that these have an adverse effect on the highway
network. A condition is however proposed that through the operator students are
made aware they cannot bring cars to site and there will be measures to be agreed in

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 142

respect of addressing any safety issues of students parking in surrounding streets
that may arise.

5.48 In conjunction with the scheme it has been agreed the developer would fund
amendments to existing restrictions in front of the site on Fishergate to ensure no
stopping / waiting at any times. This is considered necessary in the interests of all
users of the highway.

5.49 The construction management plan provided advises that measures will be in
place during construction so delivery vehicles will not attend site between the hours
of 8.15am-9am or 14:45- 16:00, to avoid the beginning and end of the school day.

5.50 For the beginning and end of term arrangements a management plan has been
issued. The plan confirms marshals will be employed to supervise the locality on
moving days, which will be phased over two weekends. Students will need to book a
20 minute moving in slot (therefore using the 5 spaces on site 15 arrivals per hour
could be accommodated).

Public protection

5.51 Section 15 of the NPPF, regarding the natural environment advises that planning
decisions should contribute to the natural and local environment by preventing new
and existing development from contributing to, being put at unacceptable risk from, or
being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of sail, air, water or noise pollution.
Paragraph 186 states opportunities to improve air quality or mitigate impacts should
be identified, such as through traffic and travel management, and green infrastructure
provision and enhancement.

Land contamination
5.52 Standard conditions are proposed for a site investigation, to inform a remediation
strategy and for evidence the remediation has been successful.

Noise

5.53 A noise impact assessment has been undertaken to inform local noise
conditions. This provides comfort that by design future residents will experience
reasonable noise levels. Conditions are proposed to secure such construction and
also so that plant / machinery (including the sub-stations) will not have an adverse
effect on neighbours.

Construction management

5.54 A construction management plan (CEMP) has been submitted and is considered
broadly acceptable by Public Protection. Officers have asked only for an update in
terms of the air quality measures within the scheme, to reflect the impacts and
mitigation identified in the applications air quality assessment. This can be dealt with,

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 143

through an update to the CEMP prior to determination of the application alternatively
through condition.

EV parking
5.55 A condition is recommended to require electric vehicle charging points in
accordance with the Council’s Low Emission Strategy.

Air quality

5.56 The application is supported with a technical air quality assessment, it has been
reviewed by the Council’s Public Protection Team and deemed acceptable. The
assessment determines impacts during the construction phase, mitigation is
recommended and will be secured through planning condition. Operational impacts
has been determined as negligible / not significant. Further to the assessment there
are benefits as a consequence of the scheme. There are currently 128 car parking
spaces on site. This would be reduced to 5 parking spaces, which will include electric
vehicle charging points and a space for a car club vehicle. The site is currently all
developed significantly, with buildings or hard-standing for parking. The amount of
soft landscaping and number of trees on-site will increase.

Drainage and flood risk

5.57 The NPPF in paragraph 167 establishes that when determining any planning
applications, flood risk elsewhere should not be increased and sustainable drainage
systems be incorporated, unless there is clear evidence that this would be
inappropriate. The local approach following the NPPF, in policy ENVS5, is that existing
surface water rates are evidenced and reduced by 30%. It also applies the
sustainable drainage hierarchy.

5.58 Following the sustainable drainage hierarchy connection into the sewer is
proposed. Site investigation has determined that soakaways would not perform
adequately and direct connection into a watercourse is not achievable. The run-off
rate proposed, and agreed with Yorkshire Water, is 27.5 litres / sec. The run-off rate
would exceed the local requirement in ENVS5; it would reduce the existing run-off rate
by over 30%.

5.59 The site is outside of Flood Zones 2 and 3. The development is therefore
appropriate in terms of flood risk and NPPF paragraph 159 which seeks to direct
development away from areas at the highest risk (of flooding).

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 The NPPF establishes the need to take a positive approach to decision-making
and the significant weight given to economic growth. Having regard to the statutory

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 144

duties in sections 66 and 72 of Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act, the
development would not harm the setting of any designated heritage assets.
Archaeological interests can be appropriately maintained through recording. There
are no policies in the NPPF that protect assets of particular importance which provide
a clear reason for refusing the development in this instance. Therefore the
presumption in favour of development applies in this case; that, as stated in
Paragraph 11d, planning permission should be granted unless any adverse impacts
of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when
assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole.

6.2 There would be no significant adverse effect, in terms of the loss of the current
uses of the site, that would outweigh the benefits of the proposed use. The scheme
Is considered an improvement over the existing site in terms of how it respects local
character. There would be no undue effect on neighbours’ amenity and adequate
amenities for future occupants. Technical matters can be addressed, to achieve
policy compliance, through conditions in respect of sustainable design and
construction, biodiversity, drainage, archaeology, the highway network and ground
conditions and pollution.

6.3 Approval is recommended subject to conditions and a Section 106 agreement for
the following —

- Traffic Regulation Orders (£6,000) to provide for - amending existing waiting
restrictions on Fishergate to ‘No waiting and no Loading at any time’.

- Travel Plan support (£25,000 (£5,000 per year)) — for the Council to provide input
and ensure the travel plan is implemented reasonably over a 5-year period
following occupation.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve subject to Section 106 Agreement

1 TIME2 Development start within three years

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans and other submitted details:-

Site plan
(451)2101-GWP-01-XX-DR-A-(PA)-0010 PAO

Proposed floor plans and roof
(451)2101-GWP-01-00-DR-A-(PA)-0012 PAO

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 145

(451)2101-GWP-01-01-DR-A-(PA)-0013 PAO
(451)2101-GWP-01-01-DR-A-(PA)-0014 PAO
(451)2101-GWP-01-01-DR-A-(PA)-0015 PAO
(451)2101-GWP-01-01-DR-A-(PA)-0016 PAO

Proposed elevations

(451)2101-GWP-01-XX-DR-A-(PA)-0020 PAO
(451)2101-GWP-01-XX-DR-A-(PA)-0021 PAO
(451)2101-GWP-01-XX-DR-A-(PA)-0022 PAO
(451)2101-GWP-01-XX-DR-A-(PA)-0023 PAO
(451)2101-GWP-01-XX-DR-A-(PA)-0024 PAO

Proposed sections
(451)2101-GWP-01-XX-DR-A-(PA)-0031 PAO3
(451)2101-GWP-01-XX-DR-A-(PA)-0032 PAO3

Large scale details

(451)2101-GWP-01-XX-DR-A-(PA)-0040 PAO3
(451)2101-GWP-01-XX-DR-A-(PA)-0041 PAO3
(451)2101-GWP-01-XX-DR-A-(PA)-0042 PAO3
(451)2101-GWP-01-XX-DR-A-(PA)-0043 PAO3

Typical bedrooms
(451)2101-GWP-01-XX-DR-A-(PA)-0060 PAO03

Cycle provision
(451)2101-GWP-01-00-DR-A-(PA)-0055_PAO

Sub-stations
(451)2101-GWP-01-00-DR-A-(PA)-0050 PAO6

Landscaping proposals by encon drawing A5102 01 rev H

Tree Protection Plan DR-5473-02 by Brooks Ecological (contained in Arboricultural
Impact Assessment)

Construction management plan

Waste management strategy by Curtins revision V03.

Student Traffic Management Plan 078912-CUR-00-XX-RP-TP-004-V04_TS revision
V04

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out
only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

3 HWAY40 Dilapidation survey

4 NOISE7 Restricted hours of construction
Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 146

5 Construction Management

The construction of the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in full
adherence with the construction management plan revision A dated 19.5.2021.

Air quality

Reason: To minimise the impact on residential amenity and the highway network
during construction, in accordance with NPPF paragraphs 110, 130 and 185.

6 Archaeology

A programme of post-determination archaeological mitigation initially an
archaeological strip of the site followed by a level of excavation is required.

a) No intrusive investigation or development shall commence until an Archaeological
Remains Management Plan (ARMP) has been submitted to and approved by the
local planning authority in writing. For land that is included within the ARMP, no
intrusive investigation or development shall take place other than in accordance
with the agreed ARMP.

b) The initial site investigation shall be completed in accordance with the programme
set out in the ARMP approved under (A). The ARMP will be updated accordingly
with a full mitigation strategy.

c) The site investigation and post-investigation assessment shall be completed in
accordance with the programme set out in the approved ARMP and the provision
made for analysis, publication and dissemination of results and archive deposition
will be secured. This part of the condition shall not be discharged until these
elements have been fulfilled in accordance with the programme set out in the
ARMP.,

d) A copy of a report and evidence of publication shall be deposited with City of York
Historic Environment Record to allow public dissemination of results within 6
months of completion or such other period as may be agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In accordance with Section 16 of NPPF as the site lies within an Area of
Archaeological Importance and the development will affect important archaeological
deposits which must be preserved in-situ or recorded prior to destruction.

7  Drainage - existing infrastructure

No development shall commence until measures to protect the public sewerage and
water supply infrastructure that is laid within/adjacent to the site boundary have been
implemented in accordance with details that have been submitted to and approved by
the Local Planning Authority (in consultation with the statutory undertaker).

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 147

The details shall include -

- The means of ensuring that access to the pipe(s) for the purposes of repair and
maintenance by the statutory undertaker shall be retained at all times.

- If the required stand-off or protection measures are to be achieved via diversion or
closure of the sewer(s) or water main(s), the developer shall submit evidence to the
Local Planning Authority that the diversion or closure has been agreed with the
relevant statutory undertaker and that, prior to construction in the affected area, the
approved works have been undertaken.

Reason: Required prior to commencement in the interests of public health and
maintaining the public sewerage and public water networks (maintained by Yorkshire
Water), in accordance with sections 12 and 15 of the NPPF.

8  On-site drainage

The site shall be developed in accordance with the drainage strategy as detailed in
the Tier Consult report dated May 2021. Surface water will discharge via storage with
a restricted discharge of 27.5 (twenty seven point five) litres per second.

Prior to development (excluding demolition) full details of the site drainage shall have
been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Details shall include -

- Consideration must be given to the use of soakaways. Discharge to the public
sewer shall only be permitted if it can be evidenced soakaways are unsuitable
(through an appropriate assessment carried out under BRE Digest 365).

- Storage volume calculations, using computer modelling, which must accommodate
a 1:30 year storm with no surface flooding, along with no internal flooding of
buildings or surface run-off from the site in a 1:100 year storm. Proposed areas
within the model must also include an additional 30% allowance for climate change.
The modelling must use a range of storm durations, with both summer and winter
profiles, to find the worst-case volume required.

- Existing and proposed ground levels.

- Future management and maintenance of the proposed drainage scheme.

Reason: In the interests of preventing increased flood risk, as required under NPPF
section 15, policy ENV5 of the 2018 eLP and the City of York Council Sustainable
Drainage Systems Guidance for Developers.

9 Land contamination - site investigation

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 148

Prior to development (excluding demolition) an investigation and risk assessment (in
addition to any assessment provided with the planning application) shall be
undertaken to assess the nature and extent of any land contamination. The
investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons. A
written report of the findings shall be produced, submitted to and approval in writing
of the Local Planning Authority. The report of the findings must include:

(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination (including ground
gases where appropriate);
(i)  an assessment of the potential risks to:

- human health,

- property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets,
woodland and service lines and pipes,

- adjoining land,

- groundwaters and surface waters,

- ecological systems,

- archaeological sites and ancient monuments;

(i) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s).

This shall be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's
‘Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11"

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

10 Land contamination - remediation

Prior to development (excluding demolition), a detailed remediation scheme to bring
the site to a condition suitable for the intended use (by removing unacceptable risks
to human health, buildings and other property and the natural and historical
environment) shall be submitted to and approved in writing of the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation
objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management
procedures. The scheme shall ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated
land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended
use of the land after remediation.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 149

11 LC3 Land contamination - remedial works

Prior to first occupation or use, the approved remediation scheme shall be carried out
in accordance with its terms and a verification report that demonstrates the
effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced and is subject to the
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems.

12 LC4 Land contamination - unexpected contamination

In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved
development that was not previously identified, it must be reported in writing
immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment
must be undertaken and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must
be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a
verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

13 Sustainable design and construction

Prior to commencement of construction of the development details of the proposed
building design, to reduce carbon emissions, shall be submitted to the local planning
authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved details.

The details shall evidence either a reduction in carbon emissions of at least 28%
compared to the target emission rate as required under Part L of the Building
Regulations 2013 or compliance with any approved Part L document dated 2021 or
thereafter.

Reason: To fulfil the environmental objectives of the NPPF and support the transition

to a low carbon future, and in accordance with policy CC2 of the Publication Draft
Local Plan 2018,

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 150

14 Materials

Manufacturer's details of the external materials to be used shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the
construction of the development. They shall be made available for review on-site, at
the discretion of the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out
using the approved materials.

Sample panels of the brickwork to be used shall be erected on the site and shall
illustrate the colour, texture and bonding of brickwork/ stonework and the mortar
treatment to be used, and shall be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
prior to the commencement of building works within that phase. These panels shall
be retained until a minimum of 2 square metres of wall of the approved development
has been completed in accordance with the approved sample.

Reason: In the interests of good design, in accordance with section 12 of the NPPF.
15 Large scale details

Details of the items listed below shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of construction of the
development and the works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

a) Typical sections at 1:20 or 1:10
b) Boundary treatment
c) Cover to external cycle store

Reason: In the interests of good design, in accordance with section 12 of the NPPF.
16 Noise

Prior to commencement of construction of the development a detailed scheme of
noise insulation measures for protecting the approved residential dwellings to the
development from externally generated noise shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.

The scheme shall demonstrate that the building envelope of all residential
accommodation shall be constructed so as to achieve internal noise levels in habitable
rooms of no greater than 35 dB LAeq (16 hour) during the day (07:00-23:00 hrs) and
30 dB LAeq (8 hour) and LAFMax level during the night (23:00-07:00 hours) should
not exceed 45dB(A) on more than 10 occasions in any night time period in bedrooms
and should not regularly exceed 55dB(A). These noise levels shall be observed with
all windows open in the habitable rooms or if necessary windows closed and other

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 151

means of ventilation provided.

Reason: To protect the amenity of people living in the new property from externally
generated noise and in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework
paragraph 130.

17 Landscaping scheme

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby permitted the approved
landscaping scheme, as shown on drawing Landscaping proposals by encon drawing
A5102 01 rev H, has been fully completed.

Any trees or plants which die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased
shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and species,
unless alternatives are agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The areas
of landscaping, as shown on the approved plans, shall be maintained as such at all
times.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the variety,
suitability and disposition of species within the site in the interests of amenity, good
design and the character and appearance of the conservation area.

18 Provision of servicing areas, cycle storage and making good of the highway

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby permitted the areas shown on the
approved plans for parking and manoeuvring of vehicles and cycle parking facilities
shall have been constructed and laid out in accordance with the approved plans, and
all existing vehicular crossings not shown as being retained on the approved plans
shall have been removed by reinstating the kerb; to match adjacent levels. Thereafter
all such servicing areas shall be retained solely for such purposes.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and good design, in accordance with
sections 9 and 12 of the NPPF.

19 Plant and machinery

The combined rating level of any building service noise associated with plant or
equipment at the site shall not exceed the representative LA90 1 hour during the hours
of 07:00 to 23:00 or representative LA90 15 minutes during the hours of 23:00 to
07:00 at 1 metre from the nearest noise sensitive facades when assessed in
accordance with BS4142: 2014, inclusive of any acoustic feature corrections
associated with tonal, impulsive, distinctive or intermittent characteristics.

Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby properties and the environmental qualities
of the area, in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework paragraph

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 152

130.
20 Electric vehicle charging facilities

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby permitted a minimum of 1 Electric
Vehicle Recharging Point shall be provided on site which is accessible from the
approved car parking spaces. The charging point shall incorporate a suitably rated
32A'IEC 62196’ electrical socket to allow ‘Mode 3' charging of an electric vehicle.

In addition, a minimum of 1 additional parking bay shall be identified for the future
installation of additional Electric Vehicle Charging Point. This additional bay shall be
provided with all necessary ducting, cabling and groundwork to facilitate the addition
of Electric Vehicle Charge Points in the future, if required (passive provision).

The Electric Vehicle facilities shall be retained thereafter and reasonably maintained
at all times and be available for the charging of electric vehicles.

Reason: To promote and facilitate the uptake of electric vehicles on the site in line
with the Council's Low Emission Strategy (LES) and NPPF paragraph 112.

21  Site security

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby permitted a scheme detailing site
security measures shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall operate in accordance with the approved details.
The scheme shall detail -

- Access control measures at the site and into cores within the building.
- CCTV coverage for the cycle stores
- Access restriction measures to ground floor windows

Reason: In the interests of good design, in accordance with NPPF section 12.
22  Site and student management plan

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby permitted a site and student
management plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall at all times be managed and occupied in full
accordance with the approved site and student management plan. The plan shall
include the following details -

- Measures to prohibit student parking on or in the vicinity of the Site (save for
temporary parking arrangements in accordance with the move-in procedure).

- Imposition of tenancy restrictions to prevent student tenants being a keeper of or
in control of a car within 400m of the Site and measures taken to enforce such

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 153

restriction, including annual parking surveys in the surrounding area.

- Maintenance of servicing and waste collection facilities.

- Provision of staff on-site.

- Strategy for dealing with any complaints from the pubilic.

- Measures to ensure on-site staff will monitor excessive noise and raise issues with
residents.

- That the student tenancy agreements include clauses relating to anti-social
behaviour.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of local residents and highway safety, in
accordance with NPPF sections 110 and 130.

23 Travel Plan

Within six months of first occupation of the development hereby permitted a Full
Travel Plan, prepared by the site operator shall be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority for approval in writing. The site shall thereafter be occupied in accordance
with the aims, measures and outcomes of said Travel Plan as approved.

The plan shall adhere to National Planning Policy Guidance, in providing objectives,
monitoring and meeting the identified objectives. It shall include details of the Travel
Plan co-ordinator and details for monitoring cycle usage and providing extra facilities
subject to demand. Results of annual travel surveys shall be submitted annually to
the authority's travel plan officer for approval.

Reason: To ensure that traffic flows from the site can be safely accommodated and
to promote the usage of sustainable means of transport.

24  Student accommodation only

The development hereby approved shall be occupied only for the purposes of student
accommodation by either students engaged at all times in full-time or part-time further
or higher education courses within the City of York administrative boundary or by
delegates at all times attending courses or conferences within the City. The operator
of the development shall keep an up to date register of the name of each person in
occupation of the development together with course(s) or conference(s) attended, and
shall make the register available for inspection by the local planning authority on
demand at all reasonable times.

Reason: In order to control the future occupancy of the development in the event of it
any part of it being sold or rented on the open market without securing adequate levels
of affordable housing, in accordance with Policy H7 of the 2018 Publication Draft Plan.

25 Use of car parking spaces

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 154

The parking spaces within the site shall only be used for the following activities -

- Charging of electric vehicles

- Accessible parking

- As a space for use by city car club vehicles (or similar car share arrangement)

- Any temporary parking required in association with the servicing or maintenance
of the development hereby permitted, or at the beginning/end of term time, as
specified in the Student Traffic Management Plan (as referred to in condition 2).

Reason: In the interests of promoting sustainable travel and accessibility.
26 Communal uses

The development hereby permitted shall include the whole of the amenity space and
facilities for occupants, in accordance with the approved floor plans, and retain them
as such at all times.

Reason: In the interests of good design and amenity.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant
1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive
outcome: sought amended plans to address issues regarding design and through the
use of planning conditions.

2. LEGAL AGREEMENT

Your attention is drawn to the existence of a legal obligation under Section 106 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 relating to this development

3. INFORMATIVE:

You are advised that this proposal may have an affect on Statutory Undertakers
equipment. You must contact all the utilities to ascertain the location of the equipment
and any requirements they might have prior to works commencing.

Contact details:
Case Officer:  Jonathan Kenyon

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



Page 155

Tel No: 01904 551323

Application Reference Number: 21/01605/FULM Item 4b



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 157

Mecca Bingo, 68 Fishergate, York YO10 4AR

21/01605/FULM

o e,

13

Haotel
o
___— lsubsna
14
. =
Club
NE T
¥5is
=
el 3
om | Elw 1tog
% sherga
g House
w
-
g
-4

'& L
- Tip 1
B
m'ﬂ“ ire Station
—
I
Warehouse [
4
: o
-
m
irf

T

14

siness Centre

=

iy

Reproduced fom the Ordnance Surey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majestys Stationeny Office @ Crown
Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised repreducton infringes Crown Copynight and may
lead to prosecution or cvil proceedings.

Produced wsing EZRI LK) MapExplorer 2.0- hope/www. esriuk.c.om

Scale :

1:1236

Organisation

City of Yark Counel

Department |Directorzte of Place
Comments  |Site Location Plan
Date 13 November 2021
SLA Number




This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL

Planning Committee

To be held on Thursday 2" December 2021

6GT obed



V.

21/01605/FULM - Mecca Bingo, 68 Fishergate, York

Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of the site to form 275no0.
room purpose built student accommodation with associated car parking,
landscaping and facilities

COUNCIL

09T abed



Site Location Plan §

\ s
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

R S R
B BT A L S

W o b ok,
uuuuuuuuu

[ A -

\

e [ 3
\ Ci e e BB 5

p—

MELBOURNE STREET

o
LANDECAR AKCWECTS

[45112101

P

Fialta House, Fishergate, York

K

OLYMPIAN

I Location Plan
Al p = | veme  2101=GWP-0 1-XX-DR=A= [FA}-0001
..... l r scde  11I50@AE [mwiden PAD2
ProwaThached DE/DT |m.,.. 18,06,21
G ee Meethg™= 2nd December 2021 i




Page 162

] 15
- I, | ¥ o
| E “_
- [ | | ¥ i
- =N _
i w e ] ahiun
o o i | - | _ _
- - 3 5 || _
_ i E X = i
Pr——— m = __ : _ i . -
g g : E
e HENN E__ _ “m
I _H_ s I
SRR I i {
| L] - | @&
] w \. J.u = ._ | m T N ik ]
| b —
w BT o] I || W?
| =
0 5 H HH AT i
- B i _w _ e
RRRERATE 2 ! ] _ anmanst
i /.,nlnh RN m B MfRHL_____ ] L] m =+ T TER _._r..a[Llll..L\\
A_J. rJ.r_mh.ru.rrl '] HEHEE T EILEL L | Liel .mn_.mIm Q?Amll\.ll._ >
.lrL\l.Llu MJJ,}.:IHHHM. | _ ]
-1 e 3
l..ﬂwn.l__ L | A
LA il b e
FET | Lo L
\\1\1\11-_ F_F -
W e 12 b
x._.. _D. L
L/ LW

LY
[
T
El Sub Sta

EUETRY |

b
L
2
A
City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

IR

=

3
I
9

Conservation Areas

lllustration of
surrounding




Blue Bridge Lane

COUNCIL

A

Rear Elevation Facing South/William Court

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021 5

€97 abed



CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Front, Side and Rear of 25 William Court

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

h\\ton cannon u

.A
A ouss - J.,J(m Y A

]
,

v9T S'E’d



g L
.mm_:“ g § Page 165 8 ELE
m ! 1 s 2l
b ; i3
HET : J
il o it

YORK

Proposed Site Plan




Proposed Elevations —
North and West

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Macoa bi
i acant 2099
__Y___
[ w3
i e iy
prrp—
sl w (7 S T [ SNl o e g g [ ) g S g g g Y
[ B
3

rrrpe—
i
-

AR P
¥

Jrrper——

A d

=

dencaling ta cimeay it - S0F =t —
ELEVATION 03 - From William Court, Looking East e : - sasbocks mcessad back barcl e
——————— Lét Ovarrun andd
VTSP Smcka Shat
| ]
- (@)

e @
H
o
o

AR P
-

L
L

AL D Pt
L4

L

ELEVATION 04 - From Novatel Carpark, Looking South

Brick soldiar coumas with

Bick satbodks Basting fancing ‘

recezad bride band @ear
Materials Key
1. Light red multi-brick, 7, Standing seam zinc roof, RAL TBC,
2. Dark red mulri-brick, B, Vertical metal railing RALTRC,
3. Brass spandrel panel 9, Feature harzantal band, Brick Soldier Course and recessed brick band,
4, Setbodck brick panel reveal detai, 10, Stesl lowvwred external door, Colowr to match windows, RAL T
5, High perfarmance PPC Aluminium window units, double glazed, Bxernal 11, Feature brick chimney, Brick type 1./ 2 a3 per elevation,
colour to match brass spandrel panel, RAL TBC (white internaly), 12, Standing seam zinc to lift averrun, Colowr to match roof, RAL TBC,
&, Horizontal lowvre, RAL TRC, 13, Potential location for Public Art, Details TRC,
G R R
E...«v?ﬂmmmw.mhwmq T o |uere Proposed Elevations 03, 04
€ or . -
e e Terarn e | Rialto House, Fishergate, York I
1 et 2t ko e o g o e T — ETT—— INBChTachE:
Mooy dacrwparcreibim g o the AcHeacr e - _2.1?::;:.“!’. :-Ol }lc( liﬁ-l [PN'P:?IZI e
®[W SRR e
o = om OLYMPIAN o -
o |[Ch E 3 T § -
I I B R — - = "";'{‘" o = LSRR T S
Scola - 1200 @3 . . . . : A Draving 9ata D - Planning
City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021



Proposed Elevations
— East and South

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

A by iy
-

i o
LA i o

1 i
-

1L ok
-

#1180 Coadl B
-

ELEVATION 02 - From Eluebridge Lane, Looking North

Smoka Shaft | Uit Owaman

Macca bings
anstng axant

FISHERGATE ROAD

dunlmg‘odumrw

Materials Key

1. Light red multi-brick,
2, Dark red multi-brick,
3. Bross spondrel panel
4, Setback brick ponel reveal detail,

5, High perfarmance PPC Aluminium window units, double glazed, Bxernal
colour to match brass spandrel ponel, RAL TBC (white intemaly),

4, Horizontal louvre, RAL TBC,

7. Standing seam zinc roof, RAL TBC,

8, Mertical metal railing RALTBC,

9, Feature harzantal band, Brick Soldier Course and recessed brick band,
10, Steel lowred sxternal door, Colowr fa match windows, RAL TRC

11, Feature brick chimney, Brick type 1/ 2 a3 per elevation,

12, Standing seam zinc 1o lift averun, Calour to match roof, RAL TBC,

13, Potential location for Public Art, Details TBC,

Back soldiar coursas with
moavad back band over

ey h.ga

BEEERIESNES S NE

R S

oy %ﬂ\*“mwmﬁ.m“ﬂ‘m gl

AT B of dnanion o b okt commarig ary werko¢
e Smpdogs U ke T o e o o i o rk el

ey i s i i rh b
im Sm 10m

a
[ [ N |

L1
Scola - 1200 @A

G ot Entwarcn
(4512101
LT

Rialto House, Fishergate, York

Proposed Elevations 01, 02

a1t | 221121 | Revaed rocommens a |er
FATG | G51731 | Lonchoopes neiasd o commen o |or
A7 | 041121 | Lanchoope newasd o commens o |or
PALS | G5.1021 | Minor grophicdl cmendmens e |on
T [wvmd] oo corrererts racwmoed] ikl |

Pt | 2as 21 Ekechen S [ee Jor
o [or

<3

Ch

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeﬁhg’ -

2hd December 20

OLYMPIAN

riame 2101 -GWP-01-XX-DR-A-(PA}-0020

ccte 1:200@83 [twsion AL

brcwn/Chachea DE / DT |r.,.... 18,0621

rawing Sasa D - Planning

TR T
ks

MmO
FUCT AAREE.
FROLECT MG,
LARBACPT MRCTIET:

i, i, i Lo Lt 24150
saall 1% )\MM“&' S0 13 S 1T
o e opraEheom



Large Scale Details and materials — Fishergate, Blue Bridge Lane corner

%

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

I Section A-A
1
|

Metal standing seam pitched roof

wdl .

g

View 3 - (Fishergate / Blue Bridge Lane Corner)

PPC Alu flashings
Recessed brick band

PPC Alurninium Window units

‘Chimney" Brickwork detail

Featurs Brick Detailing

3 No Soldier Cources with

recassed brick band above.

PPC Aluminium Window units to
active frontage / social spacss

Feature graphics fo give
additional ‘movement’ to

slevation
L 1
! :
! il T
|

Mecca
Bingo Extent

Precedents

89T abed

T e

Syt s
gva B "

Gy e dmardan o b e oo ey e

TRy i &)
e e S ks e iy o o g
oyt 4 At

57| THavand Rlomwih arndmanns BE BT
e
5 &l
% o
5 e |of
Tav  Dow | Comment or

» Rialto House, Fishergate, York

Bay / Materials Study 02

OLYMPIAN

Ch

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

Nowe  2101-GWP-01-XX-DR-A~(PA}-0041

e VARIES | PAO4

O cowes /o lncd.

D7 |rasnse 180623

Drowing Sasa D - Planning

o towon Lidgur Lova Laadel28 155
-l.nuu 2620 41 | +SHN1S 0 1REDT,
ahew corn | vam

10



e

(e P BT e I PN

Proposed Ground Floor

ko
Weran 8 mavdana ol barckmn

n cor eniacft draving

o rer i dginl divwdora oo i drowing

Moy s 16t ragerTad s b Niba

0 1m Sm 10m
||I|(|I||I | |

Scole - 1250 @A3

KEY
[0 sockal Space - 334m2
CYCLE SPACES Plont- 175m2
Shaffisid Hoops * - Vartical Cireulaton / Coms
[ Ghuster Sockal Kichens

I studio Room -Vosas 2Ne.

DDA Stdo Roam - =31 2m2 1Mo
I cluster tacroom - 12 5m2 27 Ne.

Toral: 50 No.

e Cyche Storage 168 Spacss (61.09%)

= Ratura Cycl Storage 148+ 94 Spaces = 262(95.27%)
G bulding fnvonce / fgress

¥ CycleAccess va Gate

" Moitnonca access off Shua Sridga Lane

w13 22 n -U =
12041121 Cydeloes amwnded =
MI1 05 0N Cydelaew anended

w10 | 3606 21 | Cycle acoen vage adcrd B
0% | 2105 21 | Ravaed to comment Goklm

ADDMONAL
L. JCYCLE'SPACES
Sh os 1

mos | AN ==

TS

avod 31y 0¥3INsH

Brokan s lidgur oo Laskia 150
a1 13 364 2044 7] | +5800113 260 1R ©)
R WA G Y | e o

S RS

(451)2101

P

Rialto House, Fishergate, York

Gan

OLYMPIAN
\%ﬁ

g
% Proposed Ground Floor Plan
CITY OF
Nawe  2101-GWP-01-00-DR-A~(PA)-0012
Y R K e T750GA3 [we  PAD
DrawyOedwd DEDT  [rasm 180627
(S Satnston: D-‘ﬂonmrg
COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 202

ek o o IEAD ers, e
440

SR



Proposed First Floor

_ _ EEmREmEe O

Rt e e IRt e

ko
Wi 8 ndons ot Barchan.

o ror e of i
o rcr ke dginl dimacdans troce i droning
Aoy e v T © S At

a4 1m

5m
| | - | |
Scols - 1250 GA3

10m
| |

Studio Room - Vanas 21 Ne.
DDA Studo Room - -31.2m2 1Mo,
[ chster sadroom - 12 5m2 59 Ne.

Tosal: 81 No

moa [ 2291 m-hp.,m-m i
3

mo7 | 0510.21 | Apvand tordhect chonged

moe | 30001 Mdbﬁgﬂmnm"d

WS | 240021 | Mavaed tocommann

Goklm
| amced Submeoncn lacoman
el 3 ke

w4 | 11082

Substorcn boron cmended__ |
oy | oen

|FF
Cerere cmied Smcke | DF
5

‘ond smcvos e wwpped. |

| 23080 | nu-i e cammants

Hoon lickgarLaw Lok 20 150
Pty e A
g anh o

B

(45112101

-,
Rialto House, Fishergate, York
=

ll .\
|\
1 |
| |
1 |

1 |
CITY OF i

YORK T

COUNCIL

OLYMPIAN

Proposed First Floor Plan

2101-GWP-01-01-DR-A-(PA}-0013
5 Sode 1:2508A3 ||...‘- PAOS
- DrowyOreched DE/DT  [Rranam 180621
Clty of York Council PIannmg Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021 e

3 T B o RIS T2 6, Wi
£12101 Oy ae 10




Proposed Second Floor Plan

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

ik Rk e D
(R BT R R R SRR

P

mmmmmmmm

e 2z 22zl

Rialto House, Fishergate, York

OLYMPIAN

Proposed Second Floor Plan

Name 2101-GWP-01-02-DR-A-(PA)-0014
Sode 1:2508A3 ll-wa- PAOS




S e S v st ey

TSRSy o o rha i brn v vy ko

Proposed Third Floor Plan

—————— Extant of Sita Tife
— KEY
| B Vertco! Crculation / Coms
|
| Chuster Sockal Kichans
\
\ Studio Room - Vaas 14No
\
\
|
\

B Chuster Becroom - Vories 48No
Toxat. &3 No.

10 | 229121 | Revaad tocomments.

I
mos | 0sso2 m;&m chngedto

«(D
mos | 30000 |fenpicmmmnnsend o
07 | 2400 20 | evend o commenns - 108 H
| 3w camwocd \]
moe | 1808 {
MOS | 1108 27 | Subwomcn loconan amanded | N
M4 | 290627 | Energy cacre cmimed Smcke  (0E NI
shaft awepped

M03 | 2330621 | Revaad o comments Jce_Jor
W02 | 320621 | Roofichito kichemadded  |OE_[OT
W | 18060 | fre e lee_lor
Fev Dot | Comment > G
OwsERn moiTET
WERCS DEALOTR.
ey

moxaT
LNDLCAR MCHECTS

iageriamm Laui28 10
mmum: A0S 260 1850 1
s

oy
e
(451)2101
-1 ot e
il Rialto House, Fishergate, York
| | Car
|
1
|

OLYMPIAN

CITY OF | |

YORK

COUNCIL

Proposed Third Floor Plan

Nowe  2101-GWP-01-03-DR-A-(PA)-0015
Sede  1250@A3  [amwsen  PAIO
DewvOuwded DE/DT_ |ratum 180621

e B
City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

Vsn- (2512101 ﬁuan om e $10




Proposed Roof Plan

\
g CITY OF

COUNCIL

YORK

P =l
Chuaser Kischen
03.01 et
roof
e,
Roof ight 1o o > f a3.01
@305
Chater Kitchen
03.05 eweracy AV 10 3rd
#roughrod Carmdor balow
350mem Diom ‘
Aue &
250mm CHP Aue.
Roof l
Quster
03.05
Roof ight 1o AQV 1 3ed
Clll°'3 Carridor balow
Quaser Kischan
03.04 evoa
roof
AV 10 3rd
—\ Comidor
|

Cluger Kitchan
3.02 waract
roof

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

B B ST
(e BT R TR R

pen—

Wi e s i oud bk o
0 par e off

0 pcrnle gl dimsesona from ¢ dromieg
ey o arcios © b roperted 6 £ Ak

|0|m Sm 10m
I |

wl\\l

ol - 1250 GAS

Raokocoms valkwoy

g foll Amest System - Design and
2 e fdiini S

1 Dminoge guter
—————> Drainoge falls - asindicated
AOV 10 smokeshaft -
Senving up 10 Second Flcor

Combinad AOV/Roof Access
Hoxch 1o stair cores.

PV Panels - 22 No.
2094 x1038nm @ 30°

Roof Light

[ID L a8

mio | 22012
mgosso)l [ R doraed o
08 | 2400 21 | Pwvond o commant Goblm
cmanched S ubstoncn |coo on
L ordum crweded
[ARTI T et ittt
W05 | 110821 Subarcson kosion cmenced
MOS | 280621 Core 3mcm theh reccoted |
W04 250631 | P cuertum corfemad
W03 230621 Ravasd to commant
W02 220621 ook ighh tobitcherm cckded
MOT 180621 Fre haw

v
CwaRs MOWCT:
NERCR CECE
SHCE R
ORI NAAGE
LANGLCAR ARCHECTS.

Pavond 1o commens

=T

bed

€LT @

1 Mo, Lkt Laon. L3 190
ST 1336 £ 1) | +S8TH1 13 268 1R 1)
AR O | e o

e e
45112101
P

Rialto House, Fishergate, York

e

OLYMPIAN

Proposed Roof Plan

Name 2101-GWP-01-04-DR-A~(PA}-0016




Typical Bedroom Types

Typical Cluster Study Bedroom - 190 No.

Unit Shown 12.5m?

TYPE 02

13.2m?

17

TYPE 03

17.6m?

TYPE 04

21.1m?

TYPE 05

14.8m?

n

Typical Studic Bedroom - 82 Na.
Unit Shown 18m?

TYPE 02 20.6m? 12
TYPE 03 29.2m? 1
TYPE 04 18.9m? 1
TYPE 06 31.0m? 1

1500mm x1500mm
Wheelchair turning space

floor unit

Clear space
under worktop

L__F

7

.e_‘

flaor unit

iLY)
QD
«Q
@
Typical DDA Studic Bedroom - 4 Mo,
Uit Shown 27 8m? -
~
D
List of furniture:
1. double bed
2. desk
1 . . 3. chair
TYPE 0 ] 26.5m* 3 4. wardrobe
1 5. shelving unit
TYPE 02 i 27 Bm? i 1 i 6. patential chairs
| : : 7. kitchenette
8. table

B

B R PR

Fam———

‘
\ CITY OF ST

SmSTebaspdy

L e

ek, B s ke o cheseioy i o ks choped

2m

COUNCIL

YORK . =

P L Bttt

L Tia

Rialto House, Fishergate, York

[257}2101

Typical Bedroom Types

3

OLYMPIAN

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

rame 2101 -GW P-01-2%-DR-A-(PA}-0060

st 7 S0EAZ |l.-_ PADS

o crwn Checked DF /0T |r_.h— 18.06.21

Drawing Sasa D - Planning

CWVPA

R o
RO CE LG
FUCE AN,
FRDNCT st
ARG MW

Lt

Bracian oo, L gur Lva Lids 54 153
TS s ] | S T
et pepeechcen | s qepraChcore.

16



Proposed Sub Station

Brick Par. with Raaf structure Ta
Herthem Power Specifications

Lowwed doars fa Narther Pawer
Grrid Spedfications

Sul-Stations walk in dark red
multi-brick

Switchroom Access Substation Access Substation Access

Sub-Station - Ground Floor Plan Elevation 04 «Q

D

=

~

Rialta House 1o Rear m

Elevation 01 Elevation 02 Elevation 03
M E“ G ot Radumec s
\ CITY OF a F:pmmm_:"ﬂ*‘.n:,&.‘._q T | ST Wi S T P Proposed Sub Station
ot Ao | annat e o i Rialto House, Fishergate, York

RRR™ %R
SE5R B3
i
g
E

S 4 ko = bt corras ]y ok o
g A AT S0k Sote s i = S
fng dcrepanci b repn red i the Adirecr mwﬂ T T :‘ :':"m:"m'"i'o'm'*w”::'zo o wcas
" Revaion
am HE
" b [ [ Com o <k OLYMPIAN oramiected DE 7 DT |rmrtawe 180621 e o e e
pormiliE i

1
|I ol | e o e T ek SRR

e b

COUNCIL S City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - “7hd December 2021




William Court —
Overlooking Study

%

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Willicam Court
no 25

ELEVATION A
4z 400

Willicam Covurt
no 1

Building lne to ariging
planning submitted sdieme

10,066
Secpackary 1o Side

‘William Court na 25

Secandary fa Side|

14191

9/ T abed

e R e
et e 0 s ey Opaque — William Court - Overlooking
e o i o s s Transparent Rialto House, Fishergate, York
et . I Translucent windows set back behind louvres — Ry
Mm..ﬁwmmnmmm“m g Spandrel panel | | [ e 2101-GWEP-01-XX-DR-A-(PAJ-00 62 IR
Lowvered service doors CHEER = F E oo 200600 ||...-. e LAIGEGE AT
ﬂ m 5m A en = Spl ed Windows Tov Dot Comment o Ch OLYMPIAN

Pl
|...|..1.Mn.-a.\\

” V'E‘Cf{'f/mc“i? YEKEBtncil Planning Committee Mé

seting = 2nd-December 2

021

07 [rasnse 370827
e cwing Sama D - Flanning

e, L i Liadn 28 15

CSHILLS 3k e | -SSITA 1S 36 1A )
| s gopa ko



Existing and
Proposed
Render (1)

Existing View

L/T abed

Proposed View 01 Looking South From Fishergate Rood

— z Render 1
g = o foel Rialto House, Fishergate, York
i ‘: i R 2 b e o= S i Name 2101-GWP-01-XX-VS-A-(PA)-0045
— oV CITY OF = & o [l PAOH
_ 21 OLYMPIAN [~ oot
N COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021 19



Existing and
Proposed
Render (2)

Existing View

Key

Proposed View 02 Locoking West Down Blue Bridge Lane

Rialto House, Fishergate, York

T o

Render 2

e lor

= «1  OLYMPIAN

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

Nawe 2101-GWP-01-XX-VS-A-(PA)-0046

Sccde

Drawe Checked -

[rwion PAOY

T Ia—,- e

Drawing Sasa D




Existing and
Proposed
Render (3)

i

faky
e ss

Existing View

Key

Proposed View 03 Looking East Down Blue Bridge Lone

e - Render 3
— " . i | L i " Rialto House, Fishergate, York
> ‘\h CITY OF i el =z & i: = b 2101-GWI01-KNS-A{PA)-0047
I il — OLYMPIAN == = Jea ko
Y R K DWS*“ ’ . ;‘;‘;Z’“ﬁ:ﬁm- '
COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021 21



Existing and
Proposed
Render (4)

Existing View

08T abed

Key Proposed View 04 Looking East From Williom Court

2 Render 4
Rialto House, Fishergate, York
o
O Name  2101-GWP-01-XX-VS-A-(PA)-0048
o I Sccte M /S Revaion PAOY
~—= OLYMPIAN = f= 2o
Drowing Sasa D

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021




Page 181 Agenda Item 4c

COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 2 December 2021 Ward: Guildhall

Team: East Area Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel

Reference: 21/01535/FUL

Application at: The Minster School Deangate York YO1 7JA

For: Change of use of former school to York Minster refectory (use

class E) to include new restaurant, kitchen and plant, creation of
level access, installation of platform lift, new service doors, re-
roofing, integration of solar PV panels and external repairs; and
creation of a new Public Open Space, including external
landscape improvements, gazebo, parasol bases, ice cream hut,
railing relocation, cycle parking and cycle service hub.

By: Mr Alexander McCallion

Application Type: Full Application

Recommendation: Approve

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1. The application site comprises of the former Minster Song School building and
adjacent lawned area located to the southern side of Deangate. The site currently
consists of the school building, the lawned area to the North West and are large
area of hardstanding to the front. Access to the site is taken directly from Deangate.

1.2. Planning permission is sought for the Change of Use of the site to form York
Minster Refectory (Use Class E). The proposals include the provision of a new
restaurant, kitchen, provision of plant equipment, formation of level access, the
installation of a lift, provision of new service doors, re-roofing of the building,
provision of solar PV equipment, external repairs and the creation of a new Public
Open space; to include external landscape improvements, gazebo, parasol bases,
ice cream hut, railing relocation, cycle parking and cycle service hub.

1.3. The song school building is Grade Il Listed. The site is located within the
Central Historic Core Conservation Area, a defined Area of Archaeological

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 182

Importance and is also located within the Scheduled Monument designation area of
York Minster Precinct.

1.4. The site ceased use as the Minster School in Summer 2020 when The
Chapter York, who are responsible for the upkeep, running and operating of the
Minster estate, decided to close the school.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

1.5. An accompanying application for Listed Building Consent has also been
submitted under reference 21/01536/LBC - Change of use of former school, to the
York Minster Refectory (use class E), to include new restaurant, kitchen and plant,
creation of level access, installation of platform lift, internal alterations, new service
doors, re-roofing, integration of solar PV panels and external repairs; and creation of
a new Public Open Space, including external landscape improvements, gazebo,
parasol bases, ice cream hut, railing relocation, cycle parking and cycle service hub.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK

2.1. The revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2021 was published
and sets out the government’s planning policies for England and how these are
expected to be applied.

2.2. Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise (section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

2.3. The Statutory Development Plan for the City of York comprises the saved
policies and key diagram of the otherwise revoked Yorkshire and Humber Plan
Regional Spatial Strategy (2008) and any made Neighbourhood Plan.

2.4. The application site is located within the Central Historic Core Conservation
Area and forms part of The Minster Precinct, a Scheduled Monument. The site also
falls within a defined Area of Archaeological Interest. There are also a number of
Listed Buildings within the vicinity including the Grade | listed Church of Holy Trinity
situated immediately to the South.

2.5. Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 requires that in considering whether to grant planning permission for
development which affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning authority
shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or
any features of special architectural or historic interest.

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 183

2.6. Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 requires that special attention be paid to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

2.7. Case law has made clear that a finding of harm to a conservation area or to a
listed building or its setting is a consideration to which the decision-maker must give
considerable importance and weight when carrying out the balancing exercise to
give effect to its statutory duties under sections 66 and 72 of the 1990 Act. There is
a “strong presumption” against the grant of planning permission is such cases.

PUBLICATION DRAFT LOCAL PLAN (DLP 2018)

2.8. The DLP was submitted for examination on 25" May 2018. Phase 1 of the
hearings into the examination of the Local Plan took place in December 2019. In
accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF the Draft Plan policies can be afforded
weight according to:

-The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation
the greater the weight that may be given);,

- The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

-The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012. (N.B: Under transitional
arrangements plans submitted for examination before 24 January 2019 will be
assessed against the 2012 NPPF).

2.9. Key relevant DLP 2018 policies are:
SS3 - York City Centre
EC4 — Tourism
HW4 - Childcare Provision
D1 — Placemaking
D2 — Landscape and Setting
D3 — Cultural Provision
D4 — Conservation Areas
D5 — Listed Buildings
D6 — Archaeology
D11 — Extensions and Alterations to Existing Buildings
GI1 — Green Infrastructure
CC1 - Renewable and Low Carbon Energy Generation
ENV2 — Managing Environmental Quality
T1 — Sustainable Access

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 184

MINSTER NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN (Submission Draft April 2021)

2.10. The York Minster Precinct Neighbourhood Plan was submitted to the City of
York Council for independent examination on 26" April 2021. Given the stage of
preparation that the plan has reached, the policies contained within it are capable of
being a material planning consideration of a planning application. However it does
not form part of the adopted development plan until such time as it has been fully
adopted. Relevant policies within the neighbourhood plan are:

Al- Purpose and Ambition

A2 - Sustainable Development

A4 — Design Excellence

B1 — Landscape and Biodiversity Net Gain
C1 — Historic Environment

D1 — Wellbeing

E1l — Movement and Public Realm

PAl — Minster Yard and College Green

DRAFT LOCAL PLAN 2005

2.11. The City of York Draft Local Plan incorporating the Fourth Set of Changes
Development Control Local Plan (April 2005) was approved for Development
Management purposes. The 2005 plan does not form part of the statutory
development plan for the purposes of S38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004. Its policies are however considered capable of being material
considerations in the determination of planning application where policies relevant to
the application are consistent with those in the NPPF although the weight that can
be attached to them is very limited.

2.12. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF states that decisions should apply a presumption in
favour of sustainable development which means, for decision taking:

- Approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development
plan without delay; or
- Where there are no relevant development policies, or the policies which are
most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting
permission unless:
- The application of policies within this framework that protect areas or
assets of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the
development proposed; or

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 185

- Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this
framework taken as a whole.

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

3.1. Guildhall Planning Panel: Objects. ‘We are concerned about the architectural
clutter of the proposed gazebo at the front of the existing building as it would seem
to be unnecessary way of spoiling the facade. Perhaps landscaping details could be
simplified as it is out of keeping with the surrounding area.’

3.2. CYC Design and Conservation: Object in principle to the approach taken to
the conversion as detailed in the application documents. The harm the proposals will
cause to the setting of the Minster and other Listed Buildings, the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area and the significance of the listed building itself
are, in my view, completely unacceptable. It appears that a commercially driven
approach to conversion is outweighing heritage significance here. The Heritage
Statement is written in such a way that it simply dismisses the harm as unimportant
due to the benefits of bringing the building back into use in the very focused and
uncompromising way. In simple terms a more balanced approach is required
whereby the commercial needs are assessed against the many positive heritage
significances the site possesses. Whilst | recognise the need to improve energy
efficiency the Solar Photovoltaic Panels or slates are completely unacceptable in
this particular location. They will have a detrimental impact on the significance of a
large number of heritage assets and their significance. The issues are numerous in
heritage terms but involve the loss of historic fabric to facilitate the installation, and,
the appearance of the panels/slates and their effect on character and appearance.
The use of PV’s is also questioned as | understand they will require regular
replacement; their efficiency reduces over time; and, and they do not have the same
appearance as a traditional slate roof. In my opinion the proposals are at the
greatest level of ‘less than substantial harm’ and | do not think the public benefits
outweigh this level of harm. | would point out that the phrase ‘less than substantial
harm’ should not be confused with ‘no harm’.

3.3. CYC Archaeologist: No objections raised but does request the use of a
condition to secure a programme of post determination archaeological mitigation.

3.4. CYC Ecologist: No objections raised. ‘As the Ecological Impact Assessment
provided is up to date, well considered and provides an appropriate level of detail, it
Is considered that the recommendations provided within the report should be
adhered to through conditions.

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 186

3.5. CYC Landscape Officer: No objections raised. ‘A considerate landscape
scheme that responds very well to the brief, both in concept and in detail, whilst
providing a much improved setting for the refectory and a significant new piece of
accessible public realm within the minster precinct. Nonetheless the pergola should
be omitted, and the long straight boundary separating the refectory from the main
lawn should be played down by omitting any form of block base. One option for
discussion may be to increase the external space allocated to the refectory by
setting back the boundary into the existing lawned area (although this would impact
upon the pleasing simplicity of the precinct lawn).

3.6. CYC Public Protection: No objections raised but does request a series of
conditions relating to Noise, Odour, Lighting and construction operations.

3.7. CYC Flood Risk Management Team: No comments have been received at the
time of writing.

3.8. CYC Highways: Stated that they cannot support the proposals based on
identified issues relating to how the proposals tie into the existing network, concerns
regarding the proposed surfacing materials, insufficient cycle parking.

3.9. Safer York Partnership: No objections raised — but notes that the premises are
situated within the boundary of the CYC Cumulative Impact Zone; although this is
part of Licensing policy and not planning policy. It is pleasing to note that the area of
the proposed new Minster Refectory will be patrolled by the Minster Police and that
the landscape proposal creates a secure park that is bounded by railings with
access gates. The applicant may need to apply for a Premises Licence under the
Licensing Act 2003. It is noted that bollard lighting is proposed, this should be
avoided as it does not project sufficient light at the right height and distorts available
light due to the ‘up-lighting’ effect.

3.10. Historic England: In principle, we are very supportive of the scheme as we
consider the new use to be compatible with the heritage values and significance of
the building, its setting and the setting of the surrounding listed buildings. The
scheme has the potential to secure the sustainable future for the vacant former song
school in a role that makes a significant contribution to York Minster’s visitor offer.
We do not support the addition of Solar PV panels on the principal west and east
elevations of the listed building. The lift shaft on the east side of the building will be
set back from the principal elevation and sit below the existing ridge line. We do not
considered that this will significantly detract from the aesthetic value of the building.
It also offers a way of improving the accessibility of the building as a whole without
unduly comprising the internal space. We welcome the gradual regrading of the
pavement in order to avoid the introducing of new steps, ramps and railings. We
Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 187

appreciate the challenges in adapting the listed building for the use proposed.
Nevertheless, the building has accommodated uses in the past that have not paid
particular attention to the historic features of the building, so we recognise that there
Is the opportunity to reverse some of the harmful impacts and better reveal the
historic character and form of the building.

3.11. A further consultation response was received from Historic England on 12
November 2021 following the submission of additional information relating to the
provision of PV Equipment on the building by the applicants. In their follow up
comments they advise that Historic England does not object to this element of the
scheme and that they defer to the LPA on the determination of the preferred
alternative — but asks that the LPA satisfies themselves that enough evidence
supports the chosen approach and the public benefits outweigh the degree of harm
caused.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

4.1. The application has been advertised via Neighbour Notification Letter, Site
Notice and Local Press Notice. In total 3.no letters of support, one of which is from
the Archbishop of York; and 6.no letters of objection have been received. A further
letter of representation have also been received from CllIr Vassie, Chair of the CYC
Climate Change Committee.

4.2. Callinrequests have also been received from Ward Councillors, Clir Craghill
and ClIr Looker.

4.3. The comments in support of the proposal can be summarised as follows:

- The proposals represent an exciting opportunity for the re-use of the Minster
School. They will result in the transformation of the area into a new public
green space, bringing an improved sense of place to the Minster precinct and
the setting of York Minster.

- | am particularly supportive of the emphasis on environmental sustainability
which is evident throughout the planning application with the proposed use of
photovoltaic panels.

- The creation of a new green space in the precinct will provide space for
residents and visitors to appreciate and enjoy the magnificent surroundings.

- At the heart of the vision within the Neighbourhood Plan is an ambitious and
unflinching commitment to sustainability, biodiversity and wellbeing which are
values resting at the heart of this current application.

- The proposals respect the Minster and its history, its purpose as a place of
worship and a spiritual place which is committed to welcome everyone.

- The plan to re-use the former song school is innovative and aims to breath
new life into both the building and the open space, in a way that is inclusive

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



4.4,

Page 188

and sustainable — not just environmentally, but also socially and economically
viable.

York Minster has been very clear in its emerging Neighbourhood Plan that the
greatest threat to the fabric of this ancient building, the precinct and our many
properties are extreme weather events brought about by climate change.
Chapter have been very clear that they have a moral duty to lead on the
adaption of its heritage assets to respond to the net zero target.

| commend the Minster team for seeking a way to provide hospitality to visitors
to the precinct.

| want to record my support for the applicant seeking a way to sensitively
install solar PV panels.

Can the city please show some leadership and encourage well considered
adaption both in response to the climate emergency and practical needs of the
people of our historic city.

The comments in objection to the proposal can be summarised as follows:

It has come to our attention that not all the residents of Talbot Court have
received consultation letters.

The application is counter to the aims of the City of York Local Plan as
currently submitted for examination.

The proposals will have repercussions that are detrimental to the environment.
The application as submitted appears contradictory to the Neighbourhood
Forum plan as submitted for examination.

Since 2013 the number of hospitality units has expanded considerably with
more outlets planned for future developments of York Central and Castle
Gateway. However footfall in the city centre has continued to decline.

In the area around the Minster there already exists a very extensive array of
hospitality outlets whereas the number of Al retailers continue to shrink.

The change of use to hospitality is not a get out of jail card.

There has been inference for several years that the Minster needs its own
dedicated café. The Minster did have its dedicated refectory in the recent past
in St Williams College as recently as 2014.

The proposed extended operating hours and excessive outdoor seating will
cause noise disturbance.

Use of the premises as a school led to minimal disturbance. Longer periods of
potential disturbance from annual events such as school fete were notified to
residents in advance allowing them to vacate for the day.

Residents of Talbot Court have been in dialogue with CYC Environmental
Health Officers concerning refuse collection, street cleaning and noise on Low
Petergate at the front of our properties. The proposals if approved will create
significantly more noise impact to the rear of the properties.

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



4.5.

Page 189

The Minster Song School grounds were only added to the York Minster
Neighbourhood Plan during 2020 and there was no consultation with Talbot
Court residents.

The proposals artfully use the term refectory, but there is absolutely no doubt
this is yet another large commercial restaurant.

If the proposals are just for York Minster visitors then the premises should
operate in the same time frames as the Minster itself.

Conditions should be attached to restrict the use of the outdoor space.

| am opposed to the planned commercial desecration of one of this country’s
holiest sites.

The comments of general representation received can be summarised as

follows:

5.0

Historic England do not support the addition of Solar Panels stating that they
would be non-traditional and out of character with the area.

Unlike the Cathedral itself Historic England appears to believe that, in this
case, climate change will not happen close to historic buildings, that historic
buildings are somewhat exempt from a requirement to engage with the
pressing challenge of our time.

The idea that non-traditional materials must be banned from proximity to
historic buildings is fraught with contradiction. When opposing double glazing
for the Hospitium in Museum Gardens, for example, on the grounds that such
materials would be out of keeping with the historic fabric conservationists were
not calling for the electricity supply, the twentieth century toilets, radiators,
telephony etc. to be removed.

Similarly with this application Historic England are not calling for the removal
of electric light fittings or radiators even though these are plainly not in keeping
with the 14" Century monument.

Exempting historic buildings from playing their part in reducing carbon
emissions we will be sunk before we begin.

The York Minster team are showing leadership on this issue.

Historic England have published guidance entitled Energy Efficiency and
Historic Buildings — Solar Electric (Photovoltaics). They are happy to
showcase PV on Gloucester Cathedral but wish to block Solar PV on a minor
building beside York Minster.

APPRAISAL

Key Issues

5.1.

The key issues are as follows:
Principle of Development
Design, character and appearance

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 190

- Impact upon residential amenity
- Landscaping and Ecology

- The impact upon heritage assets.
- Provision of Solar PV Equipment.
- Highways and Access

- Public Benefits

PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT

5.2. The application site is located within York city centre. Within the context of the
2018 DLP the site is outside the defined Primary Shopping Area and is not
designated as a Secondary Shopping Frontage. The site is however designated as
an existing school site, however, as outlined earlier in this report, the school has
now been closed by The Chapter of York.

5.3. Policy SS3 of the 2018 DLP, which can afforded moderate weight given the
stage of preparation of the DLP, focuses on York City Centre. It notes that “York City
Centre is the economic, social and cultural heart of York. It is vital to the character
and future economic success of the wider city. Its special qualities and
distinctiveness will be conserved and enhanced whilst helping to achieve economic
and social aspirations of the Plan.’ It goes on to state that: “York City Centre is
identified as a priority area for a range of employment uses and is fundamental to
delivering the plans economic vision. During the plan period it will be the principal
location in the City of York area for the delivery of economic growth in the tourism,
leisure and cultural sectors.’

5.4. Policy SS3 sets out a series of development types which are considered to be
acceptable in principle within York city centre. One such defined use is Food and
Drink (A3/A4/A5). Under the amended Use Classes Order an A3 (Café/Restaurant)
use would now fall into Class E (Commercial Business and Service) — which is the
use for which planning permission is being sought in this case.

5.5. Policy SS3 also contains are series of principles which will be taken into
account when considering city centre development proposals. These include:

- Conserve and enhance the existing historic character of York City Centre
whilst encouraging contemporary high-quality developments which add to the
sense of place.

- Enhance the quality of the city centre a s a place.

- Create a strong evening economy by diversifying the current functions of the
city centre to provide more for families and older people and encouraging
activities to stay open later into the evening.

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 191

- Provide community and recreational facilities to encourage healthy, active
lifestyles including the provision of green amenity space in the city centre.

5.6. Itis also relevant to consider the provisions of Policy PA1 — Minster Yard and
College Green as contained within the Draft Minster Neighbourhood Plan; the
policies contained within the Draft Neighbourhood Plan can be afforded moderate
weight given the stage of preparation at which the plan is at. The primary focus of
PA1 is upon the delivery of welcome facilities to the Minster and the precinct as a
whole. Within the context of this application PAl(a) and (b) are relevant. PAl(a) on
the project areas map and supporting text states: ‘Former song school building
(former part of the Minster school) restored and converted within change of use to
create a destination refectory for providing refreshment to visitors to the Precinct'.
PA1(b) which covers the open space in front of the Song School building, states
‘New outdoor seating offering visitors and residents a new area within the Precinct
to enjoy the incredible views of the Minster.’

5.7. Policy HW4 of the 2018 DLP states that proposals which fail to protect existing
childcare facilities will be refused unless it can be demonstrated that the provision is
no longer required, no longer viable, or if equivalent replacement facilities can be
provided elsewhere. The proposals would lead to the loss of the existing School use
of the site; although it is noted that this use has already ceased at the site. The
granting of this planning permission would remove the prospect of coming back into
use as a school. Whilst the loss of the school facilities is regrettable it is not
considered the loss of this facility would provide sufficient justification to refuse
planning permission for the proposals, nor is there an overriding requirement to
retain the school use of the site. The school was operated as a public school,
therefore its function, admissions policy and the catchment area it worked within
operated more akin to a business; rather than a state funded school which may
operate to serve a defined geographic catchment or community.

5.8. In summer 2020 the operators (the applicant) determined the school was no
longer viable and took the decision to close the school. At the time it was reported
that pupils would be able to transfer to St Peters School. In this context it could be
argued that equivalent replacement facilities could and have been provided
elsewhere.

5.9. Itis therefore considered that, in principle, subject to all other material matters
being satisfied the proposed development would accord with Policy SS3 and HW4
of the 2018 DLP and with the objectives set out within PA1 of the Minster
Neighbourhood Plan.

DESIGN, CHARACTER AND APPEARANCE
Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 192

5.10. Policy D1 of the 2018 DLP states that development proposals will be
supported where they improve poor existing urban and natural environments,
enhance York’s special qualities and better reveal the significances of the historic
environment.

5.11. Policy A4 of the draft Minster Neighbourhood Plan states that ‘All development
coming forward, will, where relevant, be required to demonstrate design excellence
and is to be inspired by and contribute to the distinctive and historic nature of the
Precinct, to be resilient to climate change and extreme weather events and to
reduce carbon emissions’. Policy A4 then details a series of general objectives
which includes amongst others, minimising the need for new built development by
making use of vacant or underused buildings. Creates a safe, accessible
environment for visitors, residents and the local community and improves the public
realm around the Minster.

5.12. The most notable aspects of the proposed development in terms of the impact
they will have upon the general design, character and appearance of the building
are the landscape re-modelling works and the installation of the external lift shaft to
the left hand side of the building.

5.13. The proposed landscaping works will provide a large area of outside space
which was previously not open to the public. At present whilst the application site
can be seen within the context of the neighbouring Minster there is a degree of
disconnection from one another by virtue of the boundary railings which enclose the
former school building. The proposals would remove a significant section of the
railings and open the space up; allowing people to enjoy the Minster from an
alternative perspective. It has the ability to create a larger amount of accessible
space around the southern side of the Minster which is already one of its more
busier approaches.

5.14. The proposed lift shaft would be located to the left hand side of the building,
extending upwards from an existing flat roof section. Standing immediately adjacent
to the original building before being connected to the first floor via an existing
window opening which would be subject to alterations to accommodate access to
the lift.

5.15. The flat roof section upon which the lift is to be located is itself an extension to
the building which wraps around the rear North East corner of the building. The lift
shaft would visually create an imbalance in the appearance of the building as there
wouldn’t be a similar feature mirrored on the opposite side. The lift shaft is to be clad
with terne coated stainless steel which will be finished in lead colour.

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 193

5.16. Historic England note in their first consultation response that: ‘The proposed
terne-coated steel clad lift shaft on the east side of the of the building will be set
back from the principle elevation and site below the existing ridge. We do not
consider that this will significantly detract from the aesthetic value of the building. It
also offers a way of improving accessibility to the building as a whole without unduly
compromising the internal space.’

5.17. The introduction of the lift shaft will bring a new feature to the external
appearance of the building. However when viewing the building from Deangate the
lift shaft will be seen against the backdrop of the neighbouring buildings to the side
and rear of the application site. This will, to a degree, lessen its visual impact. It is
also considered that given the requirements the lift shaft needs to meet in order to
function; the design, location and scale of it is considered to be as compact as it can
be.

5.18. Overall it is considered that the proposals would provide an enhanced and
accessible space from which the public can experience the Minster precinct. The
proposals would lead to significant visual changes to the site as a whole relative to
its historic use as a school. However it is not considered that these changes would
be considered to give rise to a degree of harm which would be considered to be
unacceptable. As such the proposals would accord with policy D1 of the 2018 DLP
and policy A4 of the Draft Minster Neighbourhood Plan.

IMPACT UPON RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

5.19. Policy ENV2 deals with managing environmental quality. The policy states
that; ‘Development will not be permitted where future occupiers and existing
communities would be subject to significant adverse environmental impacts such as
noise, vibration, odour, fumes/emissions, dust and light pollution without effective
mitigation measures.

5.20. Given the city centre location of the application site there are a number of
differing land uses within the immediate vicinity of the site. Whilst many of these
form part of the wider Minster estate the application site is located toward the
southern extremity of the precinct. As a result there are neighbouring properties
immediately adjacent to the application site which fall outside of the day to day
management of the Minster; these include Holy Trinity Church to the South East and
the residential properties located within Talbot Court situated to the South West.

5.21. The proposals would result in the introduction of a new use to the site. This
use will differ from that of school in terms of its nature and potentially its intensity.
The proposed use, would in principle, as outlined earlier in this report, be considered
to be an appropriate land use within a city centre location. Nonetheless

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 194

consideration must be given to the potential impacts the development may give rise
to and what, if any, measures need to be considered to suitability mitigate those
impacts.

5.22. The proposals will not result in building works which would give rise to either
new or intensified situations of overlooking or overshadowing which would be
detrimental to neighbouring properties. Nor would the proposals give rise to
development which would have an overbearing or oppressive impact upon
neighbouring properties.

5.23. Amongst the objections received concerns have been raised around the hours
the premises will operate, the manner in which the new public space will be
managed and concerns around the likely intensification in the use of the site.

5.24. Amongst the supporting information submitted with the application, the
applicant has outlined their proposed hours of operation as being Monday-Saturday
09:00-23:00hrs and 09:00-22:00hrs on Sundays and Bank Holidays. In addition to
this they have also provided a noise impact assessment and odour control
statement.

5.25. The submitted odour control statement has identified that there is moderate
risk of odours being omitted from the building given the nature of the intended use.
The submitted statement then goes on to recommend the use of primary and
secondary filtration including grease and odour filters and inclusion of an Ozone
treatment plant within the final termination of the extract fan.

5.26. The Councils Public Protection Team have reviewed the submitted information
and have not raised any objections to the proposals. They note that whilst the Noise
Impact Assessment set out a number of options for the design criteria in terms of
recommended maximum noise levels of plant. Public Protection advise that in order
to prevent noise creep due to the introduction of noise sources into the area and to
protect the amenity of nearby residents new equipment’s rated noise levels should
not exceed the background noise level at the nearest residential premises. Based
on the information supplied within the noise report, this would be at NSR1 and would
be a target level of below 42dB (A) at the receptor for daytime and below 31dB (A)
at night time.

5.27. No precise specifications for the plant equipment to be installed has been

provided. In addition to this the applicant has also confirmed that they do not plan on

having any inside or outside events such as weddings or events involving regulated

entertainment, such as loud amplified music or live music. It is noted that any such

use of the premises, due to the historical structure and proximity to residential
Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 195

properties, would likely result in a loss of amenity and potentially a statutory
nuisance to nearby residents. This type of use would therefore require further noise
reports to assess the impact.

5.28. In the interests of suitably managing the potential noise emissions Public
Protection has recommended a series of conditions. These will require the
submission of details of all the machinery, plant and equipment to be installed or
located on the premises. A condition preventing no loud amplified music or
performance of recorded music or live music anywhere on site is also
recommended.

5.29. Amongst the objections received concerns have been raised around the use of
the site outside of its normal business hours for example for activities such as staff
cleaning the premises.

5.30. An hours of use condition restricting the use of the premises to those hours set
out within the application form is also recommended. In interests of mitigating the
risks around noise associated to activities such as deliveries and waste collections
which would generally outside the premises a condition restricting the times within
which deliveries and waste removals can be undertaken is also recommended. This
would restrict such activities to between the hours of 08:00 and 18:00 Monday to
Saturday and 09:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays with no such activities being permitted on
Sundays and Bank Holidays.

5.31. Furthermore, a specific condition relating to the disposal of glass is has also
been recommended. This would restrict the operator from disposing of glass bottles
into external bins at night; outside of the hours of 09:00 and 23:00hrs Monday to
Saturday and 09:00 and 22:00hrs on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

5.32. Public Protection has also requested a condition requiring the submission and
agreement of a noise management scheme to specify the provisions to be made for
the control of noise emanating from the building. In their consultation comments
received they suggest that this information is provided before the development
commences. However this is not considered to be necessary, instead the details will
need to be provided and agreed prior to the building coming into use.

5.33. With regard to the information submitted in relation to odour mitigation. Public
Protection are not satisfied that the report submitted and the proposals contained
within it provide sufficient information as is required by the relevant public protection
guidance with regard to odour control and mitigation. As a result they have
requested a condition to require details of the extraction plant or machinery and any

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 196

filtration system to be installed to be submitted to, and approved in writing prior to its
use in the building.

5.34. As part of the development new and replacement external lighting is proposed
at various points around the building along with the approaches from Deangate. A
lighting layout plan has been provided which indicates the approximate location of
external lighting and the proposed type of light. However at this stage no further
technical details such as intensity or potential light spill are known. On this basis
Public Protection recommend the inclusion of a condition which requires the
submission of a lighting impact assessment prior to the development coming into
first use. This will ensure that any external lighting to be used in the development
does cause adverse impacts to the amenity of the area.

5.35. An hours of construction condition is also recommended. This will ensure that
adequate protection is afforded to nearby residents during the construction works
phase of the development.

5.36. Overall it is considered that whilst the proposals will likely lead to a change in
how the existing site functions and operates and likely lead to an intensification in
the use of the site at new times of the day. The proposals are not considered to give
rise to significant concerns with regard to causing a significant detrimental impact to
the character, setting and residential amenity of the area and neighbouring land
uses. The potential risks that the development presents can be suitably managed
and controlled via the conditions recommended by public protection. As such the
proposals are therefore considered to accord with the provisions of Policy ENV2 of
the 2018 DLP.

LANDSCAPING AND ECOLOGY

5.37. A significant component of the proposed development is the remodelling of
external space. Historically during the site’s use as a school the area immediately to
the front of the school building was utilised as a playground/parking area and
outdoor activities area. This space has included things such as play equipment and
cricket nets; as a result of these uses the site was enclosed by railings along its
boundary with Deangate in order to create a suitable environment for a school to be
operated in.

5.38. The proposals contained within this application will fundamentally change this.

The intention being to create a larger more accessible public space. The area of

hardstanding to the front of the building and extending back toward Deangate will be

re-landscaped to provide areas of outdoor seating to the proposed refectory use.

The existing lawned area to the North West of the site will be retained with the

existing railings rerouted to run perpendicular to Deangate back toward the frontage
Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 197

of the song school building to enclose the lawned area. This resulting space will
then become an open space managed in a similar manner to Dean’s Park at the
opposite side of the Minster where the space is open to public but is managed by
the Minster Police with access restricted outside of daylight hours.

5.39. Policy D2 (iv.) states that development proposals will be encouraged and
supported where they: ‘create opportunities to enhance the public use and
enjoyment of existing and proposed streets and open spaces.

5.40. The landscaping proposals would clearly lead to an enhancement in the
general character and appearance but also the accessibility of the space; a space
which is traditionally being out of bounds for many given the use of the site as a
school. It will provide a new vantage point from which the imposing presence of the
Minster can be experienced.

5.41. The existing approach to the building will also be subject regrading. This will
facilitate the provision of level access into the building and negate the need for
features such as ramps or external lifts.

5.42. The proposed landscaping scheme has been reviewed by the Council’s
Landscape Architect who notes: ‘The landscape strategy shows a considered
design approach to the external realm resulting in a much improved landscape
setting for the Minster school building with an appealing and functional space to the
front; and legibly public access to a significant are of lawn and open space within the
Minster precinct, whilst increasing the visual quality and horticultural interest by such
measures as the kitchen garden and the biodiversity and sensory garden, new
paving, and additional lawn, as well as practical facilities.’

5.43. Concerns have however been raised with regard to the provision of the
parasols to the front of the former school building and the risk that the disrupt the
frontage of the building and views toward it — with it being suggested that they
should at the very least be de-mountable at the end of the day. The applicant
however has stated that this would create other issues concerning the daily removal
and installation of the parasols and also issues around storage when not in use. As
such they have elected to retain them within the scheme — noting within para 6.52 of
their planning statement: ‘3.no large parasols are proposed, abutting the eastern
boundary of the site and a new pergola is proposed within the area that housed the
former play equipment. The size and location of the both having been carefully
considered given its proximity to the facade of the Refectory. It is crucial that shade
and shelter to the external spaces is properly planned for to reduce the possibility for
visual clutter that could arise through any operator using temporary free standing
parasols (which would not require permission), which could have a negative impact
Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 198

on the entrance space and views to the principle elevation of the building. Climbers
to the wall and gazebo can be integrated to soften the impact of the structure and
provide additional noise absorption.

5.44. The landscape officer also suggested that the realigned railings which are to
run perpendicular to the building frontage and enclose the northern flank of the open
space not be set on a stone plinth or dwarf wall. As it would be odds with the
existing curved alignment. It would also create a strong line which would visually
intersect the elevation. The applicant has confirmed their willingness to not use a
block base/plinth for this section of railing. However they do not want to realign the
railing in the interests of preserving as much space as they can within what would
become the lawned area. It would therefore be necessary to condition that final
details of the boundary treatments are submitted to the Local Planning Authority
prior to their use on the site.

5.45. The provision of the pergola and parasols will introduce new features into the
landscape which will, to a degree, have an implication upon how the frontage of the
building is read and viewed. However, weight is given to the fact that the proposal
does allow a more planned approach to the outdoor space — this should negate the
need for any further such features or equipment needing to be installed on an ad-
hoc basis. The pergola would be of a similar shape and mass to the play equipment
that has stood in the approximate location. Historically it has not been uncommon
for vehicles to be parked in the same area for pre-longed periods of time when in
use as a school.

5.46. As part of the information submitted in the support of the application a detailed
planting strategy has been provided. This is considered to be sufficient and in the
event of granting planning permission it would be appropriate to condition that the
planting strategy is implemented no later than the end of the first planting season
following completion of the building works and then retained for a period of at least 5
years. This will allow the landscaping to properly establish itself on site.

5.47. As part of the documents submitted the applicant has provided an Ecological
Impact Assessment. This has noted past evidence of nesting birds on the site. As
such precautions need to be taken in the event of planning permission being
granted. The assessment also highlights a continuing need for the applicant to work
with an ecologist to continually develop and provide appropriate biodiversity
enhancements at the site. It will therefore be necessary to condition the provision of
a biodiversity plan. In addition to this further details are also required with regard to
the lighting design.

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 199

5.48. Overall the proposed landscaping is considered to be acceptable and will
assist with delivering a high quality and accessible public space within the existing
Minster precinct. The proposals are therefore considered to accord with Policy D2 of
the 2018 DLP.

IMPACT UPON HERITAGE ASSETS

5.49. As is set out in earlier sections of this report; the site is located within an area
where there are numerous designated heritage assets and the site itself is also a
designated heritage asset.

5.50. Paragraph 189 of the NPPF states: ‘Heritage assets range from sites and
buildings of local historic value to those of the highest significance, such as World
Heritage Sites which are internationally recognised to be of outstanding universal
value. These assets are an irreplaceable resource, and should be conserved in a
manner appropriate to their significance, so that they can be enjoyed for their
contribution to the quality of life of existing and future generations’.

5.51. Paragraph 195 of the NPPF requires local planning authorities to identify and
assess the particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a
proposal (including development affecting the setting of a heritage asset). They
should take this into account when considering the impact of a proposal on a
heritage asset, to avoid or minimise any conflict between the heritage asset’s
conservation and any aspect of the proposal.

5.52. Paragraph 197 of the NPPF goes on to state: ‘In determining applications,
local planning authorities should take account of:

- The desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets
and putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;

- The positive contribution that conservation of the heritage assets can make to
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and

- The desirability of new development making a positive contribution to the local
character and distinctiveness.

5.53. Paragraph 199 of the NPPF states that when considering the impact of a
proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great
weight should be given to the assets conservation (and the more important the
asset, the greater the weight should be). This is irrespective of whether any potential
harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial harm to its
significance.

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 200

5.54. Paragraph 200 then states that harm to, or loss of, the significance of a
designated heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development
within its setting), should require clear and convincing justification.

5.55. The NPPF makes a distinction between proposals which cause ‘substantial
harm’ to a designated heritage asset (paragraph 201) and those which lead to ‘less
than substantial harm’ (paragraph 202). It does not automatically mean that less
than substantial harm is more acceptable; rather that it means that a different test is
applied. Paragraph 196 states that where a development proposal will lead to less
than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm
should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including, where
appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.

5.56. At present, since the closure of the Minster School back in the summer of
2020, the site has not been in active use. The only access to the building and the
site has been for the purposes of on-going maintenance and management by the
Minster and their appointed contractors. This would be in direct contrast to the active
use of the site as the Minster School which would have seen activity on a near daily
basis — with the outside space being utilised for the purposes of teaching and
recreation at the school.

5.57. The maintenance and upkeep of all the buildings within the Minster precinct is
a continual cycle of projects. Multiple projects are often ongoing in parallel to one
another. The closure of the school in itself brings possible risks to the Listed
Building and the wider conservation area which could be considered to be
detrimental to the wider Minster precinct.

5.58. There is always an inherent risk that if a building is not in active use it can fall
into a state of disrepair. The risk when this occurs to a Listed Building can be a
cause for greater concern given the historic significance and the possible
implications when historic fabric or features are lost. Whilst there is no suggestion
that this would be the case here; or indeed that the building is in any immediate risk.
Were the building to lay vacant for any prolonged period it would ultimately begin to
be increasingly detrimental feature within the Conservation Area and Minster
Precinct; ultimately being of detriment to the character and setting of other listed
buildings and monuments within the vicinity, including the Minster.

5.59. The reality is that the operation of the Minster as a visitor attraction and the

success of that venture is inextricably linked to the on-going upkeep and
maintenance of the precinct and the buildings within it.

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 201

5.60. The York Minster Conservation Management Plan Volume 2 details a series of
iIssues and opportunities for the Minster School building. It notes that following
closure of the school a new use for the building is required; noting that a refectory is
proposed within the daft neighbourhood plan. The Conservation Management Plan
states that this could be of substantial public benefit, increasing the amount of
publicly accessible green space, provide public access to the building and enable
the public to enjoy the superb views of the Minster.

5.61. The management plan also highlights that whilst the inserted floors are not
original and effect the form and function of the original full height volumes of the
building. The inserted floors have a vital function to play in the use and life of the
building, providing important accommodation which will be critical to viability. The
rooms are also highlighted as providing important views of the Minster. The
management plan goes on to state that accessibility for all these floors will need to
be provided.

5.62. With regard to the grounds. The management plan outlines the need to reduce
the amount of hardstanding and the historic axial arrangement reinstated. Stating
that careful consideration should also be given to the final arrangement of the
grounds and their boundary treatment — in order to create an exceptional public
realm in this part of Minster Yard that enhances the setting of the cathedral and
provide significant benefits for residents and visitors alike.

5.63. Referring back to paragraph 195 of the NPPF. It is necessary to identify the
heritage assets which may be affected by the proposals. In this particular case the
heritage assets which may, most likely, be affected by the proposals are; the
Minster Precinct (scheduled monument), the Minster Song School building (Grade Il
Listed) and Central Historic Core Conservation Area (which, along with the Minster
Precinct, provide the general public realm and environs to the Minster and the
former School).

5.64. The Minster Precinct would be considered as being of exceptional evidential
and historic significance. Views toward the Minster would also be considered to be
of exceptional significance. Overall the significance of the Minster Precinct would be
considered to be exceptional due to its evidential, historical and aesthetic values,
particularly its near views towards the Minster. However some aesthetic treatments
of public spaces and Deangate could be considered detracting.

5.65. The Minster School building itself (Grade Il Listed) would be considered to be

of exceptional evidential significance. However overall the building would be

considered to be of some significance due to its evidential, historical and associative

values, although the aesthetic value of its view of the Minster is considered
Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 202

exceptional. Many of the internal interventions in the twentieth century are
considered detracting, as is its current lack of use.

5.66. The Central Historic Core Conservation Area and the general environs of the
applications are considered, overall, to be high due to its evidential, historical, and
associative values of its views of the Minster. However the current aesthetic
treatment of the area is considered to be detracting.

5.67. As part of the submitted details the applicant has provided a Heritage Impact
Assessment which covers the various elements of the proposals and rates the
impact these will have upon the listed building and wider conservation area.

5.68. The HIA highlights that the proposed landscaping works will have a moderate
positive impact upon the approach from Deangate as a result of opening the space
up. The landscaping within the curtilage of the site, creation of the sensory garden
and kitchen garden are regarded as being High Positive. These elements will see
the removal of the existing car park to the front of the school whilst the landscaping
and garden elements bring the potential for biodiversity gains.

5.69. The proposed patio area and parasols are regarded as being of minor
detrimental harm. It is acknowledged that these elements will create fixed features
immediately within the foreground of the building and its frontage. They may also,
from certain points impede some views of the Minster. There is also the risk, given
the need for ground fixings, that some archaeological disturbance could occur.
However the applicant justifies on the basis that these elements will instead allow for
the creation of a more planned landscape; which will negate the need for more ad-
hoc or temporary fixtures which in themselves could cause harm. They also note
that the outdoor space will be of importance, particularly during the summer months,
allowing people to enjoy the Minster.

5.70. The creation of the gazebo area has been rated as having a moderate positive
impact. This is due to it removing the current poor landscaping features including the
dated play equipment, with enhanced landscape elements for public benefit.

5.71. The provision of the passenger lift and the required external lift shaft have
been assessed as being of Minor-Moderate Detrimental. The applicant justifies this
harm on the basis that inclusive access is a key objective of the Precinct
Neighbourhood Plan. The negative impacts are acknowledged as being the lift rising
above the single storey element, creating a modest visual impact with a narrow line
of sight. However the location of the lift outside of the original plan form of the
building is considered to be the least harmful option. The placement minimises
negative visual intrusion on the key spaces and enables space within the building to
Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 203

be optimised. There will also be mitigation by design and detail; with the lift being
clad as a neutral element.

5.72. Various alterations are proposed at first floor, including the provision of
ancillary facilities such as toilets. This will require the sub-division of the central
upper room. This is acknowledged as having a minor detrimental impact. However
any public use of the building must have the required spaces and facilities both for
customers and staff to allow it to function. The space is currently sub-divided as a
classroom. However the proposals would allow for the partition walls to be better
designed specifically to better reveal the roof trusses and exterior windows. They
would also allow for the opening up of two interior blocked windows. The relocation
of the toilets to the first floor is also considered by the applicant, to enhance higher
status ground floor spaces.

5.73. Considering the heritage assets identified earlier in this report. It is concluded
that the level of harm which would be caused would be ‘less than substantial’ and be
considered to be at the low to moderate end of the scale. However it is noted that in
their consultation comments the Conservation Architect has concluded that in their
view, the harm would be less than substantial but toward the very upper end of the
scale.

5.74. The proposals, by their very nature, will result in changes and alterations being
made to the existing building. It is also noted that some the works to date at the
building during its use as a school have in some instances being unsympathetic.
However, at present the building is not in active use and occupies a prominent
position within the precinct — contributing to the overall setting of the precinct and
the Minster; . It is acknowledged some aspects of the proposals will give rise to
varying degrees of harm. However this is balanced against the opportunity to bring
the building back into a viable use, facilitate a significant enhancement to the public
realm and public space immediately around the building; whilst also delivering
specified objectives and aspirations as set out within the draft Minster
Neighbourhood Plan. All of which would be considered to make a positive
contribution to the precinct. The proposals would therefore accord with Policy D5 of
the 2018 DLP and Policy C1 of the Draft Minster Neighbourhood Plan.

PROVISION OF SOLAR PV EQUIPTMENT

5.75. One component of the proposed development is the provision of Solar
Photovoltaic (Solar PV) equipment on the roof of the existing building. Policy CC1 of
the 2018 DLP seeks to promote the use and incorporation into development of
Renewable and Low Carbon Energy Generation and Storage.

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 204

5.76. Paragraph 158 of the NPPF states: ‘When determining planning applications
for renewable and low carbon development, local planning authorities should:

a) Not require applicants to demonstrate the overall need for renewable or low
carbon energy, and recognise that even small-scale projects provide a
valuable contribution to cutting greenhouse gas emissions; and

b) Approve the application if its impacts are (or can be made) acceptable. Once
suitable areas for renewable and low carbon energy have been identified in
plans, local planning authorities should expect subsequent applications for
commercial scale projects outside of these areas to demonstrate that the
proposed location meets the criteria used in identifying suitable areas.’

5.77. The Draft Minster Neighbourhood Plan also places an emphasis upon the
promotion of sustainable development which within an environmental context seeks
to reduce the carbon footprint of the precinct over the plan period. Amongst the
information submitted the applicant has made it explicitly clear that they believe,
given their role within the city, lead by example and that they have a moral duty play
their part in tackling climate change.

5.78. The threat posed by climate change is not diminishing. The Council itself
declared a Climate Emergency in 2019. Decarbonisation cannot be achieved solely
by new build development utilising energy efficiency and measures to decarbonise.
There is an important role to be played by existing buildings through measures such
as improving existing built fabric and efficiency and also the retrofitting of measures
to buildings.

5.79. However, the issue that is then presented is the nature of competing
legislative and regulatory frameworks and policies. These are often seeking to
achieve completely opposed objectives which can be wholly incompatible with one
another. In this case the applicant is proposing the provision of Solar PV equipment
which it is stated would be expected to provide a 15% reduction in carbon. However
such measures can, dependent upon their finer detail and execution, be
diametrically opposed to the more protectionist policies and legislation which relate
to heritage assets such as Conservation Areas, Listed Buildings and Scheduled
Monuments.

5.80. This can create a very delicate situation where, if possible, these competing
objectives have to be in some way balanced. However the ability to do this will be
extremely dependant upon the subject site and/building. There cannot and is not a
one size fits all solution. There are a host of considerations which must be weighed
together, not just the potential to decarbonise. The potential for harm to be caused
to heritage assets must be considered along with the nature and extent of any harm
which may be caused. Retrofitting will not suit all scenarios as the host building has
to be capable of accommodating retrofitted equipment. Advancements in
Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 205

technologies will always create a fluidity to this situation, in that as new products and
solutions are developed they may become an increasing number of suitable
solutions for use in historically sensitive settings.

5.81. Amongst the various consultation responses and comments received the
matter of the proposed Solar PV equipment has been raised both in support and
objection to the proposals, including an objection from Historic England.

5.82. In their consultation comments English Heritage state: ‘We do not support the
addition of solar panels on the principal west and east elevations of the listed
building. As a non-traditional material this would not be in keeping with the historic
character of the highly significant elevations. As a landmark building in the
conservation area, with a visible roofscape, the appearance of the building from a
distance is very important. The justification is lacking as there are likely to be more
appropriate, less visible and more discreet locations for solar panels within the
Minsters estate, avoiding the harmful impact on the significance of the listed
building.’

5.83. Since these comments were received the applicant has explored alternatives.
When originally submitted the proposed PV panels were proposed as being a
cassette type unit which whilst they would have been integrated into the roof they
would have nonetheless led to a very visible intervention in the roof plane of the
building.

5.84. However the applicant is now proposing the use of Solar Slates on the roof,
instead of an integrated cassette type solution. The Solar Slates are based upon a
traditional welsh roof slate in terms of their dimensions, colour and general
appearance. The only notable difference in their appearance is that the exterior face
of the slate has the appearance of being sealed with a polymer type coating — akin
to a varnish. It is this coating which provides the generating capability.

5.85. The applicant has suggested two potential approaches. One would be to use
the Solar Slates but retain a section of the Westmorland Slate on the rear elevation
and here install the integrated cassette type PV panel as they had originally
proposed. The alternative option would be to use the Solar Slates throughout the
entirety of the roof with the exception of an outer boarder which is required to house
the solar slates.

5.86. Both options would, as the original proposals would have done, result in harm
being caused to the roof of the building. The assessment that must be made is
whether the extent of the harm that would be caused and the possible benefits, if
any, from that harm can be balanced.

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 206

5.87. The proposed use of Solar Slates would allow for the visual appearance of a
slated roof to be maintained on the building; removing the issue of an obvious non-
traditional intervention which would result from the previously proposed integrated
cassette type panels. The slates also have a similar operational lifespan of
approximately 25 years; which is comparable with other Solar PV solutions.

5.88. There are some drawbacks to the use of Solar Slates. They cannot be used to
slate the full extent of the existing roof planes. An outer boarder of traditional slates
has to be maintained to enclose the PV system. This in turn has the potential to
create a visual differential between the traditional slates and solar slates — however
in example images this not considered to be significantly discernible. Furthermore
the Solar Slates are based upon a traditional Welsh slate which are typically grey
with blue tones. In contrast much of the slate typically used within the minster
precinct is Westmorland; which whilst still being grey typically contains more green
tones. Therefore there is the risk that this aspects of the proposals would introduce
an potentially alien detail. This could cause a notable visual impact given the
general prominence of the building and its proximity to other slated roofs.

5.89. The assessment that therefore needs to be made is whether these drawbacks
would be of such a scale or extent that would amount to substantial harm being
caused to the heritage asset of the host Grade Il Listed Building but also to the
wider Conservation Area and the character and setting of the Minster precinct.

5.90. With regard to the two potential approaches the applicant could adopt in terms
of the extent of the use of the Solar Slate. In any event the building needs to be re-
roofed, therefore the existing roof as it sits on site today will be subject to works. The
approach whereby solar slates are used with a section of Westmorland being
retained at rear, over which integrated cassette type PV panels would be installed
would allow for, a part, of what would likely constitute the original roof to be retained.
However this retained element would ultimately be obscured via the installation of
the solar PV cassettes. In addition to this it would create a scenario where there are
three differing roof coverings across the building. The alternative to use solar slates
throughout would create a more consistent visual finish to the roof and would be
achieved using a more rationalised palette of materials.

5.91. The visual differential between the Solar Slates and the traditional slates which
would enclose the system is not considered to be unduly excessive to a point that
would be considered harmful to the visual amenity, character and setting of the built
environment. The impact of this would also dimmish further in long range and distant
views of the building. Visually therefore this should allow for the appearance of an

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 207

unaltered slate roof to be maintained — whilst also bringing about the advantages of
introducing Solar PV equipment into the precinct.

5.92. Within the submitted Heritage Impact Assessment the installation of the Solar
PV has been rated as Low Positive. The justification being that the building needs to
respond to the climate emergency. A response which it could be argued brings
about a public benefit; as decarbonisation should, generally, be of benefit to society
as a whole.

5.93. In addition to the above the applicant is also intending to use more passive
efficiency measures. These include the use of A and A+ rated materials where
possible; and simpler measures such as the appropriate control of energy usage
within the building, including the use of water through appropriate lighting design
and the specification of equipment to be installed within the development.

5.94. On balance it is considered that whilst this aspect of the proposals would
result in less than substantial harm, albeit toward a moderate level within the scale,
being caused to the listed building and the wider setting of the conservation area; by
virtue of the loss of the Westmorland slate roof. The proposals would allow for the
provision of low carbon technology within the precinct — a matter which is of high
priority to the applicant, in a manner which would be considered to be as discreet as
it can be (owing to the particular solution being proposed) whilst still maintaining the
external appearance of retaining a slate roof; albeit a subtly different slate. The
proposals would provide a modest contribution towards allowing the building to be
operated in an energy efficient manner. In this regard the proposals would be
considered to accord with the provisions of Policy CC1.

HIGHWAYS AND ACCESS

5.95. Policy T1 of the 2018 DLP deals with Sustainable Access. Policy T1 states
that ‘Development will be supported where it minimises the need to travel and
provides safe, suitable and attractive access for all transport users to and within it,
including those with impaired mobility, such that it maximises the use of more
sustainable modes of transport'.

5.96. Policy T1 goes on to state that, amongst others, development proposals will
be required to demonstrate:

- There is safe access and appropriate access to the adjacent adopted highway.

- There are safe and appropriate links to local services and facilities.

- The provide suitable access, permeability and circulation for a range of
transport modes.

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 208

- They create a safe and secure layout for motorised vehicles (including public
transport vehicles), cyclists, pedestrians that minimise conflict.

- They provide sufficient, convenient, secure and covered cycle storage, ideally
within the curtilage of new buildings.

- New roads or accesses through development restrict access for, or otherwise
discourage general motor traffic.

5.97. Paragraph 111 of the NPPF states that ‘Development should only be
prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable
impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network
would be severe.’

5.98. The application site is located within the city centre. As such the site is
considered to be highly accessible via a range of transport modes including public
transport. The primary access to the site is taken from Deangate and this would be
maintained in the event of the proposals contained within this application being
implemented. The site is located outside of the defined Footstreets area; however
the site is adjacent to the Footstreets area which commences immediately to the
North West of the site at the gateposts which demarcate entry into Minster Yard.

5.99. The proposals would not provide any motor vehicle parking within the site.
However given the city centre location and the availability of both public and private
car parking facilities around the city centre this is not considered to be an issue.
Monk Bar Car Park is a 5 minute walk from the application site. Informal blue badge
parking does occur already along Deangate and this is subject to separate
discussions with the Highway Authority.

5.100. The applicant does not propose to use the access from Deangate for
service and delivery vehicles. Deliveries will be via a new entrance at the rear of the
building which is serviced by an existing alleyway which leads to Goodramgate.
Refuse and recycling will be stored within an area to the North East corner of the
site with Deangate providing suitable access for this to take place which replicates
the existing situation at the site.

5.101. As part of the proposals a total of 22.no cycle parking spaces are to be
provided at the site via the installation of 11.no Sheffield type stands. A bike repair
stand is also proposed.

5.102. The 2005 Draft Local Plan, Appendix E provides a set of Car and Cycle

Parking standards which developments would be expected to accord with. The

proposed use of Class E for which planning permission is being sought is not

explicitly covered within the parking standards; as the standards are worked out to
Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 209

the recently amended use classes order. However the A3 Food and Drink standard
Is considered to be the most appropriate. Within York City Centre area a
requirement of 1 space per 10m? of customer floor space is required.

5.108. Highways have reviewed the submitted information and have raised a
series of queries.

5.104. The boundary as the application site directly adjoins the adopted
highway along its North Western boundary. Works here such as the alterations to
the railings and provision of the new gate opening will result in works which will need
to be appropriately tied into the extent of the adopted highway. As a result the
applicant will need to take great care at these locations to ensure no damage is
caused to the adopted footway.

5.105. Clarification has been sought on whether the turning head at the West of
Deangate, adjacent to No.1 is to be retained or whether this would be subsumed
into the proposed landscaping. The area of land in question is outside of the red line
for the planning application and therefore does not form part of these proposals.

5.106. Concern has been raised as to the proposed surfacing materials to be
used on the main central spine and the use of resin bound gravel within the site; as
highways are aware of such surfaces failing prematurely, and they advise that they
should not be used in public spaces. The applicant has been made aware of these
concerns, but in any event these spaces are not to be adopted by the Highway
Authority and as such any liability for their failure would lie with the applicant. The
applicant is aware of this situation and wishes to retain the surfacing as is proposed.

5.107. Highways have also advised that they consider there to be an under
provision of cycle parking within the proposals. They have calculated that 40.no
spaces are required. This is based on assuming the customer area is 80% of the
499m? that is subject to the change of use as specified within the application form.

5.108. The applicant has advised that the premises would provide a gross
internal customer area of 337m?2. This would equate to a cycle parking requirement
of 34 spaces. The guidance goes on to state that in the case of cycle parking
standards where the number of spaces per employee is not specified under that
particular use class, the Council will negotiate with the applicant for a target of 25%
of the required cycle parking provision to be covered and secure. The stands to the
front would provide a total of 22.no space which would be accessible to visitors. The
applicant states a further 8.no covered spaces would be provided for staff to the rear
of the building accessed via the alleyway from Goodramgate; which would equate to
a total of 30.no. The 8.no covered spaces to the rear would equate to 23.5%
Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 210

provision of covered cycle parking; which would be marginally shy of the 25% target
set out within the parking standard.

5.109. No details regarding the proposed staff cycle parking have been
provided. Therefore it would be necessary to condition the submission of details for
approval by the Local Planning Authority prior to development commencing.

5.110. Appendix E to the 2005 Draft Local Plan also includes a set of criteria for
parking standard flexibility. The standard states; ‘The car parking standards stated
are maximum. In addition, each development proposals assessed downward
according to site conditions, using the maximum standard as a starting point. This
will allow for variations, depending on the individual characteristics of each site. The
criteria for assessment will include:

- The built environment

- On street parking capacity

- Access and amenity implications for other residents
- Road width

- Traffic levels

- Type of development proposed

- Accessibility to York City Centre by foot or bicycle

- Level of public transport provision

5.111. The proposals would result in an under provision of cycle parking spaces
when applying the standards set out within Appendix E of the 2005 Draft Local Plan,
a by a total of 4.no spaces. The assessment that therefore has to be made is
whether this under provision would give rise to a situation whereby it would be
warranted to refuse planning permission on such grounds.

5.112. The proposals would result in a broadening of the facilities and visitor
offer provided by the Minster. The proposals are of a nature which means they may
lead to visitors increasing the amount of time they spend within the precinct, given
the broader offer of facilities. However it is unlikely that the refectory itself would
become a standalone destination. Therefore the proposals may not materially
increase the amount of visitors in the area. In addition to this the Minster currently
does not provide any sort of visitor parking facilities either for motor vehicles or
cycles. Instead existing public facilities are relied upon. The Minster themselves
actively advertise that there is no parking at the cathedral, instead directing people
to consider using one of the six Park and Ride facilities.

5.113. Many of the visitors to the Minster precinct will likely be on foot. Either
because of staying in city centre accommodation, or as a result of simply being in
Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 211

the city centre already, either arriving in the city by train or having parked at either
public car park, Park and Ride site or publicly available cycle parking. There are
existing cycle parking facilities in close proximity to the application site. These are
situated on Denagate and College Street/Goodramgate. There are also facilities on
Petergate.

5.114. The provision of the 30.no spaces within this application would be an
enhancement to the existing situation. Increasing the provision of cycle parking
facilities within the city centre and immediately adjacent to a designated cycle route.
It is acknowledged that the cycle parking provision to the front of the building would
not be covered. However there are additional factors to be mindful of in this case.
The provision of covered cycle parking to the front would require the addition of
further built structures and forms into what is a sensitive setting. As such the
provision of uncovered cycle parking is considered acceptable in this situation.

5.115. Whilst it is acknowledged that the proposals would provide an under
provision of cycle parking. It is not considered, for the reasons outlined above, that
this in itself would warrant the refusal of planning permission on such grounds.

5.116. The proposals would also provide an easily accessible public space as a
result of the proposals to create step free access into the building and the site as a
whole.

5.117. In addition to the condition requiring details of the cycle parking to be
provided. Highways have also requested that a condition be included which requires
the proposed parking arrangements to be provided prior to the development being
brought into first use. They have also requested informatives highlighting the need
for highways agreements to execute elements of the development which are in
close proximity to and tie into the adopted highway; and for the need for the
developer to be mindful of the potential presence of utilities.

5.118. Overall it is considered that the proposals would allow for a safe and
sustainable access to be provided. The proposals would not give rise to a significant
increase in the overall amount of traffic in the area. The proposals are therefore
considered to accord with Policy T1.

PUBLIC BENEFITS

5.119. As the above report sets out. The proposed development will result in

less than substantial harm being caused to the character and setting of the Listed

Building, the Conservation Area and therefore the Minster Precinct. This less than

substantial harm is considered to be toward the moderate-low end of the scale.

Referring back to paragraph 202 of the NPPF which states that where a
Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 212

development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a
designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits
of the proposal including, securing its optimum viable use.

5.120. As part of their submission the applicants have set out what they
consider to be the public benefits that the proposals would bring about:

- The site will be opened up to the precint, enabling it to be read as part of it,
and reinforced by the fact that the surface treatments between it and
Deangate will be complementary;

- The inappropriate parking of cars so close to the Minster will cease;

- The formation of an axial approach will increase the prominence of the
frontage and the presence of the existing listed building and thus enhance its
significance;

- This ‘opening up’ of the site to the Precinct, and accompanying realignment of
railings, will mean the exceptional views to and from the Minster will become
uninterrupted and enjoyed by many more people;

- The perceptible amount, and actual area of greenspace along Deangate will
increase;

- A new and safe community green space will be created within the site, with
public access not currently afforded.

- An accessible, equitable outdoor facility will be created;

- There will be level step free access to the front of the building;

- Biodiversity and planting will be increased;

- Wayfinding and interpretation will be provided enhancing access and
understanding of the setting and heritage;

- There will be more shelter which will encourage use and access throughout
the year.

5.121. The proposals bring back into use a building which is currently laying
dormant. Whilst it has been dormant for a relatively short period of time there is
currently an opportunity to bring it back into use; thus, avoiding any unnecessary
deterioration to the building. It is clear that applicant has no intention of re-
establishing an educational or school setting within the site. This prompt return to
use will ensure that any wider harms to the Minster, precinct and the Conservation
Area are avoided.

5.122. The proposed use of the building will also mean that it becomes more
accessible to the public. Firstly in the sense of being open to the public, allowing
them to experience the building — which was generally unavailable in its former use
as a school; but also in the sense that level step free access will be provided.

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 213

5.123. The formation of a large publicly accessible space in this area of the
precinct will also bring significant public benefits. The space will be available to all
and allow people to experience the Minster from a previously unavailable vantage
point. Consideration should also be given to what the alternatives for the site could
be and what form they would take. The formation of a public space and enhanced
visitor facilities in this location are considered to be the most appropriate.

5.124. The inclusion of the solar PV equipment in itself may not necessarily
amount to a direct public benefit. However, what they should deliver, which are
measures which seek to decarbonise the existing built environment generally will be
of public benefit to society as a whole.

5.125. Overall it is considered that the proposals will facilitate a range of public
benefits which are considered to sufficiently outweigh the less than substantial harm
that may be caused.

6.0. CONCLUSION

6.1. Regard is had to the advice in Paragraph 199 of the NPPF that when
considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a
designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation
(and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be) and to the
legislative requirements to give considerable importance and weight to harm to a
listed building and conservation area. The public benefits of the proposal are
summarised at paragraphs 5.119 to 5.125 above. Whilst it is acknowledged that
elements of the proposed development will give rise to varying degress of harm to
the listed building, Minster Precinct and Conservation Area. It is on balance
considered that these less than substantial harms would be outweighed by the
public benefits the proposals would bring about even when giving great weight to the
conservation of these assets. The proposals would deliver a very clear objective of
the draft Minster Neighbourhood Plan whilst also bringing a currently dormant
building back into meaningful use. The proposals would also facilitate the provision
of what could become an important publicly accessible space within the precinct.
There are elements which need to be managed to ensure that the proposals do not
adversely harm the residential amenity of the area. However it is considered that
these can be suitably dealt with via the range of conditions recommended within this
report and as set out below.

6.2. Overall the proposals are considered to accord with the relevant policies
contained within the 2018 DLP, the Draft Minster Neighbourhood Plan and National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). It is therefore recommended that permission be
granted subject to the conditions outlined below.

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 214

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve

1 TIME2 Development start within three years

2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans:-

Roof Plan As Proposed: Drawing No. (GA)200 Rev 2.02

Section A-A and Section B-B, Proposed Entrance Door Detail: Drawing No. (GA)300
Rev 2.02

West Elevation (Main) As Proposed: Drawing No. (GA)400 Rev 2.03

East Elevation (Church Yard) As Proposed: Drawing No. (GA)401 Rev 2.02

North Elevation/Section (Facing Stoneyard) As Proposed: Drawing No. (GA)402
Rev 2.02

lllustrative Landscape General Arrangement: Drawing No. 0876-RFM-XX-00-DR-L-
0001 Rev PLO2

lllustrative Landscape Sections: Drawing No. 0876-RFM-XX-00-DR-L-0002 Rev
PLO2

Planting Strategy: Drawing No. 0876-RFM-XX-00-DR-L-0004 Rev PL02

Pergola Details: Drawing No. 0876-RFM-XX-00-DR-L-8001 Rev PLO1

West (Main) Elevations Demolitions/Strip Out: Drawing No. (DM)400 Rev 2.01
Ground Floor Plan Demolitions and Strip Out: Drawing No. (DM)100 Rev 2.01
Ground Floor Reflected Ceiling Plan Demolitions/Strip Out: Drawing No. (DM)100.1
Rev 2.01

First Floor Plan Demolitions/Strip Out: Drawing No. (DM)101 Rev 2.01

First Floor Refelcted Ceiling Plan Demolitions/Strip Out: Drawing No. (DM)101.1
Rev 2.01

Roof Plan Demolitions/Strip Out: Drawing No. (DM)200 Rev 2.01

East (Church Yard) Elevation Demolitions/Strip Out: Drawing No. (DM)401 Rev 2.01
New Service Door DG30 West Elevation: Drawing No. (DR)01 Rev 2.00

Lift Door Surrounds: Drawing No. (DR)02 Rev 2.00

New Door Accessible Toilet - Ground Floor: Drawing No. (DR) 03 Rev 2.00

Ground Floor Plan As Proposed (Shell and Core): Drawing No. (GA)100 Rev 2.02
First Floor Plan As Proposed: Drawing No. (GA)101 Rev 2.01

Roof Build Up Typical As Existing and Proposed Details: Drawing No. (SK)101 Rev
4.01

Roof 1 - Roof Layout 500X250 PV Slate: Drawing No. E05613

Roof 2 - Roof Layout 500X250 PV Slate: Drawing No. E05613

Roof 3 - Roof Layout 500X250 PV Slate: Drawing No. E05613

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 215

3  Prior to the development commencing, other than the works to the roof, details
of the cycle parking areas, including means of enclosure, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The building shall not be
occupied until the cycle parking areas and means of enclosure have been provided
within the site in accordance with such approved details, and these areas shall not
be used for any purpose other than the parking of cycles.

Reason: To promote use of cycles thereby reducing congestion on the adjacent
roads and in the interests of the amenity of neighbours.

4 HWAY19 Car and cycle parking laid out

5 A programme of post-determination archaeological mitigation, specifically an
archaeological watching brief (and excavation if necessary) is required on this site.
The archaeological scheme comprises 3 stages of work. Each stage shall be
completed and agreed by the Local Planning Authority before it can be approved.

A) No development shall take place until a written scheme of investigation (WSI) has
been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing. For land
that is included within the WSI, no development shall take place other than in
accordance with the agreed WSI. The WSI should conform to standards set by LPA
and the Chartered Institute for Archaeologists.

B) The site investigation and post investigation assessment shall be completed in
accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation
approved under condition (A) and the provision made for analysis, publication and
dissemination of results and archive deposition will be secured. This part of the
condition shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in
accordance with the programme set out in the WSI.

C) A copy of a report (and evidence of publication if required) shall be deposited
with City of York Historic Environment Record to allow public dissemination of
results 2 months of completion or such other period as may be agreed in writing with
the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: The site lies within an Area of Archaeological Importance and the
development may affect important archaeological deposits which must be recorded
prior to destruction.

6  External renovation works and vegetation clearance shall not take place
between 1st March and 31st August inclusive, unless a competent ecologist has
undertaken a careful, detailed check of suitable nesting habitat for active birds' nests
immediately before such works and provided written confirmation that no birds will
be harmed and/or that there are appropriate measures in place to protect nesting

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 216

bird interest on site. Any such written confirmation should be submitted to the local
planning authority.

Reason: To ensure that breeding birds are protected from harm during construction.
All British birds, their nests and eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are protected
by Section 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended.

7 A Dbiodiversity enhancement plan/drawing shall be submitted to, and be
approved in writing by, the local planning authority prior to the commencement of
landscaping works. The plan should include a minimum of two bat box, suitable for
crevice dwelling species and two boxes for nesting birds. The approved biodiversity
enhancement plan/drawing shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details and thereafter so retained.

Reason: To take account of and enhance the biodiversity and wildlife interest of the
area, and to be in accordance with Paragraph 174 d) of the NPPF (2021) to
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by minimising impacts
on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing coherent
ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future pressures.

8  Prior to the installation of any new external lighting, a 'lighting design plan’
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
The plan shall:

Specify lighting made in-line with current guidance - Bat Conservation Trust (2018)
Bats and artificial lighting in the UK.
https://cdn.bats.org.uk/pdf/Resources/ilp-guidance-note-8-bats-and-artificiallighting-
compressed.pdf?mtime=20181113114229&focal=none

and;

Show how and where external lighting will be installed (through the provision of
appropriate lighting contour plans and technical specifications) so that it can be
clearly demonstrated that areas to be lit will not disturb or prevent bats roosting or
using foraging for food.

The lighting design plan shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details and thereafter so retained.

Reason: To maintain the favourable conservation status of bats.

9 Details of all machinery, plant and equipment to be installed in or located on
the premises, which is audible outside of the premises, shall be submitted to the
local planning authority for approval. These details shall include average sound
levels (LAeq), octave band noise levels and any proposed noise mitigation
measures. The machinery, plant or equipment and any approved noise mitigation
measures shall be fully implemented and operational before the proposed use first
opens and shall so retained and appropriately maintained thereatfter.

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 217

Note: The combined rating level of any building service noise associated with plant
or equipment at the site should not exceed the representative LA90 1 hour during
the hours of 07:00 to 23:00 or representative LA90 15 minutes during the hours of
23:00 to 07:00 at 1 metre from the nearest noise sensitive facades when assessed
in accordance with BS4142: 2014+ Al 2019, inclusive of any acoustic feature
corrections associated with tonal, impulsive, distinctive or intermittent
characteristics.

Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby properties and the environmental qualities
of the area.

10 There shall be no loud amplified music or performance of recorded music or
live music anywhere on site.

Reason: To protect the amenity of occupants of the nearby properties from noise

11 The premises shall only be open to the public between the following times:
Monday- Saturday 09:00 hours - 23:00 hours

Sundays and Bank Holidays 09:00 hours - 22:00 hours

Reason: To protect the amenity of occupants of the nearby properties from noise

12 Once the use, approved by this permission has commenced, delivery vehicles
and waste removal vehicles to the development shall be confined to the following
hours:

Monday to Friday 08:00 to 18:00 hours

Saturday 09:00 to 13:00 hours and not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays
Reason: To protect the amenity of occupants of the nearby properties from noise.

13 Bottles shall only be disposed of into external bins between 09:00hrs and
23:00hrs Monday - Saturday and between 09:00hrs and 22:00hrs Sundays and
bank holidays.

Reason: To protect the amenity of occupants of the nearby properties from noise

14  Prior to the development coming into first use, a written noise management
scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Thereafter the approved scheme shall be implemented and shall be retained
thereafter. The noise management scheme shall specify the provisions to be made
for the control of noise emanating from the site. The scheme should in particular,
address noise from customers indoors and in the outside areas. The scheme shall
be approved in writing by the local planning authority prior to the opening of the use
hereby permitted and once approved implemented and adhered to.

Reason: To protect the amenity of occupants of the nearby properties from noise

15 There shall be adequate facilities for the treatment and extraction of cooking
Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 218

odours. Details of the extraction plant or machinery and any filtration system
required shall be submitted to the local planning authority for written approval. Once
approved it shall be installed and fully operational before the proposed use first
opens and shall be reatained and appropriately maintained and serviced thereafter
in accordance with manufacturer guidelines.

Note: It is recommended that the applicant refers to the updated Guidance produced
by EMAQ in September 2018 titled "Control of Odour and Noise from Commercial
Kitchen Exhaust Systems (September 2018)" for further advice on how to comply
with this condition. The applicant shall provide information on the location and level
of the proposed extraction discharge, the proximity of receptors, size of kitchen or
number of covers, and the types of food proposed. A risk assessment in accordance
with APPENDIX 3 of the EMAQ guidance shall then be undertaken to determine the
level of odour control required. Details should then be provided on the location and
size/capacity of any proposed methods of odour control, such as filters, electrostatic
precipitation, carbon filters, ultraviolet light/ozone treatment, or odour neutraliser,
and include details on the predicted air flow rates in m3/s throughout the extraction
system.

Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby properties and the environmental qualities
of the area.

16 A full Lighting Impact Assessment undertaken by an independent assessor
detailing predicted light levels at neighbouring residential properties including a
description of the proposed lighting, a plan showing vertical illuminance levels (Ev)
and all buildings within 100 metres of the edge of the site boundary shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
external lighting coming into first use. Once approved the details shall be
implemented in full as approved and thereafter so retained and maintained. Artificial
lighting to the development must conform to requirements to meet the Obtrusive
Light Limitations for Exterior Lighting Installations for Environmental Zone E4
contained within the table taken from the Institute of Light Professionals Guidance
Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Lighting.

Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby properties and the environmental qualities
of the area

17 Except in case of emergency no demolition and construction works or ancillary
operations, including deliveries to and dispatch from the site which are audible
beyond the boundary of the site shall take place on site other than between the
hours of 08:00-18:00 Monday to Friday and between 09:00-13:00 on Saturdays. The
Local Planning Authority shall be notified at the earliest opportunity of the
occurrence of any such emergency and a schedule of essential work shall be
provided.

Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents

18 Notwithstanding the details submitted or those contained within any of the
Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 219

specified approved plans, prior to their installation on site details of the boundary
treatments to be used to enclose the lawned area shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Once approved the details shall
be implemented in full prior to the lawned area opening for public use and thereafter
maintained.

Reason: In the interests of securing high quality landscaping scheme which is in
keeping with the character and significance of the building.

19 The landscaping and planting as shown on approved drawings:

Planting Strategy - Drawing No. 0876-RFM-XX-00-DR-L-0004 Rev PLO02 and;
lllustrative Landscape General Arrangement Plan Drawing No. 0876-RFM-XX-00-
DR-L-0001 Rev PLO2 shall be implemented within a period of six months of the
completion of development. Any trees or plants which within a period of five years
from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a
similar size and species, unless alternatives are agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and biodiversity, and to compensate for
vegetation lost to facilitate the development and provide adequate time for the
landscaping to establish itself on the site.

20 Prior to the approved development being brought into first use details and
plans of the proposed waste and recycle store shall be provided to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall then be
implemented in full and maintained for the lifetime of the development.

Reason: To ensure that suitable waste and recycling facilities are provided and to
safeguard the character, appearance and setting of the Listed Building and
Conservation Area.

21 No external menu boards, display boards or signage shall be installed on the
building unless otherwise approved in advance in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the character, appearance, fabric and setting the Listed
Building and Conservation Area.

22  Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority the Solar
PV panels approved by this permission and to be used in the development shall be:
GB Sol PV Slate 500 x 250 slates.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance which would safeguard the
character, setting and visual appearance of the Conservation Area, Listed Building
and wider built environment.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 220

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive
outcome:

Sought to secure an improved solution with regard to the provision of Solar PV on
the building and adjustments to the proposed landscaping.

2. INFORMATIVE:

You are advised that prior to starting on site consent will be required from the
Highway Authority for the works being proposed, under the Highways Act 1980
(unless alternatively specified under the legislation or Regulations listed below). For
further information please contact the officer named:

Works in the highway - Section 171 - Vehicle Crossing - Section 184 - (01904)
551550 - streetworks@york.gov.uk

Pavement Cafe Licenc - Section 115 - Annemarie Howarth (01904) 551550 -
highway.regulation@york.gov.uk

3. INFORMATIVE:

You are advised that this proposal may have an affect on Statutory Undertakers
equipment. You must contact all the utilities to ascertain the location of the
equipment and any requirements they might have prior to works commencing.

4. The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as
amended (section 1), it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the nest of any
wild bird while that nest is in use or being built. Planning consent for a development
does not provide a defence against prosecution under this act. Suitable habitat is
likely to contain nesting birds between 1st March and 31st August inclusive. As
suitable nesting habitat is present on the application site, it should be assumed to
contain nesting birds between the above dates, unless a recent survey has been
undertaken by a competent ecologist to assess the nesting bird activity on site
during this period and has shown it is absolutely certain that nesting birds are not
present.

5. A) The work shall be carried out in such a manner so as to comply with the
general recommendations of British Standards BS 5228-1:2009 + A1:2014 and BS
5228 2:2009 + A1:2014, a code of practice for "Noise and Vibration Control on
Construction and Open Sites".

B) Best practicable means shall be employed at all times in order to minimise noise,
vibration, dust, odour and light emissions. Some basic information on control noise
from construction site can be found using the following link.
https://lwww.york.gov.uk/downloads/download/304/developers_guide for_controlling
_pollution_and_noise_from_construction_sites

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 221

C) All plant and machinery to be operated, sited and maintained in order to minimise
disturbance. All items of machinery powered by internal combustion engines must
be properly silenced and/or fitted with effective and well-maintained mufflers in
accordance with manufacturers instructions.

D) There shall be no bonfires on the site.

E) In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the
approved development, the findings must be reported in writing immediately to the
Local Planning Authority. In such cases, an investigation and risk assessment must
be undertaken and where remediation (clean-up) is necessary a remediation
scheme must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local
Planning Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved
remediation scheme a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. Should City of York Council
become aware at a later date of suspect contaminated materials which have not
been reported as described above, the council may consider taking action under
Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990.

6. As this application relates to a business that will sell or supply food and/or drink
(including alcohol), the proprietor of the business should contact by email at
public.protection@york.gov.uk or by telephone on 01904 551525 at their earliest
opportunity to discuss registering the business as a food premises (a legal
requirement) and to obtain advice on food hygiene & standards, health & safety,
odour extraction etc

Contact details:

Case Officer:  Mark Baldry
Tel No: 01904 552877

Application Reference Number: 21/01535/FUL Item No: 4c



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 223

The Minster School, Deangate, York YO1 7JA

21/01535/FUL

Scale: 1:1236

] =1
gE|RF
« |2 (8 |Z
= |E |5 |3
L = =T =
5 |5 [3 |8
2 |E |2 2
O B | &
Sle|n I
b= "
BIE|E| |5
HHUAE
PlS|5|8 |3
o |lal|lw|a|w

P=rMisSion

nce Surey map with the
ntroller of Her Majesty's Statoneny Ofice & Crown

Copyright 2000.

Reproduced fom the Ordnal
of the Contro

Unauthorised repreducton infringes Crown Copynight and may

lead to

vl proceedings.

prosecution or

Produced wsing EZRI LK) MapExplorer 2.0- hope/www. esriuk.c.om




This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL

Planning Committee

To be held on Thursday 2" December 2021

Gee abed



V.

21/01535/FUL and 21/01536/LBC - The Minster
School, Deangate, York

Change of use of former school to York Minster refectory (use class E) to
Include new restaurant, kitchen and plant, creation of level access, installation of
platform lift, new service doors, re-roofing, integration of solar PV panels and
external repairs; and creation of a new Public Open Space, including external
landscape improvements, gazebo, parasol bases, ice cream hut, railing
relocation, cycle parking and cycle service hub.

COUNCIL

9¢¢ abed



Site Location Plan

EBVRACVM

ROMAN LEGIONM
FORTREES

& P-?. s ~ ’ p N
abedd ~1 (5

#)22

Mot for construction

TERE o
1:1290 [a3) -

T E
M

1223 (EX)000  2.01

1:1250

CARGE ARCHTECTURS LT
PPica 5, it 4, 3035 Gl 5 TH

F o s i
Py acra oy
08 Mian e
o TR T —

COUNCIL

Y,

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021



West Elevation and Site
Frontage — View from
Deangate

\
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL




West Elevation —
View from Deangate

(2)

=
)

g 111111 Uiieaaatieny LT

MRS ALl L "H!Ié?iiliw | kuw“ | ) A¥ AN i

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL




View toward North
Flank and Location of \
Lift \

ik

r
|

I v

"‘:Q‘; CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL




View toward York Minster

"‘:Q" CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL




Proposed West
Elevation

Materials Key:

Z obed

Stone - Ashlar, Limestone - existing ’
Slate - roof renewed refer to Drwg (GA) 200 for ¢ w
PV Siates - refer to Drwg (GA) 200 for notes
Terne Coated (lead coloured) stainless steed clad Fft shaft
Painted timber doors and with leaded giazing,
existing adapted
Chimneys - unused - existing
New painted timber boarded door in existing, adapted
stone surround
Discrete LED downlights on =iim stainless steel projecting 3rms
New flag pole an new brackets, replacing existing broken
flag pole brackets
10 Exsitng windows, glazing, lead cames and opening lights
all refurbished
11 Edsting lantern and bracket refurbished / replaced with new

RRIBRIR

D&

il

[

ey Plan A Stage 2 - For Planning Not for construction

. [Description
Side oot an

\ 8
®  CcIiTY OF - oy
M}"’)’:%mwwmw-lwlﬁ Visual emended 1o su. -—P sl::lh".“ :ﬁ.wl 1:100 (A3) Iﬁ::

= b W d [PROSECT
Y = T i
o R K \\L > ‘ i 1223 (GAMO0 2.03
T RO teé [ ) CAROE &= e o S

. DN v ) .
COUNCIL Eg T r—— eikRlanning Commi Meetingd2nd December2021 - ARCHITECTURE s ot

Y,



Proposed East
Elevation

CITY OF

COUNCIL

Materials Key:

YORK

W {01 Stone - Achiar, Limestone - existing (i6) Gahanised Fire Escape Stair - existing retained
'l e e T i I I
L stone sumound stone suTOUNG, adapied and repaira 02 Slate- roof renewed, refer to Drwg (GA] 200 for notes {17 New emergency floodlight replacing exiting in existing location
03 PV Slates - refer to Drwg [GA) 200 for notes 4 (18]  PPCaluminium rwdp and hopper, colour to match dacding
=S-SR = Bt
M glaing - a1 petnted ot iack ﬁwlmmm e u?t Ic.rn-eﬁuau:d Flradmlwrrdhtimlr_-u mlf:lad Tife shaft . (18] Screen e
ot SRl giass paness, 05 Esisting Fire Exit Window - actapsed to Fire Exit Door - refer to detail
06 Chi - unused - existi
opesiing lignt (door) glazed, 1t S - opaning light - setzed (08 imineys - un e;usnrgI .
on sty giass, al painted 07 MNew Supply and extract terminals flush with slates, colour to match siates
out plack ] 08 PRC Aluminium louwre, colour as cladding
- 8 Galvanised ladder with mansafe channel and pop up safety post
- (10 Fall restraint post
11]  Kitchen extract, fiters and attenuation
J g3 U 12| Existing windows, giazing, lead cames and opening lights
all refurbished
Existing Proposed 13)  Stone Siate - roof renewed on ke for fike basis with new build up
i 14)  MNew bulkhesd lights - in esisting locations
0s) Existing Fire Escape Window Adaptation, 1:20 15 Newsst oo repiacing defective existing
iron and plastic rminwater goods
| 2 Deangate - The Old Song School The Stone Yard
A
>
p— = b
r J T L o N
R - o8
"
— i
(] o u o
g ; HE . O
i O7 4w Q
| % H ) (@)
r " | CD
aa ) 1 ) )
l‘. i o o1 (% . N
12) 1z | w
) | 1
1 new rwdp and hopperin | 1 c A )
new location ke
13
=i <
-
. 1
|
Ferv. 3 [ Chad. | Dascription Plan ‘Canarl rotes _ = -
)ﬂ }Aiﬁ‘g A'E“ K m‘)‘lﬁﬁ ke - PV slats inliau of PV East Elwvation bl Mw\zonmmm:‘, —a ki in dce _— femnt |$:‘:?e 2 - For Plamn = AR Niot for conswcnal:ﬂ
* “ S mandad - liau alian st anat, Ea . Rt aviog boosd o Sl e b Vork M 1504+ 130 A1) / 1:900 [A3) 1wE
3& 3 PROJECT e [
Maad In conjunction with other |nformetion fom CAL and other cmutants, The ferk Misster Rufeciony A af
\ oot

T ——

S

ket

NP
Planning Comniiig Meetingls 2nd December 2021

EawIheG TITLE
[Eat Eleation (Chuirch Yard)
poied

122-3 /(GAMOT, 2.02

: @ GARRE!




Proposed North and
South Elevations

CITY OF

COUNCIL

Materials Key:

2

e

Eing g oo Lt rrihed | etce
o i clad lift shaft
(o8 mumﬁmmmmmumﬂgdmm
e i arms
(07! New extract terminal in existing locstions
08 Exinting SVP
S — -
{10)  Fall restraint post
a2 Erising windows, gling Iead cames and ogening lghs 10 be sesie]
A * Cpague privacy - extent as shawn
3 for like basiz
a4 mmkamwm« repsired
@ Mew cast o i
iron and plastic reinwster goads

e Escape Stair - existi

g criting
Pew coor in place of existing window
Salid scoustic barrier - 18m high

Imternal floor level raised locally

Mew ot drain to perimeter at junction with building
Existing wi iy concealed by - opened up

adapted

FOE GREEEEHEE

Existing plasterbaard ceiling removed and replaced with new

North Elevation - Facing Stone Yard

YORK

Stage 2 - For Planning Mot far

[CLIENT SHE |
Yotk Minste 150 (A1) J 1000 (A3) 13.06.21

TRL: ST 4G ML



Proposed Sections

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

@& —®
=]
=
Fv«-—:!
S
lardrguz edaa
e @ @

[oepr—
Ao Bk regudoes

Section A-A, Proposed

A ettt

@EntrarmeSnfem Door - Modified for Level Access, approx 1: 20 @ A1

Materials Key:

(03 Terne Costed (lead coloured] stainless steel ciad lif: shaft
(04 Gahvanised ladder with mansafe channel snd pop up safety post
(05 Fall restrairtt post

(06 Evisting wi iazing lead - safety film to be
applied to in few of existing glazs rep receszry
@ L L .
C] ot panei
ciling and repl 2 layers fire
rated plasterbaard
10 E.-u.;u. rd plaster skillings
for ceiling with fire r
% éti ceiling repizosd with new
Existing suspended ceiling tiles removed, lath and plaster ceifing
reinstatad
Tl glazed door il thiin Fit Out
13 i door] with exiting. £an fight removed

and infilled, new FR door
@ Mew staff and customer facilities - imber sud ard plasterboard

in Fit Out

5} dos ined and adapted to suit new levels
praviding level access

@ Internal stone i and reir i level o ide level

scozss. Some new paving required to replace warn and broken, induding
3t warn thresholds, to minimize trip hazards.
Extmrnal levels raized - refer to Landscape propassls

New flag pole and assaciated brackets

EE

oy
_E_ General Mote - Roof repairs:
HNote Removed

Refer to (GA) 200 - Roof Plan as Propos

GECZ abed

SR AT T T

AL are thar coradtares,

iHPlanning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021 =

Stage 2 - For Planning Mot for nnrtshuchun

[CLIENT

[visee izt e mess 100y
[FRGIECT T G|
[ THE YOR S o

1223 (GA)300 2.02

@ CARQE &5 e 25

ARCHITECTURE WaEki




Proposed
Floor Plan

Ground

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

o8
8,
e
2
et

Existing Yark store flag floar raized to provide level sccess

Mew ztone introduced with old to remesdy broekn and worn, especially at
worn thresholds, to create step free floar wi ip hazards.

Miew exterrial finishes 3t new levels to provide level acoess

Existing glazed screens and doars retsines, modified to suit new levels
Eisting o - retsine in st )

Existing door - relocated

Existing door - handed

Mew daor - in adapted existing window apening

Euiztingg w ined and repsired,

Mew fire rated roller huster - linked to fire alzrm

Existing metal fire escape stair -retained and redecorzted

Mew glazed doors and screen

WEIE
=
.\s/

et s s e TG .

e p—— simng i e

7o pasaling,
tng -l s

Esisting timber stair and balustrade. Joinery repired and refurbizhed
following remaual of harcheard concealmer:

Merw timber acoess hatch to basement

Nienw mxterior timbar coor in new structural opening

Merw B perzan machine room less [, shaft and 2 pit

Meww internal timber doar ard frame

Merw glazed timier door and frame in new structural opening

Tew Caléroom

Euesting AWDP and associated hopper to be relocated

RG.05

NORTH WING

ENTRANCE

frag o T i i baesd

WG A1 B e spurig e meoved and gzing
E paraby coacun e accume 4nd e
Pt

Key

Exising
[  Demoilons
558  Mewtabic

S ST T A Pt

Planning Committee Meeting - 2

Foav. [Gute bm. Cohd.  |Duscription Wy Plan Ganarl o - - -
T #osz Jas :t 0502 Charged Lo Ostwsrd Dpaniog st L & | S!.:'ge 2 - For Planning _— Mot for conswcnan:n
- York Minste 150041}/ 1400 (A%) 11.18.21)
; The VE{WH Al - Dg
- tar Rufwciory
Hllcnen 3na Preparaion Ares Equpment - Shown fo Inomation oy otes: e o]

122-3 (GA)100 2.02

ARCHITECTURE msimn

CARCHE ARCHTRITURE LTS
s, GerSt Tha Sumpor's Offca
P




Proposed First Floor

Plan

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

existing exit from
Stone Yard into
existing alleyway

existing roof light
opening to become
roof access hatch

existing felt roof - flat
to be renewed on like
for like basis

York Minster A

A

OPEN YARD

fire escape stair from first floor,
escape routevia church yard

Esisting stone siate roof renewed on like for like basis with enhanced
insulztion and breathability

Meew lead "dormer” facilitating new kitchen extract ductwork.

Existing lead lined gutter renewed on like for like basis, with falls adapted
o LCA codes

Esisting kitchen extract removed - refier to demalition drawing.
Indicative roof mounted plant - refer to M+E Consultant information
Meew roof sccess hatchin existing roc light opening

P accmss ladider with il srrest lidelock system

Terne Coated (lead coloured) stainless steel dad lift shaft and roof
Esisting restricted mesns of escape via small window, improved by

dlapting exiting nd to means of escape

Existing timber s=air and halustrade

Existing door retained, ironmangery, dasers and saals upgraded
Esisting internal window, retrained, restored and revesled and sdapted
with FR glazing if suftable.

Esisting internal window, retained, restored and reveslied to stairs
Existing opening roof light retained and overhauled

Existing roof access vi window - retzined

Stone Yard (GAjR0Y
Works Buildings -

glass connection between ift shaft
and existing stone wall - 250mm

existing roof ight removed, new
batten reoll roof lead roof to match

T -E ==
wishy '
 — e
Lounge Bar L
R1.01
NORTH WING
)
ity
approx. 'shadow gap'
existing
i
slate roof - re roofed to [ [
new secification -
! ‘liwup J WE.OT
" pane casement for roof access,
with lock, new access

steps

batten foll lead roof - maintenance
works pnly, with addition of fall
restraint fixing points

First Floor Plan - Proposed

Acoustic screening
w103 rew RWDP
.
==
Cpening DaseTeT renved and paring
by obkcure o BIOLAES WY RSy
ety
(EA)200 QJ
R1.05 7 (@)
SOUTH WING [ ———
:ﬂl:\:hn-dh—mndwl: m
Seating
OERIING ChM T TWRoved §Nd QTG
AT olkcLne for BIOLAES BV RSy
ere® x wghto s
=
WGDE

Key

[ Bdsing
5 Demoitons
[BEE  Mewtabic

3 [Gute Gm. Cd. Duscription
2 B |48 ak Rasod plant revised, scted amendsd

S ST T A ik o

ey Plan

-Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd.Decembe&2021

Tanerl ot
Boreee L et "
by ua

Pacte that

Paad bn coefursction with other Infarmasion fom CAL sed ather corsutares
[

[Stage 2 - For Planning

Mot for construction

2 |
150 A1)/ 1400 43) 185,21
T T
A o
TRURIE  CRRmRE o AR ON]

122-3 (GA)1I01 2.01

+ ThaSurmport Offcs
5P Cathacra
an




Proposed Roof Plan

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Key:

e 1334 a0 e

City of York Council

Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021 X

ey
1) Existing stone slate: roof renewed on like for like basis with enhanced walleys, r w
\ insulztion and breathability swit increase in averall height of roof coverings to sccommedate 4
I', New bead "dormes” facilitating new kitchen extract ductwork ir ion; lightni i with terminal
\ Existing lead lined gutter renewed on like for like basis, to new steps and led | band and ridge tapes; for J
| OPEN YARD falls 0 LCA codes e acoess to sofar inwater outlets i
g I} 4 Existing ki wed - refer ition drawing inta roof detailing- 4
| 05 efer to M info S e . /
< B 06! New roof light apeni safety line
| W extemal canopy | shelr to rear : 5 openne
entrance doar- Simber framie and fiat noaf, (GA)30) 07 Mew access ladder with fall arrest glidebock syssem ) ~
e Pl 08, _Terne Costed [lead coloured) stsinles: steel cad f: shaftand roaf | lates within roof pitch, ving new slte racf.
09/ Evisting =iate roof materiais stripped and set aside; inefiective 1680: New polyester powder coated acoustic screens
3 flammable insulation removed; roof structure and internal ceilings | calour BS 10 A 05 fmid grey) - the.
retained and repaired on like for like basis; new bresthable ‘warmeroof | (14 New Supaly and extract terminals flush with slates, calowr to match
. 1 4 insulzted build-un apalied over existing rafters with airleskage detailing 15  Discrete LED downlight on sm stainless steel projecting arms, located
‘s_.{ - chi ildi i cowerings ing central an embrasures
- :’;‘::_";‘:J; counter-battended; new solar-siates to specialist installer details, . (16 Lawintensity LED accent uplights lighting facade, witheut spill to sky ar
existing exit from existing roof light Y l
Stone Yard info opening to become - !
it eyw: roof access hatch RR.O2
exitnpE =Y |:| fire escape stair from first floor,
- H escape route via church yard
- 7 3
existing felt roof - flat _4“ ik = RS,
to be renewed on like et St e,
for like basis i
RR.OB
1 s S RR.1D
R.O 3) 3 9
R P X )/ = WRDS
FLAT ROOF L S N L
/) = N U
V% o RR.08 W Q
\ ) «Q
- LI : a
N ; N
“York Minster &l | et — WRLEE
Stone Yard (GA)300 g bt RR.OD A 1 (GA)00 N
Works Buildings WRLID RR.05
G 7 W
. . .. .. - - -
£ £} \ ) 2 8 RR.12 oo
| rro2 N 7 .
FLAT ROOF
S RR.O7 —— e T <
- T @8 & 5 %5 ® ll RR.11 W
I f 3 | ;
existing roof light removed, new i | wroe | L
batten roll roof lead roof to match a1 h ]:II i
exisfing | fegF T
Rf.04 Ry
1z iz
slate roof - maintenance T . N // H g
ks onl =L . LT s — e i = === L ] O
works only : = — & )
batten roll lead reof - maintenance % -l
M 16; works only, with addition of fall 15 15
restraint fixing points 13
B
Key
(GA)30)
Exizting
T [owe  om (G B S iy Pian [Stage 2 - For Plannii Mot for construction
e 1E105 (A * Tyess o P saters chanrngnd o Fully Ioagrated PV slates. Notes 9 and 12 smended. oy ducrapes Ak ﬁwp} sacopa) e
o T
Read | Tha York Minster Refectory A J‘
Mot [DRAWING TITLE FRMINITE | CRRMAG . RoAS ]

122-3 (GA)200 2.02

ARCHITECTURE




Proposed Landscape Plan

Y,

i

ner carmuitanty drange -
wing esign inomation

e dutadi

56 a0udior b Bases dedgn 8 spechicatan
oching of ary eharent

Dranage derige nd hirntructere

i ducting

COUNCIL

CITY OF

AB dimerasors in s, urkess stherwbe itated
Sealng frm drmwing f 3rirtad ncorracty may s 4o

AboraTon ourite red e Lourdary dhomn fox
somtentus! purpons by
A% hatch pastenns ars bedicatia only unkess stated
o
This drawig |3 10 be read 1 cosfencion o reeat
documestanon ¥om the design tean

i 0 tha 4

Wieat, The contrazicr i 35 chieck and verity all besls

v dimersions agamit s1e sanvey hitematisen
sancies In the deugn Rformaticn are ta Be
the atsenson of re form lamscaoe
P r———y
ok,
Ty products shat be iestal
Pth mastactenoss wi

b strict

roponed uthties
5 a0 10 St 21 0 In JECOTTINCE woth
Elort dassties

100 plans wubstitution shall be ogreed whe
1€ architect e o crdaring.

YORE MINSTER

STONEMASONS AREA

S
. F
ning Committee

R

For datalls of Perpolagatebo refar to
K6 RFIA-XX-00-OR-L-800L

i & v

TALBOT COURT GARDEN

eting - 2nd December 2021

ey

Plansing apphcation boundary

Existng buldng

Coursed Yorkstone paving

wih contrast banding

Redn bound gravl sufacig

Prepesad fush bace

I l b stands
B fenchwith bockrest
&  Fowdews

Daisting rafings and low wall

7 Prozosed ralings and ow wall
&7 | tralocating esisting 10 be remaves)
|

ﬁ Proposed scroen 1o Sin stece

O - Nemirwicned gates o match
gy

Proposed vk

Eastiog levely

{isting trees to be retained
Frogosed tree in soft lendscape
Froposed box heated tree
Progosed espalier yramed it tree

Progosed grass

Froposed plaming
Fefer (o pranting strategy
QN REM X0 OR-L004

Moneatie planters 750w Hgh
Fafer 1o planting strategy
-1 M- XHL0- 00004

Frozosed hedge plaating
Refer to panting strategy
QB M K00 DR-A004

Froposed chmbers to wall
Fater 1o planting strategy
CRETE-FF M- X-00- DR-L004

6c¢ abed

Indicative table kcatios
Layout and size 10 eperutor
spetification

Low lgheing butird to contral rente

Bicyde repair station

re-form

landscape architecture

Tower Works, Globe Road

Leeds 1511 506

T +44[0]113 245 4555
nfogrefomiangscaps.com

W o formisndscape.com

Project

YORK MINSTER REFECTORY AND MINSTER YARD

RF20-878

Olwmt
VORK PATSTER
Oocurmunt title

LANDSCAPE GENERAL
PLAN
Paper she Saale
AL 1200
Seatus
FOR REVIEW AND COMMENT 53
Orawing numtger Revigion
OHRF XN T D001 P02



Proposed

Landscape Sections

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

0002 Sectioneleabon: sl reute inoking towarcds Stoneyard 1160
0

Motes

A dimansires b e, ushess otherwss stated.

rmers
A iefursration oetsade fud b Bourdary shows e
oreestist purgose ol

ThVs draminng i3 10 be e i Conpurction with the
fotlowing re-dem lardicaps sechbactire

P

#ocumentation
* 0875 R X000 L0001
 Cunatel Arrasguenact Moo

mern. v»-mmmuummummnn

H
t
]
i
:
s
i
L
g
13

ATRECaAe, 1 WP X 0 CommencRNEINof

2100

j- AT N / s
A < //‘ »

]
i
a
i
z
:

“Saction kocation plan

MO

\Coﬁﬁcn Planning Committee Meél

1300

(At |Ii['”\IHIIIINIIHIHIIIIIIHIINIIIH%? I i | ||I!IIIH|l||llllmIIIUIIIHIIIIIIIIIIIII(H Hlll"ll‘l“lmﬂlln n:llllhdlltlllllllll!ﬂl [l

a2

002 Sectonelevaton: cterral ing wece lcking towds the u-l-mrv

R

L
Om Im 2m Im 4m Sm Em 7m Bw Sm iom

e — A ©

it X8 |
et J S bt

re-form

landscape orchitecture

Tower Works, Globe Road.

Leedy 1511 500

T +44[0)113 245 4885

£ nfo@redormangscape com

W10 formiandscape.com

Project

THE REFECTORY, YORK MINSTER

RF20-876

Clent

YORK PANSTER

Document tithe

ILLUSTRATIVE LANDSCAPE SECTIONS

Paper she Sale

Al 1200

Status

FOR REVIEW AND COMMENT 3

Revison
L -XX-C0-DR4Q002 P02

€ s i b



Example of PV Slates

4—":-;-‘%‘ CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 243 Agenda Item 4d

COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 2 December 2021 Ward: Guildhall

Team: East Area Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel

Reference: 21/01536/LBC

Application at: The Minster School Deangate York YO1 7JA

For: Change of use of former school, to the York Minster Refectory

(use class E), to include new restaurant, kitchen and plant,
creation of level access, installation of platform lift, internal
alterations, new service doors, re-roofing, integration of solar PV
panels and external repairs; and creation of a new Public Open
Space, including external landscape improvements, gazebo,
parasol bases, ice cream hut, railing relocation, cycle parking
and cycle service hub

By: Mr Alexander McCallion

Application Type: Listed Building Consent

Recommendation: Approve

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1. The application site comprises of the former Minster Song School building and
adjacent lawned area located to the southern side of Deangate. The site currently
consists of the school building, the lawned area to the North West and a large area
of hardstanding to the front. Access to the site is taken directly from Deangate.

1.2. Listed Building consent is sought for the change of use of the site to form York
Minster Refectory (Use Class E). The proposals include the provision of a new
restaurant, kitchen, provision of plant equipment, formation of level access, the
installation of a lift, provision of new service doors, re-roofing of the building,
provision of solar PV equipment, external repairs and the creation of a new public
open space; to include external landscape improvements, gazebo, parasol bases,
ice cream hut, railing relocation, cycle parking and cycle service hub.

Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No: 4d



Page 244

1.3. The song school building is Grade Il Listed. The site is located within the
Central Historic Core Conservation Area, a defined Area of Archaeological
Importance and is also located within the Scheduled Monument designation area of
York Minster Precinct.

1.4. The site ceased use as the Minster School in Summer 2020 when The
Chapter York, who are responsible for the upkeep, running and operating of the
Minster estate, decided to close the school.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

1.5. An accompanying application for Planning Permission has also been
submitted under reference 21/01535/FUL - Change of use of former school, to the
York Minster Refectory (use class E), to include new restaurant, kitchen and plant,
creation of level access, installation of platform lift, internal alterations, new service
doors, re-roofing, integration of solar PV panels and external repairs; and creation of
a new Public Open Space, including external landscape improvements, gazebo,
parasol bases, ice cream hut, railing relocation, cycle parking and cycle service hub.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK

2.1. The revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2021 was published
and sets out the government’s planning policies for England and how these are
expected to be applied.

2.2. Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise (section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

2.3. The Statutory Development Plan for the City of York comprises the saved
policies and key diagram of the otherwise revoked Yorkshire and Humber Plan
Regional Spatial Strategy (2008) and any made Neighbourhood Plan.

2.4. The application site is located within the Central Historic Core Conservation
Area and forms part of The Minster Precinct, a Scheduled Monument. The site also
falls within a defined Area of Archaeological Interest. There are also a number of
Listed Buildings within the vicinity including the Grade | listed Church of Holy Trinity
situated immediately to the South.

2.5. Section 16 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act

1990 requires that in considering whether to grant listed building consent for any

works special regard shall be given to the desirability of preserving the building or its

setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.
Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No:



Page 245

2.6. Case law has made clear that a finding of harm to conservation area or listed
building or its setting is a consideration to which the decision-maker must give
considerable importance and weight when carrying out the balancing exercise to
give effect to its statutory duties under section 16 of the 1990 Act. There is a “strong
presumption” against the grant of listed building consent in such cases.

PUBLICATION DRAFT LOCAL PLAN (DLP 2018)

2.7. The DLP was submitted for examination on 25" May 2018. Phase 1 of the
hearings into the examination of the Local Plan took place in December 2019. In
accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF the Draft Plan policies can be afforded
weight according to:

-The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation
the greater the weight that may be given);,

- The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

-The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012. (N.B: Under transitional
arrangements plans submitted for examination before 24 January 2019 will be
assessed against the 2012 NPPF).

2.8. Key relevant DLP 2018 policies are:
D1 — Placemaking
D2 — Landscape and Setting
D3 — Cultural Provision
D4 — Conservation Areas
D5 — Listed Buildings
D6 — Archaeology

MINSTER NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN (Submission Draft April 2021)

2.9. The York Minster Precinct Neighbourhood Plan was submitted to the City of
York Council for independent examination on 26" April 2021. Given the stage of
preparation that the plan has reached, the policies contained within it are capable of
being a material planning consideration of a planning application. However it does
not form part of the adopted development plan until such time as it has been fully
adopted. Relevant policies within the neighbourhood plan are:

Al- Purpose and Ambition
A2 - Sustainable Development
Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No:



Page 246

A4 — Design Excellence

B1 — Landscape and Biodiversity Net Gain
C1 — Historic Environment

PAl — Minster Yard and College Green

DRAFT LOCAL PLAN 2005

2.10. The City of York Draft Local Plan incorporating the Fourth Set of Changes
Development Control Local Plan (April 2005) was approved for Development
Management purposes. The 2005 plan does not form part of the statutory
development plan for the purposes of S38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004. Its policies are however considered capable of being material
considerations in the determination of planning application where policies relevant to
the application are consistent with those in the NPPF although the weight that can
be attached to them is very limited.

2.11. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF states that decisions should apply a presumption in
favour of sustainable development which means, for decision taking:

- Approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development
plan without delay; or
- Where there are no relevant development policies, or the policies which are
most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting
permission unless:
- The application of policies within this framework that protect areas or
assets of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the
development proposed; or
- Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this
framework taken as a whole.

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

3.1. Guildhall Planning Panel: Objects. ‘We are concerned about the architectural
clutter of the proposed gazebo at the front of the existing building as it would seem
to be unnecessary way of spoiling the facade. Perhaps landscaping details could be
simplified as its out of keeping with the surrounding area.’

3.2. CYC Design and Conservation: Object in principle to the approach taken to
the conversion as detailed in the application documents. The harm the proposals will
cause to the setting of the Minster and other Listed Buildings, the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area and the significance of the listed building itself
are, in my view, completely unacceptable. It appears that a commercially driven

Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No:



Page 247

approach to conversion is outweighing heritage significance here. The Heritage
Statement is written in such a way that it simply dismisses the harm as unimportant
due to the benefits of bringing the building back into use in the very focused and
uncompromising way. In simple terms a more balanced approach is required
whereby the commercial needs are assessed against the many positive heritage
significances the site possesses. Whilst | recognise the need to improve energy
efficiency the Solar Photovoltaic Panels or slates are completely unacceptable in
this particular location. They will have a detrimental impact on the significance of a
large number of heritage assets and their significance. The issues are numerous in
heritage terms but involve the loss of historic fabric to facilitate the installation, and,
the appearance of the panels/slates and their effect on character and appearance.
The use of PV’s is also questioned as | understand they will require regular
replacement; their efficiency reduces over time; and, and they do not have the same
appearance as a traditional slate roof. In my opinion the proposals are at the
greatest level of ‘less than substantial harm’ and | do not think the public benefits
outweigh this level of harm. | would point out that the phrase ‘less than substantial
harm’ should not be confused with ‘no harm’.

3.3. CYC Archaeologist: No objections raised but does request the use of a
condition to secure a programme of post determination archaeological mitigation.

3.4. Historic England: In principle, we are very supportive of the scheme as we
consider the new use to be compatible with the heritage values and significance of
the building, its setting and the setting of the surrounding listed buildings. The
scheme has the potential to secure the sustainable future for the vacant former song
school in a role that makes a significant contribution to York Minster’s visitor offer.
We do not support the addition of Solar PV panels on the principal west and east
elevations of the listed building. The lift shaft on the east side of the building will be
set back from the principal elevation and sit below the existing ridge line. We do not
considered that this will significantly detract from the aesthetic value of the building.
It also offers a way of improving the accessibility of the building as a whole without
unduly comprising the internal space. We welcome the gradual regrading of the
pavement in order to avoid the introducing of new steps, ramps and railings. We
appreciate the challenges in adapting the listed building for the use proposed.
Nevertheless, the building has accommodated uses in the past that have not paid
particular attention to the historic features of the building, so we recognise that there
is the opportunity to reverse some of the harmful impacts and better reveal the
historic character and form of the building.

3.5. A further consultation response was received from Historic England on 12%

November 2021 following the submission of additional information relating to the

provision of PV Equipment on the building by the applicants. In their follow up
Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No:



Page 248

comments they advise that Historic England does not object to this element of the
scheme and that they defer to the LPA on the determination of the preferred
alternative — but asks that the LPA satisfies themselves that enough evidence
supports the chosen approach and the public benefits outweigh the degree of harm
caused.

3.6. The Georgian Group: The Georgian Group have no objections in principle to
the change of use. The proposed new use has potential public and heritage
benefits. The proposed landscaping will undoubtedly be an improvement. However
we do have concerns regarding the proposed use of solar panels on the principle
East and West elevations. This alien addition would cause a degree of harm to the
significance of this listed building. It is commendable to attempt to improve the
thermal performance of this historic building, however, the adverse impact of the
proposed solar panels would outweigh any potential benefits. We urge the applicant
to revise their proposals and omit the solar panels.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS
4.1. The proposals have been advertised via site notice and local press notice. A
total of 10.no letters of support and 1.no letter of objection have been received.

4.2. The comments received in support of the proposals can be summarised as
follows:

- The Minster should be commended for not only seeking a way to sensitively
provide hospitality to visitors but also by addressing accessibility.

- | record my support for the installing of Solar PV Panels

- Conservation is the management of change. Can the city please show some
leadership and encourage the well considered adaptation in our response to
the climate emergency.

- Itis of particular importance that heritage sites move forward to embrace the
opportunity to protect whilst demonstrating a commitment to sustainability.

- The creation of a new green space in the precinct will provide a space for
residents and visitors to appreciate the magnificent surroundings.

- This will transform the area in a sustainable way.

- We are particularly supportive of the emphasis on environmental sustainability.

- The proposals are an exciting opportunity for the re-use of the Minster School.

- Support the use of Solar Panel and their use on the roof.

- Cities need to invest in clean renewable energy

- The solar panels are not going to threaten the historic value of the Minster

4.3. The comments received in objection to the proposals can be summarised as
follows:
Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No:



Page 249

- An accurate and robust noise assessment needs to be conducted.

- A noise management plan is required.

- Time limits are required on the outdoor seating area.

- Any amplified music should be limited.

- All bottle bins are emptied in accord with current conservation area policy.

4.4. The comments received in objection are noted. However they are not
considered to be relevant to the determination of this application for Listed Building
Consent. These matters are dealt with under the associated application for planning
permission which is being considered under reference 21/01535/FUL.

4.5. A letter of representation has also been received from the York Civic Trust.
Their comments can be summarised as follows:

- There needs to be balance between converting the building and preserving
historic features.

- The locating of the toilet block on the first floor in the central wing is
unfortunate and raises concerns over the most appropriate use of the historic
space. More thought could be given to whether the toilets remain located on
the ground floor, allowing the first floor to be fully opened up.

- It would also provide level toilet access without having to use the stairs or lift.

- The lift shaft will unbalance the otherwise harmonious symmetry of the
building.

- The access route to the main building is important. A turning circle for
deliveries will be required.

- The trust does not object to the proposed installation of PV panels in principle.
However more information is required to allow us to support this aspect.

- Clear and convincing justification of any substantial impact on the reduction of
carbon emissions of the building would help strengthen the argument.

- The trust supports the principle of the application and the reuse of the building.
However we fall short of supporting the application in its current form without
greater consideration being given to the positioning of the toilet block and the
aesthetic impact of the lift shaft and justification of PV panels.

5.0 APPRAISAL

Key Issues
- Impact upon the Listed Building and other Heritage Assets.

IMPACT UPON THE LISTED BUILDING AND OTHER HERITAGE ASSETS

5.1. As s set out in earlier sections of this report; the site is located within an area

where there are numerous designated heritage assets and the site itself is also a
Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No:



Page 250

designated heritage asset, being a Grade Il Listed Building and also falling within
the Minster Precinct scheduled monument area.

5.2. Paragraph 189 of the NPPF states: ‘Heritage assets range from sites and
buildings of local historic value to those of the highest significance, such as World
Heritage Sites which are internationally recognised to be of outstanding universal
value. These assets are an irreplaceable resource, and should be conserved in a
manner appropriate to their significance, so that they can be enjoyed for their
contribution to the quality of life of existing and future generations’.

5.3. Paragraph 195 of the NPPF requires local planning authorities to identify and
assess the particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a
proposal (including development affecting the setting of a heritage asset). They
should take this into account when considering the impact of a proposal on a
heritage asset, to avoid or minimise any conflict between the heritage asset’'s
conservation and any aspect of the proposal.

5.4. Paragraph 197 of the NPPF goes on to state: ‘In determining applications,
local planning authorities should take account of:

- The desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets
and putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;

- The positive contribution that conservation of the heritage assets can make to
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and

- The desirability of new development making a positive contribution to the local
character and distinctiveness.

5.5. Paragraph 199 of the NPPF states that when considering the impact of a
proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great
weight should be given to the assets conservation (and the more important the
asset, the greater the weight should be). This is irrespective of whether any potential
harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial harm to its
significance.

5.6. Paragraph 200 then states that harm to, or loss of, the significance of a
designated heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development
within its setting), should require clear and convincing justification.

5.7. The NPPF makes a distinction between proposals which cause ‘substantial

harm’ to a designated heritage asset (paragraph 201) and those which lead to ‘less

than substantial harm’ (paragraph 202). It does not automatically mean that less

than substantial harm is more acceptable; rather that it means that a different test is
Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No:



Page 251

applied. Paragraph 196 states that where a development proposal will lead to less
than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm
should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including, where
appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.

5.8. At present, since the closure of the Minster School back in the summer of
2020, the site has not been in active use. The only access to the building and the
site has been for the purposes of on-going maintenance and management by the
Minster and their appointed contractors. This would be in direct contrast to the active
use of the site as the Minster School which would have seen activity and near daily
basis — with the outside space being utilised for the purposes of teaching and
recreation at the school.

5.9. The maintenance and upkeep of all the buildings within the Minster precinct is
a continual cycle of projects. Multiple projects are often ongoing in parallel to one
another. The closure of the school in itself brings possible risks to the Listed
Building and the wider conservation area which could be considered to be
detrimental to the wider Minster precinct.

5.10. There is always an inherent risk that if a building is not in active use it can fall
into a state of disrepair. The risk when this occurs to a Listed Building can be a
cause for greater concern given the historic significance and the possible
implications when historic fabric or features are lost. Whilst there is no suggestion
that this would be the case here; or indeed that the building is in any immediate risk.
Were the building to lay vacant for any prolonged period it would ultimately begin to
be increasingly detrimental feature within the Conservation Area and Minster
Precinct; ultimately being of detriment to the character and setting of other listed
buildings and monuments within the vicinity, including the Minster.

5.11. The reality is that the operation of the Minster as a visitor attraction and the
success of that venture is inextricably linked to the on-going upkeep and
maintenance of the precinct and the buildings within it.

5.12. The York Minster Conservation Management Plan Volume 2 details a series of
issues and opportunities for the Minster School building. It notes that following
closure of the school a new use for the building is required; noting that a refectory is
proposed within the daft neighbourhood plan. The Conservation Management Plan
states that this could be of substantial public benefit, increasing the amount of
publicly accessible green space, provide public access to the building and enable
the public to enjoy the superb views of the Minster.

Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No:



Page 252

5.13. The management plan also highlights that whilst the inserted floors are not
original and effect the form and function of the original full height volumes of the
building. The inserted floors have a vital function to play in the use and life of the
building, providing important accommodation which will be critical to viability. The
rooms are also highlighted as providing important views of the Minster. The
management plan goes on to state that accessibility for all these floors will need to
be provided.

5.14. With regard to the grounds. The management plan outlines the need to reduce
the amount of hardstanding and the historic axial arrangement reinstated. Stating
that careful consideration should also be given to the final arrangement of the
grounds and their boundary treatment — in order to create an exceptional public
realm in this part of Minster Yard that enhances the setting of the cathedral and
provide significant benefits for residents and visitors alike.

5.15. Referring back to paragraph 195 of the NPPF. It is necessary to identify the
heritage assets which may be affected by the proposals. In this particular case the
heritage assets which may, most likely, be affected by the proposals are; the Minster
Precinct (scheduled monument), the Minster Song School building (Grade Il Listed)
and Central Historic Core Conservation Area (which, along with the Minster
Precinct, provide the general public realm and environs to the Minster and the
former School).

5.16. The Minster Precinct would be considered as being of exceptional evidential
and historic significance. Views toward the Minster would also be considered to be
of exceptional significance. Overall the significance of the Minster Precinct would be
considered to be exceptional due to its evidential, historical and aesthetic values,
particularly its near views towards the Minster. However some aesthetic treatments
of public spaces and Deangate could be considered detracting.

5.17. The Minster School building itself (Grade Il Listed) would be considered to be
of exceptional evidential significance. However overall the building would be
considered to be of some significance due to its evidential, historical and associative
values, although the aesthetic value of its view of the Minster is considered
exceptional. Many of the internal interventions in the twentieth century are
considered detracting, as is its current lack of use.

5.18. The Central Historic Core Conservation Area and the general environs of the
applications are considered, overall, to be high due to its evidential, historical, and
associative values of its views of the Minster. However the current aesthetic
treatment of the area is considered to be detracting.

Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No:



Page 253

5.19. As part of the submitted details the applicant has provided a Heritage Impact
Assessment which covers the various elements of the proposals and rates the
impact these will have upon the listed building and wider conservation area.

5.20. The HIA highlights that the proposed landscaping works will have a moderate
positive impact upon the approach from Deangate as a result of opening the space
up. The landscaping within the curtilage of the site, creation of the sensory garden
and kitchen garden are regarded as being High Positive. These elements will see
the removal of the existing car park to the front of the school whilst the landscaping
and garden elements bring the potential for biodiversity gains.

5.21. The proposed patio area and parasols are regarded as being of minor
detrimental harm. It is acknowledged that these elements will create fixed features
immediately within the foreground of the building and its frontage. They may also,
from certain points impede some views of the Minster. There is also the risk, given
the need for ground fixings that some archaeological disturbance could occur.
However the applicant justifies this on the basis that these elements will instead
allow for the creation of a more planned landscape; which will negate the need for
more ad-hoc or temporary fixtures which in themselves could cause greater harm.
They also note that the outdoor space will be of importance, particularly during the
summer months, allowing people to enjoy the Minster and the wider precinct.

5.22. The creation of the gazebo area has been rated as having a moderate positive
impact. This is due to it removing the current poor landscaping features including the
dated play equipment, with enhanced landscape elements for public benefit.

5.23. The provision of the passenger lift and the required external lift shaft have
been assessed as being of Minor-Moderate Detrimental. The applicant justifies this
harm on the basis that inclusive access is a key objective of the Precinct
Neighbourhood Plan. The negative impacts are acknowledged as being the lift rising
above the single storey element, creating a modest visual impact with a narrow line
of sight. However the location of the lift outside of the original plan form of the
building is considered to be the least harmful option. The placement minimises
negative visual intrusion on the key spaces and enables space within the building to
be optimised. There will also be mitigation by design and detail; with the lift being
clad as a neutral element. In addition to this, as noted by Historic England, the lift
shaft is set back from the principle elevation and set down beneath the ridge of the
building.

5.24. Various alterations are proposed at first floor, including the provision of

ancillary facilities such as toilets. This will require the sub-division of the central

upper room. This is acknowledged as having a minor detrimental impact. However
Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No:



Page 254

any public use of the building must have the required spaces and facilities both for
customers and staff to allow it to function. The space is currently sub-divided as a
classroom. However the proposals would allow for the partition walls to be better
designed specifically to better reveal the roof trusses and exterior windows. They
would also allow for the opening up of two interior blocked windows. Concerns have
been raised by interested parties relating to the subdivision of the first floor.
However the relocation of the toilets to the first floor is also considered by the
applicant, to enhance higher status ground floor spaces. Weight is also given to the
fact the first floor is already heavily sub-divided at first floor.

5.25. One component of the proposed development is the provision of Solar
Photovoltaic (Solar PV) equipment on the roof of the existing building.

5.26. The threat posed by climate change is not diminishing. The Council itself
declared a Climate Emergency in 2019. Decarbonisation cannot be achieved solely
by new build development utilising energy efficiency and measures to decarbonise.
There is an important role to be played by existing buildings through measures such
as improving existing built fabric and efficiency and also the retrofitting of measures
to buildings.

5.27. However, the issue that is then presented is the nature of competing
legislative and regulatory frameworks and policies. These are often seeking to
achieve completely opposed objectives which can be wholly incompatible with one
another. In this case the applicant is proposing the provision of Solar PV equipment
which it is stated would be expected to provide a 15% reduction in carbon. However
such measures can, dependent upon their finer detail and execution, be
diametrically opposed to the more protectionist policies and legislation which relate
to heritage assets such as Conservation Areas, Listed Buildings and Scheduled
Monuments.

5.28. This can create a very delicate situation where, if possible, these competing
objectives have to be in some way balanced. However the ability to do this will be
extremely dependant upon the subject site and/building. There cannot and is not a
one size fits all solution. There are a host of considerations which must be weighed
together, not just the potential to decarbonise. The potential for harm to be caused
to heritage assets must be considered. Retrofitting will not suit all scenarios as the
host building has to be capable of accommodating retrofitted equipment.
Advancements in technologies will always create a fluidity to this situation, in that as
new products and solutions are developed they may become an increasing number
of suitable solutions for use in historically sensitive settings.

Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No:



Page 255

5.29. Amongst the various consultation responses and comments received the
matter of the proposed Solar PV equipment has been raised both in support and
objection to the proposals, including, initially, an objection from Historic England.

5.30. In their consultation comments English Heritage state: ‘We do not support the
addition of solar panels on the principal west and east elevations of the listed
building. As a non-traditional material this would not be in keeping with the historic
character of the highly significant elevations. As a landmark building in the
conservation area, with a visible roofscape, the appearance of the building from a
distance is very important. The justification is lacking as there are likely to be more
appropriate, less visible and more discreet locations for solar panels within the
Minsters estate, avoiding the harmful impact on the significance of the listed
building.’

5.31. Since these comments were received the applicant has explored alternatives.
When originally submitted the proposed PV panels were proposed as being a
cassette type unit which whilst they would have been integrated into the roof they
would have nonetheless led to a very visible intervention in the roof plane of the
building.

5.32. However the applicant is now proposing the use of Solar Slates on the roof,
instead an integrated cassette type solution. The Solar Slates are based upon a
traditional welsh roof slate in terms of their dimensions, colour and general
appearance. The only notable difference in their appearance is that the exterior face
of the slate has the appearance of being sealed with a polymer type coating — akin
to a varnish. It is this coating which provides the generating capability. Historic
England have subsequently removed their objection to the PV panels leaving the
decision to the LPA.

5.33. The applicant has suggested two potential approaches. One would be to use
the Solar Slates but retain a section of the Westmorland Slate on the rear elevation
and here install the integrated cassette type PV panel as they had originally
proposed. The alternative option would be to use the Solar Slates throughout the
entirety of the roof with the exception of an outer boarder which is required to house
the solar slates.

5.34. Both options would, as the original proposals would have done, result in harm
being caused to the roof of the building. The assessment that must be made is
whether the extent of the harm that would be caused and the possible benefits, if
any, from that harm can be balanced.

Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No:



Page 256

5.35. The proposed use of Solar Slates would allow for the visual appearance of a
slated roof to be maintained on the building; removing the issue of an obvious non-
traditional intervention which would result from the previously proposed integrated
cassette type panels. The slates also have a similar operational lifespan of
approximately 25 years; which is comparable with other Solar PV solutions. It
however result in the loss of historic fabric, namely the existing slate roof. Although
this is believed to have been re-roofed/repaired in the 1980s.

5.36. There are some drawbacks to the use of Solar Slates. They cannot be used to
slate the full extent of the existing roof planes. An outer boarder of traditional slates
has to be maintained to enclose the PV system. This in turn has the potential to
create a visual differential between the traditional slates and solar slates — however
in example images this not considered to be significantly discernible. Furthermore
the Solar Slates are based upon a traditional Welsh slate which are typically grey
with blue tones. In contrast much of the slate typically used within the minster
precinct is Westmorland; which whilst still being grey typically contains more green
tones. Therefore there is the risk that this aspects of the proposals would introduce
an potentially alien detail. This could cause a notable visual impact given the
general prominence of the building and its proximity to other slated roofs.

5.37. The assessment that therefore needs to be made is whether these drawbacks
would be of such a scale or extent that would amount to significant harm being
caused to the heritage asset of the host Grade Il Listed Building but also to the
wider Conservation Area and the character and setting of the Minster precinct.

5.38. With regard to the two potential approaches the applicant could adopt in terms
of the extent of the use of the Solar Slate. In any event the building needs to be re-
roofed, therefore the existing roof as it sits on site today will be subject to works. The
approach whereby solar slates are used with a section of Westmorland being
retained at rear, over which integrated cassette type PV panels would be installed
would allow for, a part, of what would likely constitute the original roof to be retained.
However this retained element would ultimately be obscured via the installation of
the solar PV cassettes. In addition to this it would create a scenario where there are
three differing roof coverings across the building. The alternative to use solar slates
throughout would create a more consistent visual finish to the roof and would be
achieved using a more rationalised palette of materials.

5.39. The visual differential between the Solar Slates and the traditional slates which

would enclose the system is not considered to be unduly excessive to a point that

would be considered harmful to the visual amenity, character and setting of the built

environment. The impact of this would also dimmish further in long range and distant

views of the building. Visually therefore this should allow for the appearance of an
Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No:



Page 257

unaltered slate roof to be maintained — whilst also bringing about the advantages of
introducing Solar PV equipment into the precinct.

5.40. Within the submitted Heritage Impact Assessment the installation of the Solar
PV has been rated as Low Positive. The justification being that the building needs to
respond to the climate emergency. A response which it could be argued brings
about a public benefit; as decarbonisation should, generally, be of benefit to society
as a whole.

5.41. On balance it is considered that whilst this aspect of the proposals would
result in less than substantial harm, albeit toward a moderate level within the scale,
being caused to the listed building and the wider setting of the conservation area; by
virtue of the loss of the Westmorland slate roof. The proposals would allow for the
provision of low carbon technology within the precinct — a matter which is of high
priority to the applicant, in a manner which would be considered to be as discreet as
it can be (owing to the particular solution being proposed) whilst still maintaining the
external appearance of retaining a slate roof; albeit a subtly different slate. The
proposals would provide a modest contribution towards allowing the building to be
operated in an energy efficient manner.

5.42. The HIA concludes by rating that the overall impact on the heritage values of
the public realm and setting would be Moderate-High Positive. The known potential
harms are considered to be small areas of localised fabric, such as the formation of
the lift entrance at first floor. The proposed external lift shaft will also create a visible
exterior feature.

5.43. Weight must also be attributed to facts that are relevant to the site at present.
The former school use has ceased, and the applicant does not intend to reintroduce
this. Then the issue turns to what could the building become. The Minster have a
longstanding wish to provide enhanced visitor facilities, stating that they are
somewhat of an anomaly in not having the ability to provide a dedicated space or
facility to visitors for food and refreshment. These proposals address that desire.
Furthermore in the absence of this scheme any alternative use would likely bring
about a far a greater degree of harm.

5.44. Considering the heritage assets identified earlier in this report. It is concluded
that the level of harm which would be caused would be ‘less than substantial’ and be
considered to be at the low to moderate end of the scale. However it is noted that in
their consultation comments the Conservation Architect has concluded that in their
view, the harm would be less than substantial but toward the very upper end of the
scale.

Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No:



Page 258

5.45. As the above report sets out. The proposed development will result in less
than substantial harm being caused to the character and setting of the Listed
Building, the Conservation Area and therefore the Minster Precinct. This less than
substantial harm is considered to be toward the moderate-low end of the scale.
Referring back to paragraph 202 of the NPPF which states that where a
development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a
designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits
of the proposal including, securing its optimum viable use.

5.46. As part of their submission the applicants have set out what they consider to
be the public benefits that the proposals would bring about:

- The site will be opened up to the precint, enabling it to be read as part of it,
and reinforced by the fact that the surface treatments between it and
Deangate will be complementary;

- The inappropriate parking of cars so close to the Minster will cease;

- The formation of an axial approach will increase the prominence of the
frontage and the presence of the existing listed building and thus enhance its
significance;

- This ‘opening up’ of the site to the Precinct, and accompanying realignment of
railings, will mean the exceptional views to and from the Minster will become
uninterrupted and enjoyed by many more people;

- The perceptible amount, and actual area of greenspace along Deangate will
increase;

- A new and safe community green space will be created within the site, with
public access not currently afforded.

- An accessible, equitable outdoor facility will be created;

- There will be level step free access to the front of the building;

- Biodiversity and planting will be increased;

- Wayfinding and interpretation will be provided enhancing access and
understanding of the setting and heritage;

- There will be more shelter which will encourage use and access throughout
the year.

5.47. The proposals bring back into use a building which is currently laying dormant.
Whilst it has been dormant for a relatively short period of time there is currently an
opportunity to bring it back into use; thus, avoiding any unnecessary deterioration to
the building. It is clear that applicant has no intention of re-establishing an
educational or school setting within the site. This prompt return to use will ensure
that any wider harms to the Minster, precinct and the Conservation Area are
avoided.

Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No:



Page 259

5.48. The proposed use of the building will also mean that it becomes more
accessible to the public. Firstly in the sense of being open to the public, allowing
them to experience the building — which was generally unavailable in its former use
as a school; but also in the sense that level step free access will be provided.

5.49. The formation of a large publicly accessible space in this area of the precinct
will also bring significant public benefits. The space will be available to all and allow
people to experience the Minster from a previously unavailable vantage point.
Consideration should also be given to what the alternatives for the site could be and
what form they would take. The formation of a public space and enhanced visitor
facilities in this location are considered to be the most appropriate.

5.50. The inclusion of the solar PV equipment in itself may not necessarily amount
to a direct public benefit. However, what they should deliver, which are measures
which seek to decarbonise the existing built environment generally will be of public
benefit to society as a whole.

5.51. Overall it is considered that the proposals will facilitate a range of public
benefits which are considered to sufficiently outweigh the less than substantial harm
that may be caused.

5.52. The proposals, by their very nature, will result in changes and alterations being
made to the existing building. It is also noted that some the works to date at the
building during its use as a school have in some instances being unsympathetic.
However, at present the building is not in active use and occupies a prominent
position within the precinct — contributing to the overall setting of the precinct and
the Minster. It is acknowledged some aspects of the proposals will give rise to
varying degrees of harm. However this is balanced against the opportunity to bring
the building back into a viable use, facilitate a significant enhancement to the public
realm and public space immediately around the building; whilst also delivering
specified objectives and aspirations as set out within the draft Minster
Neighbourhood Plan. All of which would be considered to make a positive
contribution to the precinct. The proposals would therefore accord with Policy D5 of
the 2018 DLP and Policy C1 of the Draft Minster Neighbourhood Plan and relevant
polices within the NPPF.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1. Regard is had to advice in paragraph 199 of the NPPF that when considering

the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage

asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation (and the more

important the asset, the greater the weight should be) and to the legislative

requirements to give considerable importance and weight to the harm to a listed
Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No:



Page 260

building and conservation area. The public benefits are summarised at paragraphs
5.46. to 5.51. above. Whilst it is acknowledged the elements of the proposed
development will give rise to varying degrees of harm to the Listed Building and
therefore the Conservation Area. It is on balance, considered that these less than
substantial harms would be outweighed by the public benefits the proposals would
bring about even when giving great weight to the conservation of these assets. The
proposals would deliver a very clear objective of the draft Minster Neighbourhood
Plan whilst also bringing a currently dormant building back into meaningful use. The
proposals would also facilitate the provision of what could become an important
publicly accessible space within the precinct.

6.2. It is therefore recommended that Listed Building Consent be granted; subject to
any conditions outlined below. However it should be noted that a number of matters
relating to eventual operation of the scheme are covered by conditions attached to
the associated application for planning permission therefore they do not require
repeating in the granting of Listed Building Consent.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve

1 TIMEL2  Development start within 3 yrs (LBC/CAC)

2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans:-

Roof Plan As Proposed: Drawing No. (GA)200 Rev 2.02

Section A-A and Section B-B, Proposed Entrance Door Detail: Drawing No. (GA)300
Rev 2.02

West Elevation (Main) As Proposed: Drawing No. (GA)400 Rev 2.03

East Elevation (Church Yard) As Proposed: Drawing No. (GA)401 Rev 2.02

North Elevation/Section (Facing Stoneyard) As Proposed: Drawing No. (GA)402
Rev 2.02

lllustrative Landscape General Arrangement: Drawing No. 0876-RFM-XX-00-DR-L-
0001 Rev PLO2

lllustrative Landscape Sections: Drawing No. 0876-RFM-XX-00-DR-L-0002 Rev
PLO2

Planting Strategy: Drawing No. 0876-RFM-XX-00-DR-L-0004 Rev PL02

Pergola Details: Drawing No. 0876-RFM-XX-00-DR-L-8001 Rev PLO1

West (Main) Elevations Demolitions/Strip Out: Drawing No. (DM)400 Rev 2.01
Ground Floor Plan Demolitions and Strip Out: Drawing No. (DM)100 Rev 2.01
Ground Floor Reflected Ceiling Plan Demolitions/Strip Out: Drawing No. (DM)100.1

Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No:



Page 261

Rev 2.01

First Floor Plan Demolitions/Strip Out: Drawing No. (DM)101 Rev 2.01

First Floor Refelcted Ceiling Plan Demolitions/Strip Out: Drawing No. (DM)101.1
Rev 2.01

Roof Plan Demolitions/Strip Out: Drawing No. (DM)200 Rev 2.01

East (Church Yard) Elevation Demolitions/Strip Out: Drawing No. (DM)401 Rev 2.01
New Service Door DG30 West Elevation: Drawing No. (DR)01 Rev 2.00

Lift Door Surrounds: Drawing No. (DR)02 Rev 2.00

New Door Accessible Toilet - Ground Floor: Drawing No. (DR) 03 Rev 2.00

Ground Floor Plan As Proposed (Shell and Core): Drawing No. (GA)100 Rev 2.02
First Floor Plan As Proposed: Drawing No. (GA)101 Rev 2.01

Roof Build Up Typical As Existing and Proposed Details: Drawing No. (SK)101 Rev
4.01

Roof 1 - Roof Layout 500X250 PV Slate: Drawing No. E05613

Roof 2 - Roof Layout 500X250 PV Slate: Drawing No. E05613

Roof 3 - Roof Layout 500X250 PV Slate: Drawing No. E05613

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

3 No external menu boards, display boards or signage shall be installed on the
building unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the character, appearance, fabric and setting the Listed
Building and Conservation Area.

4  Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority the Solar
PV panels approved by this permission and to be used in the development shall be:
GB Sol PV Slate 500 x 250 slates.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance which would safeguard the
character, setting and visual appearance of the Conservation Area, Listed Building
and wider built environment.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive
outcome:

Sought to secure an improved solution with regard to the provision of Solar PV on
the building and adjustments to the proposed landscaping.

Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No:



Page 262

Contact details:
Case Officer:  Mark Baldry
Tel No: 01904 552877

Application Reference Number: 21/01536/LBC Item No:



Page 263

The Minster School, Deangate, York YO1 7JA

21/01536/LBC

Scale: 11256

o (]
SlEEE
komm
Mmhm
=olE (3|3
L= = I =
2 |15 |4 |2
E|E |2 [
|8 |ea [
Slela I
e b

BIE|E| |5
AHHNE
PlS|5|8|3
olal|lo|a|=n

Produced using ESR! (UK} MapExplorsr 2.0 - hopeYwww. esriuk.c om




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 265 Agenda Item 4e

COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 2 December 2021 Ward: Guildhall

Team: East Area Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel

Reference: 21/01980/FUL

Application at: College Green Minster Yard York

For: Landscaping works including provision of seating and stepping
stones

By: Mr Alexander McCallion

Application Type: Full Application

Target Date: 18 October 2021

Recommendation: Approve

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1. Planning permission is sought for landscaping works to College Green. The
works include the provision of new seating and hard landscaping features. The
works also include the removal of a number of the existing trees and the replanting
of replacements.

1.2. The application site is located within the Central Historic Core Conservation
Area. It is also located within the Minster Precinct which is designated as a
Scheduled Monument.

1.3. College Green is an existing parcel of open space located within the Minster
Precinct. It is bounded on three sides by Queens Path to the North West, College
Street to the North East and Deangate to the South East. The land is predominantly
grassed and contains various mature trees of varying forms and sizes. The site
contains existing features including benches, sun dial and information boards.

1.4. Most recently the land has been utilised as a Pop-Up outdoor seating area.
This was as a part of the work led by York BID to provide enhanced outdoor spaces
within the city centre to assist businesses reopening after periods of lockdown and
to assist with the observing of social distancing measures as a result of the
Coronavirus pandemic.

Application Reference Number: 21/01980/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 266

1.5. Since submission the applicant has made amendments to the scheme. These
amendments were provided in response to the comments received from members of
the public and other interested parties. The amendments include:

- Retention of T731 — Whitebeam within the scheme, increasing the number of
existing trees to be retained.

- A reduction in the number of proposed replacement trees from 10.no to 6.no.

- The inclusion of 1.no additional broad leaf green tree on the boundary of
Deangate to continue to provide a strong green frontage to College Green.

- Details on the material specifications for the stone features and paving have
also been provided.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK

2.1. The revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2021 was published
and sets out the government’s planning policies for England and how these are
expected to be applied. The polices in the NPPF are material considerations.

2.2. Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise (section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

2.3. The Statutory Development Plan for the City of York comprises the saved
policies and key diagram of the otherwise revoked Yorkshire and Humber Plan
Regional Spatial Strategy (2008) and any made Neighbourhood Plan.

2.4. The application site is located within the Central Historic Core Conservation
Area and forms part of The Minster Precinct, a Scheduled Monument. The site also
falls within a defined Area of Archaeological Interest. There are also a number of
Listed Buildings within the vicinity including a Grade Il Listed Sundial which is
located within the application site.

2.5. Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 (LBCA Act) requires that in considering whether to grant planning permission
for development which affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning
authority shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its
setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.

2.6. Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 requires that special attention be paid to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of the Conservation Area.

Application Reference Number: 21/01980/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 267

PUBLICATION DRAFT LOCAL PLAN (DLP 2018)

2.7. The DLP 2018 was submitted for examination on 25" May 2018. Phase 1 of
the hearings into the examination of the Local Plan took place in December 2019. In
accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF the Draft Plan policies can be afforded
weight according to:

-The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation
the greater the weight that may be given);

- The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

-The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012. (N.B: Under transitional
arrangements plans submitted for examination before 24 January 2019 will be
assessed against the 2012 NPPF).

2.8. Key relevant DLP 2018 policies are:
D1 — Placemaking
D2 — Landscape and Setting
D4 — Conservation Areas
D6 — Archaeology

MINSTER NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

2.9. The York Minster Precinct Neighbourhood Plan was submitted to the City of
York Council for independent examination on 26" April 2021. Given the stage of
preparation that the plan has reached, the policies contained within it are capable of
being afforded limited to moderate weight in the assessment of a planning
application. However it does not form part of the adopted development plan until
such time as it has been fully adopted. Relevant policies within the neighbourhood
plan are:

A2 - Sustainable Development

A4 — Design Excellence

B1 — Landscape and Biodiversity Net Gain
C1 — Historic Environment

PA1 — Minster Yard and College Green

DRAFT LOCAL PLAN 2005

Application Reference Number: 21/01980/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 268

2.10. The City of York Draft Local Plan incorporating the Fourth Set of Changes
Development Control Local Plan (April 2005) was approved for Development
Management purposes. The 2005 plan does not form part of the statutory
development plan for the purposes of S38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004. Its policies are however considered capable of being material
considerations in the determination of planning application where policies relevant to
the application are consistent with those in the NPPF although the weight that can
be attached to them is very limited.

2.11. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF states that decisions should apply a presumption in
favour of sustainable development which means, for decision taking:

- Approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development
plan without delay; or
- Where there are no relevant development policies, or the policies which are
most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting
permission unless:
- The application of policies within this framework that protect areas or
assets of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the
development proposed; or
- Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this
framework taken as a whole.

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

3.1. Guildhall Planning Panel: Objects stating: We do not see the need for this
costly and inappropriate vanity project. Only small trees should be removed. The
existing mature trees provide welcome shade which new planting will not provide for
many years. The seat feature is fairly innocuous but the end at an angle is odd and
ugly. Flowering patches unlikely to survive if lots of people are being encouraged to
use the area, wild flowers not suitable in this sort of green space.

3.2. CYC Highways: No comments received at the time of writing.

3.3. CYC Urban Design and Conservation: No comments received at the time of
writing.

3.4. CYC Archaeologist: No objections raised subject to conditions being attached
to the grant of any permission to secure a watching brief over the development.

3.5. CYC Landscape Officer: No comments received at the time of writing.

Application Reference Number: 21/01980/FUL Item No: 4e



3.6.

Page 269

Historic England: No objections raised on heritage grounds. They note: ‘The

gentle curve of the sculptural seating feature will focus on, and draw attention to, not
only the Minster but also the Grade | listed St Williams College frontage. We note
that the new bench (and stepping stones) are to be made from hand cut Tadcaster
Magnesium Limestone from Highmore quarry and is to be carved by the Minster
Stone Mason’s. This is very much supported as a high-quality response and it will
not only match the Minster but also be a high-quality response befitting the
character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

4.0

4.1.

REPRESENTATIONS
The application has been advertised via Neighbour Notification Letter, Site

Notice and Local Press Notice. In total 6.no letters of support and 4.no letters of
objection have been received — these have been received from a range of
community interest groups, business groups and members of the public. The
comments received can be summarised as follows:

4.2.

Comments in support

York Rotary express support to the proposed works. We like the increased use
of College Green as has happened over the last two summers, but a scheme
of permanent seating and revised landscaping, of the nature proposed, will be
more in keeping with an area adjacent to the east end of York Minster and St
William’s College than the temporary seating has been used so far.

There are relatively few pockets of peace and quiet within the city centre
where parents can sit down and relax before moving on. The feedback from
families on the new seating areas installed by York BID — especially the use of
College Green as a place to relax that’s slightly away from the hustle and
bustle has been overwhelmingly positive. We wholeheartedly support a more
permanent family-friendly green space and believe it will contribute to a better
experience of York city centre for visiting and resident families.

It's fantastic to see some plans to help make this wonderful area more usable
for residents. Many families don’t know about this great area and these should
help make it more family friendly.

York has been crying out for multi-use accessible public spaces for far too
long. This application will enable the space to be enjoyed year-round by
residents and visitors.

If the Council is serious about its vision for the city centre and enabling
organisations to develop new events and experiences for families then an
event space like this will be a prime site. This case has already been proven
with the pop-up events over the past two summers.

Application Reference Number: 21/01980/FUL Item No: 4e



4.3.

5.0

Page 270

Make It York are committed to the delivery of the site wide “York Cultural
Strategy’ and fully support the proposed development in College Green and
the benefits it will create align with the priorities of the strategy.

York Disability Rights Forum were pleased to be involved in the planning
process before it reached the planning application stage. Accessibility works
best when it’s built in from the start. We support this application.

Comments in Objection

Our main concern is the felling of 8 mature trees in York and replacement with
the usual smaller trees, where it will be 20/30 years before the multiple values
including air pollution benefit the community. We have previously reported on
trees in the Minster Neighbourhood Plan and haven’t had a reply to it.

Having supported the Minster Neighbourhood Plan, | must object to this
application. College Green is a pleasant, attractive area which foregrounds the
East Window. There is a strong diagonal desire line. The proposals frustrate
the desire line and informal use of the space. A sterile and sepulchral
landscape is proposed which looks like a continental war memorial. The
proposed cherry trees will be splendid for only two weeks of the year. The
planting beds and new footpaths look like and outdated, interwar municipal
park.

It would be preferable for College Green to be left alone and attention
concentrated on tree management and the addition or more public seating.
Although largely in favour of the proposed landscaping of College Green | do
have concerns regarding the proposed removal of the mature trees which
create an area outstanding beauty, contrast, and tranquillity.

Planting young trees, which take many years to get established, may create a
more clinical environment as opposed to the current setting which is greatly
enhanced by the mature trees.

APPRAISAL

Key Issues

5.1.

The key issues are as follows:

Principle of Development

Design, character, and appearance.

The impact upon the overall character and setting of the Conservation Area
and other heritage assets.

Proposals within the context of the Minster Neighbourhood Plan

Impact upon amenity removal of existing trees

PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT

Application Reference Number: 21/01980/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 271

5.2. The application site is located within Project Area 1 (PAl) as defined within the
draft Minster Neighbourhood Plan (NHP). This area seeks to place a focus upon the
provision of welcome facilities to the Minster estate. One of the objectives within
Policy PA1, specific to College Green is set out at PA1(J) which seeks to enhance
College Green to provide greater usable public space, incorporating green
infrastructure. As such the works proposed within this application seek to deliver
upon a specifically defined objective set out within the draft neighbourhood plan.

5.3. More generally the application site is located within the city centre, providing a
valuable pocket of green space within a predominantly developed area. The space
also plays an important role in contributing to the general character and setting of
this part of the Minster Precinct.

5.4. Given the location of the application site, the role it plays to overall character
and setting of this part of the city centre. It is considered that the proposals would, in
principle, be acceptable; subject to all other material planning matters being
satisfied. This is by virtue of the proposals seeking to retain an important open
space whilst at the same time looking to deliver improvements to the space and
deliver a specified objective set out within the draft neighbourhood plan.

DESIGN, CHARACTER, AND APPEARANCE

5.5. Policy D1 of the 2018 DLP states: ‘Development proposals will be supported
where they improve poor existing urban and natural environments, enhance York’s
special qualities and better reveal the significance of the historic environment.
Development proposals that fail to take account of York’s special qualities, fail to
make a positive design contribution to the city, or cause damage to the character
and quality of an area will be refused.

5.6. The existing space consists primarily of a grassed area which contains a
Grade Il Listed Sundial. The southern boundary includes a footway which links
Deangate to the Queens Path. The existing seating consists of timber benches
which are accessed from the existing footpath. Other notable features include public
notice and information boards and other street furniture as litter bins.

5.7. More recently additional seating and furniture have been brought into the site.
These have consisted of typical timber picnic tables, seating cubes and freestanding
York lettering and planters, including oil drum planters. These measures were
introduced as part of citywide work undertaken by York Bid to assist businesses with
re-opening following periods of lockdown due to the Coronavirus pandemic. Upon
visiting the site it was noted that the grassed area is showing signs of wear, likely as
a result of its use over the summer months. Some of the existing trees are showing

Application Reference Number: 21/01980/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 272

signs of leaning, particularly those situated along the existing footway on the
southern side of the site.

5.8. These temporary spaces appear to have been well received by businesses
and visitors to the city centre. Providing valuable, useable spaces for people to
socialise and enjoy the city centre and its surroundings. However these uses are
only temporary a feature that can be clearly seen when viewing the site; with little
apparent fixed order to the arrangement of the street furniture and general
paraphernalia that is associated to them. The existing situation with the pop-up
facilities could be seen as being somewhat cluttered in appearance.

5.9. The proposals would see the existing pop-up space replaced and the
landscaping and open space remodelled with a series of more permanent features.
New benches will be installed along the southern boundary of the site. These will
provide seating facing North across College Green. The main feature of the works
would be the installation of a stone feature bench, this would be positioned centrally
within the existing grassed area and clusters of stepping stones are also proposed.

5.10. The bench is to be constructed from hand carved Tadcaster Magnesium
Limestone; stone which would replicate that which is used in the Minster itself. The
overall form of the bench feature is also reminiscent of a gothic window and is
intended to emphasise links to the adjacent minster and East Window which
overlooks College Green. One feature of the layout is to ensure that an open view
along the Northern boundary of the site is maintained. This will in turn draw attention
to and emphasise views of the nearby East window of the Minster — particularly in
views from the North East along College Green and where College Green adjoins
Goodramgate and Deangate.

5.11. Overall, the proposals will lead to an enhancement in the amount of public
seating available within this part of the city centre. The removal of the pop-up use of
the site and the paraphernalia associated with that use will also likely lead to a
degree of enhancement of the public space by virtue of bringing a greater degree of
order to the space.

5.12. Policy B1 of the draft NHP states, in relation to green spaces and the public
realm. ‘Development proposals will be supported which protect and enhance
existing green spaces in the Minster Precinct — making specific reference to College
Green. The policy goes on to state that ‘development proposals will be supported
which increase public accessibility to green spaces. It is considered that the
proposals would achieve these objectives.

IMPACT UPON AMENITY AND REMOVAL OF EXISTING TREES
Application Reference Number: 21/01980/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 273

5.13. Policy B1 within the NHP requires that development proposals seek, where
appropriate, to protect and enhance existing areas of biodiversity in the precinct,
including any green corridors. With regard to development affecting existing trees.
Policy B1 requires that any harm should be clearly justified in terms of public gain
against the value of these trees.

5.14. Policy D2 of the DLP 2018 deals with Landscape and Setting. Within the
context of the proposals detailed within this application Policy D2 (ii) and (iv) are
considered to be particular relevance. D2(ii) states that development proposals will
be encouraged and supported where they; ‘conserve and enhance landscape
quality and character, and the public’s experience of it and makes a positive
contribution to York’s special qualities’. Policy D2 (iv) goes on to state that
development proposals should; ‘create opportunities to enhance the public use and
enjoyment of existing and proposed streets and open spaces’.

5.15. As part of the proposals a total of 7.no trees are to be removed from the site
and a total of 7.no replacements are proposed. Since the original submission of the
application the applicant has reconsidered the trees that they propose to remove. In
addition to retaining T730, which is the large mature Lime Tree which is located
toward the North Eastern edge of College Green; and is a prominent feature within
approaches from Goodramgate they have also confirmed that T731 a Whitebeam is
also to be retained. These two trees are the most substantial within the site with
canopy heights of 21m (Lime) and 14m (Whitebeam) respectively. The height of
these trees and their respective positions within the site makes them both prominent
features within the site. Both these trees would be afforded protecting during the
proposed development in accordance with BS5837:2012.

5.16. The 7.no trees earmarked, with the exception of T735, have been categorised
of being of Low Quality. T735 has been categorised as being of Moderate Quality.
However the tree has been identified as carrying wounding on the stem and is
considered to be predisposed to failure.

5.17. Amongst the objections received to the proposals, one area of objection is the
loss of the existing trees on site, particularly ones which are relatively mature and

established on the site. It is also noted that the replacement tree planting will not be
an instantaneous replacement in that any replacement planting, particularly of trees,
will take time to grown and establish to the same extent as the trees being removed.

5.18. However the submitted Tree Survey has identified potential issues or concerns

with the trees it is proposed will be removed from the site. The 7.no trees identified

for removal are all showing some signs of damage and/or wounding. Some have

also been assessed as being predisposed to failure in the future. The trees
Application Reference Number: 21/01980/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 274

earmarked for removal are generally smaller specimens which as a result find
themselves competing with the other more mature, established specimens on site.
This is also giving rise to a number of the trees showing signs of lean, as the
compete with one another for light. A feature which noted upon visiting the site with
sections of the space appearing to be densely covered by tree canopy.

5.19. Within this context it is considered that the removal of the 7.no trees is
justified. Their removal will allow for the replanting of new specimens which can then
be more actively managed. In the longer term this should allow for the creation of
better-quality tree stock. It is acknowledged that this will inevitably take time.
However the proposals will not lead to an overall reduction or loss in the number of
trees on the site; it should provide an opportunity for the replacement stock to be
more actively managed with a layout that is more harmonious. This should ultimately
assist with creating a space which contains a tree stock with greater longevity which
would be an enhancement to the space and to the benefit of the general amenity of
the area.

5.20. In the event of planning permission being granted it would be necessary to
condition that the trees to be retained are afforded suitable protection during any
future construction phase. It would also be appropriate to condition that the
proposed landscaping scheme is carried out no later than the end of the first
planting season following completion of the built elements within the site and then
maintained for a minimum period of at least 5 years to provide sufficient time for the
planting to establish itself within the site.

5.21. Given the above it is considered that the proposals would accord with Policy
D2 of the DLP 2018 and Policy B2 of the draft NHP.

THE IMPACT UPON THE OVERALL CHARACTER AND SETTING OF THE
CONSERVATION AREA AND OTHER HERITAGE ASSETS

5.22. The application site is located within the Central Historic Core Conservation
Area. It is also located within the defined Scheduled Monument and an area of
Archaeological Importance. There are also a number of Listed Buildings within the
immediate vicinity — including the Grade Il Listed Sundial which is located within the
extent of the application site.

5.23. The location of the site within a Scheduled Monument means that the
proposals will also require the benefit of Scheduled Monument consent from Historic
England.

5.24. Paragraph 195 of the NPPF states that Local Planning Authorities should
identify and assess the particular significance of any heritage assets that may be
Application Reference Number: 21/01980/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 275

affected by the proposal (including any development affecting the setting of a
heritage asset) taking account of the available evidence and any necessary
expertise. They should take this assessment into account when considering the
impact of a proposal on a heritage asset, to avoid or minimise conflict between the
heritage asset’s conservation and any aspect of the proposal. Paragraph 199 of the
NPPF states: ‘When considering the impact of a proposed development on the
significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given the asset’s
conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be).
This is irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total
loss, or less then substantial harm to its significance.’

5.25. Policy D4 of the DLP 2018 states that development proposals within or
affecting the setting of a conservation area will be supported where they, amongst
other things:

- Are designed to preserve or enhance the special character and appearance of
the conservation area and would enhance or better reveal its significance.
- Respect important views.

5.26. Policy C1 of the draft neighbourhood plan requires that development should,
protect, conserve, and seek opportunities to enhance the internationally historic
environment of the Minster Precinct. The objectives of Policy C1 would be
considered as being similar, and therefore in general accordance, with the relevant
provisions of the NPPF and the 2018 DLP.

5.27. The proposed development presents conservation considerations both above
and beneath ground. The site is located within a defined area of Archaeological
Importance. Given the nature of the proposals a degree of ground disturbing works
will be required. Features such as the proposed stone seating area and stepping
stones will require foundations, which at this stage have yet to be designed.

5.28. The application is accompanied by an Archaeological Impact Assessment.
The assessment suggests that the shallow nature of the works associated with the
proposals are unlikely to impact upon any significant archaeological deposits; and
may only encounter demolition debris from 19" century clearance and street
realignment.

5.29. Whilst at this stage the perceived risk of encountering features of
archaeological significance or interest is considered unlikely this cannot
categorically be proven. As such in the event of granting planning permission it
would be appropriate to include a condition which secures the provision of a

Application Reference Number: 21/01980/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 276

watching brief on all groundworks. This condition ensures that suitable protection is
afforded to the site and any potential archaeological features which may be present.

5.30. There are a number of listed buildings within the immediate vicinity of the site,
including a Grade Il Listed Sundial which is located within the site. There are no
proposals within this application which would alter or carry out any works to the
Listed Buildings. The Conservation Management Plan (CMP) prepared by Alan
Baxter for the Minster in 2009 (and updated in 2021), identifies the sundial in
College Green as a focal point. College Green itself isn’t specifically mentioned in
the either the CMP or the Conservation Area Appraisal. The existing orientation and
layout of College Green is such that it generally faces North toward the properties at
the opposite side of College Street including St Williams College, which is Grade |
Listed. The proposals would maintain this existing arrangement whereby College
Green has an open feeling and link toward the buildings on College Street. In
addition to this the existing arrangement of College Green assists with drawing
attention toward the East window of the Minster — when viewed from the Northern
side of College Street. The proposals will also declutter the space around the
sundial, a noted focal point within the CMP.

5.31. The proposed development is considered to provide a number of opportunities
to College Green. Firstly it will result in the removal of the ‘pop-up’ facilities installed
over the summer. This will assist with decluttering the space and providing a more
fixed set of features — this will be to the benefit of the existing Grade Il Listed
Sundial which has become slightly lost within the space. Secondly the stone seating
feature and stepping stones will provide a degree of variation to the space adding
some features of visual interest, rather than being a blank open space. It will, as no
doubt the ‘pop up’ space did, invite or entice people into the space to use it
providing space where people can enjoy this part of the city centre against the wider
setting provided by College Street and the East window.

5.32. The existing relationship of College Green facing northwards toward College
Street, the openness of the space and the way the space invites views of the East
window will all be maintained as part of the proposals. This would accord with
paragraph 206 of the NPPF which states: ‘Local Planning Authorities should look for
opportunities for new development within Conservation Areas and World Heritage
Sites, and within the sitting of heritage assets, to enhance or better reveal their
significance. Proposals that preserve those elements of the setting that make a
positive contribution to the asset (or which better reveal it significance) should be
treated favourably.’

5.33. Overall it is not considered that the proposals would give rise to significant
harm being caused to the character, setting, visual amenity or significance of any
Application Reference Number: 21/01980/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 277

heritage assets within the vicinity of the site. The proposals would improve the
space and invite more people to use the space.

5.34. In this regard the proposals are therefore considered to accord with Policy D4
of the DLP 2018 and Section 16 of the NPPF.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1. As outlined the proposals will result in the re-ordering and renewal of an
existing outdoor space which has become a popular and well used space within the
city centre in recent times. The proposals would introduce a greater degree of visual
interest into the space through the introduction of the new stone seating and
stepping stone features. The result would be an enhanced space which provides
more public seating. The proposals would result in the removal of some of the
existing trees from the site. However the proposals would not give rise to an overall
net loss of trees on the site and those trees which are to be removed are showing
signs of damage and/or poor health which means they will likely need to be removed
in the future. Having regard to the statutory duties under sections 66 and 72 of the
LBCA Act, the proposals are also not considered to give rise to issues of being
harmful to the character, setting, visual amenity and historic fabric of the
Conservation Area or nearby Listed Buildings. The proposals actually present a
degree of opportunity to introduce a more permanent solution within the space
replacing the temporary ‘pop-up’ installations which have been seen more recently.

6.2. The proposals are therefore considered to accord with polices D1,2,4, and 6 of
the Draft Local Plan 2018 and the provisions of the NPPF. The proposals would also
accord with policies A2, A4, B1, C1, D1, E1 and PAL1 of the Draft Minster
Neighbourhood Plan. It is therefore recommended that planning permission be
granted subject to the conditions set below; including an approved plans condition
for the avoidance of doubt as to what has been granted.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve

1 TIME2 Development start within three years

2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans:-
Location Plan: Drawing No. PWP 449 001 Rev 00

Application Reference Number: 21/01980/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 278

Proposed lllustrative Section and Details: Drawing No. PWP 449 004 Rev 03
Outline Landscape Masterplan: Drawing No. PWP 449 003 Rev 03

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

3 A programme of post-determination archaeological mitigation, specifically an
archaeological watching brief is required on this site. The archaeological scheme
comprises 3 stages of work. Each stage shall be completed and agreed by the Local
Planning Authority before it can be approved.

A) No development shall take place until a written scheme of investigation (WSI) has
been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing. For land
that is included within the WSI, no development shall take place other than in
accordance with the agreed WSI. The WSI should conform to standards set by LPA
and the Chartered Institute for Archaeologists.

B) The site investigation and post investigation assessment shall be completed in
accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation
approved under condition (A) and the provision made for analysis, publication and
dissemination of results and archive deposition will be secured. This part of the
condition shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in
accordance with the programme set out in the WSI.

C) A copy of a report shall be deposited with City of York Historic Environment
Record to allow public dissemination of results 2 months of completion or such other
period as may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: The site is located within an Area of Archaeological Importance and the
development may affect important archaeological deposits which must be recorded
prior to destruction in accordance with Section 16 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF).

4 Tree Protection

No development shall commence until a method statement regarding protection
measures for the existing trees has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. This statement shall include details and locations of
protective fencing. No development or other operations shall take place except in
the complete accordance with the approved method statement.

The protective fencing line shall be adhered to at all times during development to
create exclusion zones. None of the following activities shall take place within the
exclusion zones: excavation, raising of levels, storage of any materials or top sail,
lighting of fires, mechanical cultivation or deep-digging, parking or manoeuvring of

Application Reference Number: 21/01980/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 279

vehicles; there shall be no site huts, no mixing of cement, no disposing of washings,
no stored fuel, no new trenches, or pipe runs for services or drains. The fencing
shall remain secured in position throughout the construction process including the
implementation of landscape works. A notice stating ‘'tree protection zone - do not
remove' shall be attached to each section of fencing.

Reason: To ensure that the trees which are to be retained as part of the
development are afforded suitable protection from potential damage which may
arise as of the development approved by this permission.

5  The soft landscaping and planting as annotated on drawing PWP 449 003 Rev
03 shall be completed within a period of six months of the completion of
development. Any trees or plants which within a period of five years from the
completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size
and species, unless alternatives are agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and biodiversity, and to compensate for
vegetation lost to facilitate the development and provide adequate time for the
landscaping to establish itself on the site.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, The Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
and having taken account of all relevant national guidance and local policies,
considers the proposal to be satisfactory. For this reason, no amendments were
sought during the processing of the application, and it was not necessary to work
with the applicant/agent in order to achieve a positive outcome.

2. AVOIDING DAMAGE TO THE HIGHWAY GRASS VERGE

Applicants/Developers are reminded that great care should be taken to ensure that
no damage to the surface or structure of the public highway is caused, by activities
relating directly to the approved development (e.g. delivery of building materials via
HGV's). The Council is particularly concerned at the increasing impacts and damage
occurring to grass verges. This is detrimental to residential amenity, can present
safety issues and places an unreasonable financial burden on the Council, if repairs
are subsequently deemed necessary. Therefore, applicants/developers are strongly
advised to work proactively with their appointed contractors and delivery companies
to ensure that their vehicles avoid both parking and manoeuvring on areas of the
public highway (grass verges) which are susceptible to damage. The council wishes

Application Reference Number: 21/01980/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 280

to remind applicants that legislation (Highways Act 1980) is available to the authority
to recover any costs (incurred in making good damage) from persons who can be
shown to have damaged the highway, including verges. If the development is likely
to require the temporary storage of building materials on the highway, then it is
necessary to apply for a licence to do so. In the first instance please emalil
highway.regulation@york.gov.uk, with details of the site location, planning
application reference, anticipated materials, timelines and volume. Please refer to
the Council website for further details, associated fees and the application form.

Contact details:

Case Officer:  Mark Baldry
Tel No: 01904 552877

Application Reference Number: 21/01980/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 281

College Green, Minster Yard. York

21/01980/FUL

Scale: 1:1256

23 November 2021

Organisation [City of York Couneil

Comments  |Sit2 Location Plan

SLA Number

permission

nance Surey map with the
niroller of Her Majesty’s Stationeny Office & Crown

Copyright 2000.

Reproduced fom the Ord
of the Confro

Unauthorised repreducton infringes Crown Copyright and may

wil proceedings.

prose cution or o

Produced wsing ESR! (LK)s MapExplorer 2.0 - hopeiwww.esriuk.c om




This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL

Planning Committee

To be held on Thursday 2" December 2021

€8¢ abed



21/01980/FUL — College Green, Minster Yard, York

Landscaping works including provision of seating and stepping stones

COUNCIL

8¢ abed



Site Location Plan

Y,

COUNCIL

L2\ P W
/7 % A X

~

)Dean's Park

TN N
7

CAER

4
@
KA

‘.""—‘ -

Cons
&

¢ N
QS\& Oé /Ie’

4

Notes: PR

1. Not for construction all mensions 10 be confimad on site ot 1,

2.Based OS_VectorMap_Local_Raster_§95210_304577 1_10000

3 Refer g ‘Doundary Otiey

treatments, site levels, arainage, retalning walls. 11

4. Bulid Upsootings to enginesrs specification.

5. Contractor o be fully satsfied wth locations of s2nvioes prior to excavatons. 0113 4572508
e ] b 5. All existing traes to be protected to BS 5837, Infog papdzsian

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021 3



College Green — View
North West

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 2nd December 2021

98¢ abed



College Green/St
Williams College — View
North East

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL




Existing Footpath — View
Toward
Goodramgate/Deangate

LITTER

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

2



BT AR % 7 7 TP = cTIrrrers e : ;
M,’{‘zj'{ﬂ., .r.z ; x?‘ ' T ‘ TR T T, v,
37 Hard carved Tadcester Megresium Lmastone/Cuseley Gt —y 7 : gy I y s
sculptural festure cuts Drough the exiteg lawn b \‘, -
etrphusise the virw of the Minslee and crale an iteractive | 1}
seating festuire. To kichide & chandared edge 1o the top of i;,
ha sione evwel 2 band ceved delels, such & e Winsler

Cut sicne crestes & crisp, clemn Ired featirs thet
Hes i Wi Dre Mimsder end it archilecture style

LA

Proposed lllustrative i : : | e s Las
Landscaping ] ket e e o SOOI, |\ e TSN ety

£
pantng \ . / b 1A creatn & beetil plartieg displey
| : / ok 5 77 e G
| L LY AL G 1| Plarting fonis more intimate pockets of
N B scece e0d seetihg anes wihin the widal p.
itarest Nom seed heads end structund N,

e tfm ket sk e Fomlage Wi
Colloge ensure post cerd views of the sissber
reman cpan and & faxbie cpan soece e
| evarts and actiily is, sich & the fOp Up

. Yok BIO everts that have proved populer
. averthe pest 2 years, | retained

sy P AT .
a4

potis 1o the main sculptone fosture in
Colege Creen Pavieg siones are
fush 1 ensre Dary are scoessitie
nd are 1o provide ample wicth for
userns o share B soece end |
MutoeTe Wi ease
. P i

¢ . . - A : Le ectordance with BS 5637.201
teas long the palh 1 be removed due E 5 b g R » 3 . % b MM‘:WIQ‘;’:CRN
e age =Y < 3 - ' ‘_ B & &y ~ R ol be carried cul using & Hand Dig

) - AR Surgery Lid Lirther delais. Leveintobe -

Existing path 1o neoporsie designated seating arees : >y p 2’ g n MM--.MWRPA\
New high quality benches are proposed that very in height » 1
and include back end aim rests, cetering for of ages and
ablly reeds. Benches e 1o be cated off the path
within hed surfaced peved wrses. Spece fir whee! chaks
and pushchain 12 be noorpomied st to some of the
Benches 1o emure the preposels ate bouive and
ovarynre is sk 10 ey De scece

Hand carved Tedosate! Vagnesl:
Urmestena/Cuseloy Gl stepping stone feetute
1o run Bwsugh Dae pockets of plenting end lewn
wen, cheating an ietetective festire,
encouteging Usens o conredt with the proposed
design. Haxsgon shaped stepping siones have
charmdeted edge 1 the lop and 15 vary 1 haight.
“ Vl’mf-h:.m;:'-uwmd
down tecugh the green and plasting pockets
5% CITY OF i the lawn

. 3 | ey g Mcoens palh and low wals to be relained
1 No. Proposed Whilebean bee i replace the existng A o G \ Al retuned surfecing end wells ae subject 1o
bairy barhg ~Exiating Yerk informmticn sign 16 be werks, general ard
3 © L retamed wihin the proposed meldeg good whees seguited. Removed peving
. _ \ Irprevetnents. Paving b Bis aree 1o from within Coflege Creen 1o be retaned and

COUNCIL gummm-mm re-pupoaed o ke g0t works




Batch B0 -
Mage
15 ralinct the
Arrmssicns, angh

Banch o i, Bianich
chaarrie b th top edge. The York Minsier Cicts Keys Chst to e hind
canved ink the wed ol the vt banch.

Proposed Plans
and Sections

A | B |

N ETONE FEATURE BENCH A ",

" Cun sk P banch " *
" Cutslone feturs saing stis ot e Sesture i Etvmar
Sortend et roind  dheiry il s il 5 ¢ N Bt mmum"ﬁmm
L ';'""":ﬂh‘" e banchas. To b s fhush and e Pawing 5 ta Yerkstion Sardione o Fens
ez it 4 shght canizmiecss of Daan Susdutens. Te b e using 4 g
eng i anl pravad g that
et ancu s periraar, e Mcitate drarace

cesliusten busa und inciide Sstul e

STONE FEATURE BEMCH ELEVATION @ 1:50

Basch o
r Cat wnd
Aﬁ_‘_“’"""“"“‘“"""""“‘“mm“‘“ m § pe— il high. Bench b b eestusied fom curved hand
ienalcns, arele and shage £ be riined dusing fla et stinge of woslkin F. - e ‘ -@_l:""
! Eruct lincalisrs, o rrsicns, anghe and shaze b be rabned
it - - Pt fos ol York Weraa e i Vi, Bt 1 vl St chadorts
Rt ! the wp adge Bacch i nchide @ Frm chasler 1o the 1p edge. Bench i

AD0mes e ot shone privig =g detel o
o pukurty of s shond ahire.
% B0mes,

400t wick 21t sdonn pavineg rasgis detal 1o

Mum\'u
/ mcmmwunmw
. [T p— U
ADCm= it el 3hen puvisy mangin detd “hm o Yorkab m
) -
o e = tnn of 15w wclpual st ':m-,m,,
fastun. Blocks b ba 200 300sm 1 Swm m'{ehlﬂumn (Q
dmap Pavicg o be Yoikshie Susduicos o S ot utien use
Faseat of Dipws Susdsicns. Ta be isid usisg & Inclecks rasrar “ (-D
m s Gl slon faalure paring sy detal bartwasn e
benchiPixisg 1o b Yeribise Sandslons o Fenmsd ol
n_munwdquuum N
s i inchude mortar
Fuanzialu= daptin ant s et s fo e STONE FEATURE BENCH A - PLAN VIEW @ 1:50 STOME FEATURE BEMCH B - PLAN VIEW @ 1:50 STOME FEATURE BENCH C - PLAN VIEW @ 150
I ’ anvsizpm i oo dieuton st Yo
I - Mumter Slone Mascr's & Cwsigs Team
STONME FEATURE BENCH CROSS SECTION @& 1:10
Cut slone fmilure furing siris delul batwaen e
Bence Puing ot e BCOKDO0 wed Flust puving stssas 3t vegelhar 15
i ez, P ¥ b Yoskshon [
F“JD_MmTahlﬂd.dlgnhld ) —imagon shaped senting shom iveturs srd Purving stusms
cnsalruchion buse ured inchide sorsar joins . Plush, ey o sl Tgatiea b Boam b BOOYm @ and Smm
ADOveer wida st st — - L s Sl o e faalise awp. Paxing b bu Yorkeahion
T ! uﬂhhmmmwmu:'ﬁ banch. Puving sicnes i be S00mm @ heegon Sasdsiens cr Funat ol Dean
| stome tastusn. Blocks b be 200e500mm e rﬂ,m"’ o bk ok Samdeers. Tobe Wid usrg g
| | ¥ B0mm dodg, Faving b ke Terabion Vs msﬁm-muhhudumuu N coaliuctan Kanisntd
Tnnmmln;:mmhn oonwinection bass an & conervis ped
| | ot A s e s o whn st
I I L umumwmwb
e
| |
b i | " —

NN |

f——B0sr——
Srvaope i G s witt i prorrs
STONE PAVING STRIP CROSS SECTION @ 1:10 s S sty § s Tea -
NOTES: : (s A
. g frocun it from Yok . Flus sisgping sienes i be kid &0 a L - - £
::(n.r.su«.mm [y T ———— “r gty Ly Yy e /
- baithers ¢ e where reguited b dimiepad in consdisation with York re— !
n e o etatin arw with Jm of proprsed Minsier Gone Misor's & Dasign Tasm ared spacibicalion b ““‘m""‘“",n m*‘m‘mm m“hnﬂﬂ““m \
e servicas {Seteis 1o be agread) Yok Minster Szose Muscr's & Dasign Taam .. . *
CITY OF st oy £ 4
* Stmpping sisne leslure o be cated o minimue of 1 Sm bom sunoundng lendecege fastures inc iees -
108 i RSP et FEATURE STEPPING STONES CROSS SECTIONS @ 120 INTERACTIVE FEATURE STEFPING STONES ACCESS PATH - PLAN VIEW @ 1:50
Froer T
Bioam Notes: PP Dcign Lt
Yok BD& 1. Nokfor consiuction ai dmensions to be cormed on sie. Unit 1. Whieley Court
p— T Toxs [me zBasennnHNP & Survey QD 1371/ 01 by Russell Gaomaiics Lid N Pocl Road
Praposed lustrative Sections & Detals to anchitects/engineess drawing for sibe levels, drainage, retaining walls, senvices and utiies .

Y] Lo e m— ey Y I *Mlﬂﬁwbm |'/ @m
e ———— —— T =i for OT'K [ i e=kfemtirgen@nd December 2021 N o113 serzscs 8
COUNCIL P 49004 ® VARIES@AT E@E-m o || = gmmw " Fo@pvpdESin.co.Uk DESIGN




	Agenda
	 
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 04/11/2021 Planning Committee
	Minutes


	4a Land At Cocoa West, Wigginton Road, York [21/01371/FULM]
	Land At Cocoa West site plan
	Land At Cocoa West presentation

	4b Mecca Bingo, 68 Fishergate, York YO10 4AR [21/01605/FULM]
	Mecca Bingo site plan
	Mecca Bingo presentation

	4c The Minster School, Deangate, York YO1 7JA [21/01535/FUL]
	The Minster School site plan
	21-01535-FUL and 21-01536-LBC The Minster School Deangate presentations

	4d The Minster School Deangate York YO1 7JA [21/01536/LBC]
	The Minster School LBC site plan

	4e College Green, Minster Yard, York [21/01980/FUL]
	College Green site plan
	College Green presentation


